Fen|anPublic Document Pack lOO%

CAMBRIDGESHIRE pepple
driven

Fenland District Council

AGENDA

PLANNING COMMITTEE Committee Officer: Jo Goodrum

Tel: 01354 622424 (committee only)
WEDNESDAY, 10 DECEMBER 2025 e-mail: memberservices@fenland.gov.uk
1.00 PM

COUNCIL CHAMBER, FENLAND HALL,
COUNTY ROAD, MARCH, PE15 8NQ

1 To receive apologies for absence.
2 Previous Minutes (Pages 5 - 28)
To confirm and sign the minutes from the previous meeting of 12 November 2025.

3 To report additional items for consideration which the Chairman deems urgent by
virtue of the special circumstances to be now specified

4 To receive Members declarations of any interests under the Local Code of Conduct
or any interest under the Local Code of Conduct or any interest under the Code of
Conduct on Planning Matters in respect of any item to be discussed at the meeting.

5 F/YR25/0258/VOC
Land East Of, The Elms, Chatteris
Variation of condition 7 (southern access) and removal of condition 16 (LEAP) of
planning permission F/'YR22/0967/FDL (Erect up to 80 x dwellings (outline
application with matters committed in respect of access)) - re wording of condition.
(Pages 29 - 54)

To determine the application.

6 F/YR25/0347/F
20 Nene Parade, March, PE15 8TD
Erect 2x self-build/custom build dwellings involving demolition of existing dwelling
and garage within a Conservation Area (Pages 55 - 80)

To determine the application.

Fenland District Council  Fenland Hall ® County Road e March o Cambridgeshire  PE15 8NQ
Telephone: 01354 654321 o Textphone: 01354 622213

"
Email: info@fenland.qov.uk  Website: www.fenland.gov.uk Yy

&\ INVESTORS
%, IN PEOPLE



7 FIYR25/0776/PIP
Land North Of 386, Wisbech Road, Westry
Permission in Principle for up to 9 x dwellings (Pages 81 - 90)

To determine the application.

8 TP0O042025
Tavistock Road, Wisbech (Pages 91 - 98)

To advise members of the current situation and determine an appropriate course of
action.

9 F/YR25/0726/PIP
Land South Of 29, Primrose Hill, Doddington
Permission in Principle for 2 x dwellings (Pages 99 - 112)

To determine the application.
10 F/YR25/0729/PIP
Land North Of 10, Primrose Hill, Doddington
Permission in Principle to erect 4 workplace dwellings (Pages 113 - 126)
To determine the application.
11 F/YR25/0730/PIP
Land North Of The Quadrant, Primrose Hill, Doddington
Permission in Principle for 2 x dwellings (Pages 127 - 140)
To determine the application.
12 F/YR25/0787/PIP
Land East Of 50 Station Road, Manea
Permission in principle to erect up to 7 x dwellings
(Pages 141 - 156)
To determine the application.
13 F/YR25/0796/PIP
Land North Of 120 London Road, Chatteris
Permission in principle to erect up to 1 x dwelling (Pages 157 - 168)
To determine the application.
14 Items which the Chairman has under item 3 deemed urgent

Monday, 1 December 2025

Members: Councillor Mrs J French, Councillor D Connor (Chairman), Councillor C Marks (Vice-Chairman),



Councillor | Benney, Councillor R Gerstner and Councillor S Imafidon



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2
~enland

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

PLANNING COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, 12 NOVEMBER 2025 - 1.00 L )
PM Fenland District Council

PRESENT: Councillor D Connor (Chairman), Councillor C Marks (Vice-Chairman), Councillor
| Benney, Councillor Mrs J French, Councillor R Gerstner, Councillor S Imafidon and Councillor
N Meekins,

Officers in attendance: Matthew Leigh (Head of Planning), Alan Davies (Principal Planning
Officer), Zoe Blake (Development Officer), Danielle Brooke (Senior Development Officer),
Kimberley Crow (Development Officer), Tom Donnelly (Senior Development Officer), David Grant,
Hayleigh Parker-Haines, Stephen Turnbull (Legal Officer) and Elaine Cooper (Member Services)

P60/25 PREVIOUS MINUTES

The minutes of 15 October 2025 were confirmed and signed as an accurate record.

P61/25 F/YR25/0416/F
LAND TO THE WEST OF HORSEWAY FARM, BYALL FEN DROVE, MANEA
ERECT AN AGRICULTURAL STORAGE BUILDING, AND THE FORMATION OF
AN ATTENUATION POND AND AN ACCESS

Kimberley Crow presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Jonathan Malings, the agent. Mr Malings stated that Allpress Farms is a fifth generation family run
Fenland business, farming in the region since the early 1900s, employing over 100 full-time staff
and around 130 seasonal workers during the busy harvest months, with these jobs held primarily
by local residents with operations on the farm supporting many local businesses and the business
currently grows around 10,000 tonnes of leeks each year supplying major UK retailers. He made
the point that the leek season runs for just 44 weeks leaving an 8 week gap where produce must
either be imported or stored and, as with all rural businesses, Allpress Farms are seeing a tougher
economic climate to provide what consumers and suppliers require, fresh local produce all year,
whilst reducing their carbon footprint and providing a sustainable business model.

Mr Malings stated that the new cold store will allow the farm to keep production British, storing their
own crops on site, reducing the need for the current imports from Spain to meet demand, with the
cold store reducing the circa 40 lorries required currently to undertake the 3,000-mile trip from
Spain each year to meet demand. He expressed the opinion that from a policy perspective the
proposal aligns fully with both national and local planning policy, with the NPPF encouraging the
sustainable growth and diversification of rural businesses, and it complies with the Local Plan
policies LP6, 12 and 14, which promote rural enterprises, local employment and renewable energy
use.

Mr Malings stated that the building will be powered directly by renewable energy from the farm’s
anaerobic digestion plant, significantly reducing its carbon footprint, with the digestion plant being
powered by leek production from the farm and by products used on the farm. He expressed the
view that the proposal has been designed to minimise impact with landscaping and new tree
planting is proposed to integrate the building into the landscape, which will deliver a biodiversity
net gain of over 15% with lighting limited to when the site is in use.

Page 5



Mr Malings referred to traffic and access, appreciating the importance of maintaining road safety
and currently the leek harvested are transported off site to Chatteris for storage, a round trip that
generates approximately 200 vehicle movements per year and once the new store is built these
journeys will no longer be necessary meaning a reduction in overall traffic to the current farm along
the highway at the busiest period of the site which is to be used for storage expected to need only
three deliveries a day. He added to improve safety further they are proposing a new access point,
which will meet modern highway design standards and they welcome the acceptance of their
proposal for access and traffic management to the site by Highways.

Mr Malings expressed the view that environmentally the scheme is designed to the highest
standards, and a sustainable drainage system will manage runoff to the building and yard areas
using an attenuation lagoon designed for a 1 in a 100-year storm event plus a 40% climate change
allowance. He stated that a Flood Risk Assessment confirms the site lies primarily in Flood Zone 1
and all necessary mitigation is in place and the ecological survey shows that no significant impact
on protected species and details the landscaping plan will enhance local habitats and the visual
character of the site.

Mr Malings expressed the opinion that by supporting the scheme the Council would be backing
local employment, a Fenland business, safeguarding over 200 seasonal and full-time jobs,
encouraging low carbon renewable power, food production and reducing import dependency in
food miles. He continued that Allpress Farms have worked closely with officers and specialist
consultants to create a design that delivers measurable environmental, social and economic
benefits and fully aligns with both local and national policies and asked committee to support the
application.

Members asked questions of Mr Malings as follows:

e Councillor Imafidon asked for clarification that there are no runoffs to the public drains and it
is an attenuation pond? Mr Malings confirmed that it is an attenuation pond that will manage
the runoff.

e Councillor Gerstner asked for confirmation that if the committee granted planning
permission that they can comply with all the conditions that officers have recommended? Mr
Malings responded that conditions that they have seen currently regarding requirements on
the construction of access and management of the build will be complied with.

e Councillor Gerstner asked if the facility is built will it be a 24-hour operation? Mr Malings
stated that at the busiest period it is a store and it is predicted there will be three deliveries
going in and out all day. He added that at the lower period of the season it may be two
deliveries and when it is not in use it will just be storing. Councillor Gerstner asked if this will
be seven days a week? The applicant stated that 60% of the movements are going to be
between 9am and 4pm Monday to Friday and occasionally on Saturdays from 7am until 12
Noon.

Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Benney stated that he knows the site well, it is halfway between Chatteris and
Manea and lies adjacent to his ward. He made the point that Allpress Farms are big
employers in the town, they are a big farm and as with all agriculture it takes precedent in
this area being an agricultural area and Nightlayer Leek Company is no longer in business
and hopefully this proposal will bring stability to the leek market and ensure leeks are grown
locally. Councillor Benney expressed the view that it is a policy compliant application, and
he is pleased to see the reduction in traffic movements locally, which will add to road safety.
He stated that he sees nothing wrong with this application, it is a local business and a big
supporter of local employment and feels it should be approved.

e Councillor Mrs French stated that she fully supports the application, and it is nice to see
farmers investing, bearing in mind what they have gone through over the last 18 months.

Proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Mrs French and agreed that the

Page 6



application be GRANTED as per the officer’'s recommendation.

(Councillor Marks declared that one of the directors is known to him via another business and took
no part in the discussion and voting thereon)

P62/25 TPO 02/2025
62 CHURCH STREET, WHITTLESEY

Zoe Blake presented the report to members.

Members asked questions of officers as follows:

e Councillor Mrs French referred to the mention of health and safety and looking at the photos
some of the trees do not look stable asking if there is a safety issue? Zoe Blake responded
that the Tree Officer has provided their comments in the report.

e Councillor Meekins asked why the applicant wanted to fell these trees as he could not see
this within the report. Matthew Leigh responded that the applicant suggested it was because
there was ongoing maintenance and some concern in relation to the fact that there had
been some branches fall over a historic period without any detail, however, the Council’s
Arboricultural Officer has visited the site, assessed the trees and has not considered that
the trees are at any particular risk more than any other tree to public safety or their health.

e Councillor Meekins made the point that there seems to be a suggested TPO on 15 trees so
presumably there is some threat to these 15 trees. Officers indicated this to be the case.

Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Gerstner stated that he lives within 200 metres of this site and passes it several
times a day, with the building being a unique one-off building in Whittlesey and the original
owner was a Mr Limes, who owned the brick works in Whittlesey, and he sold it on to a Mr
Brown who lived there for 50 plus years. He continued that Mr Brown maintained all those
trees and, on the demise and death of Mr Brown, he believes the property has been sold
twice, with there being some development in the back and the two subsequent owners have
come along and wanted to do things with the trees. Councillor Gerstner expressed the
opinion that it is a very important building, part of the Conservation Area and there is a lane
adjacent to it which school children use to go up and down to Park Lane School. He
believes that TPOs on all those trees that are adjacent to that pathway should be applied
but he has reservations about the four cedar trees on the front as they are getting very large
but feels that TPOs would be a good idea for the amenity of the area because it would put
the owner under some conditions that if they needed work doing on them that they would
have to apply to the Council to get planning permission to do so. Councillor Gerstner
referred back to the Conservation Area and the safety of that walkway where school
children use it daily during school times.

e Councillor Connor made the point that if the TPO is granted it will save the trees and give
comfort that they will not be cut down, however, they can be pollarded at any time with the
Council’s permission.

e Councillor Mrs French expressed concern about health and safety and suggested that the
Tree Officer monitors the condition of these trees regularly. Matthew Leigh responded that
this cannot be conditioned and there are a lot of trees in the District that are adjacent to
footpaths and certain trees cannot be monitored as they should all be treated consistently.
He added that the trees have been looked at and there is no evidence currently of them
showing any signs of disease or distress. Councillor Mrs French acknowledged that these
are private trees in a private garden but understands that FDC trees are checked on a
regular basis so is a bit concerned on the safety of those trees but if the Tree Officer is
content then she is happy.

e Councillor Benney stated that private trees should be the responsibility of the owner for the
upkeep, maintenance and safety and from personal knowledge he knows that people who
undertake works would give advice and feels that if the Tree Officer has been out the advice

Page 7



given should be adhered to and it falls to the owner of the trees to comply.
Councillor Gerstner asked if one of the trees need to come down is there a condition to
replace it? Matthew Leigh responded that there is a requirement for a tree replacement.

Proposed by Councillor Meekins, seconded by Councillor Mrs French and agreed that TPO
be CONFIRMED in respect of 1 x Lime, 1 x Beech, 1 x Copper Beech, 1 x Yew, 1 x Sycamore,
4 x Silver Birch, 1 x Norway Maple, 1 x Holly and 4 x Corsican Pine.

(Councillor Gerstner registered, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct on
Planning Matters, that he is a member of Whittlesey Town Council but takes no part in planning)

P63/25 F/YR25/0591/A

28 BROAD STREET, MARCH

DISPLAY OF 1 X INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED FASCIA SIGN AND 1 X
EXTERNALLY ILLUMINATED ROTATING PROJECTING BARBER POLE
(RETROSPECTIVE)

Zoe Blake presented the report to members.

Members asked questions of officers as follows:

Councillor Marks referred to USA Chicken and other signage in the area and asked why has
this shop been brought before committee when there is other signage that does not have
permission? Alan Davies responded that the applicant’s went ahead and made an
application following an enforcement investigation whereas the property next door also has
unauthorised signage and the owners of that property have not come forward with a
planning application. He continued that applications can only be determined that are
received and those unauthorised signs within the area are being investigated by the
Enforcement Team and those applications would be brought to committee in due course
should those applications come forward. Councillor Marks requested clarification that
enforcement have investigated this one because the applicant has submitted an
application? Matthew Leigh responded that there are a number of open cases for adverts
within the District and other forms of breaches and when officers engage with an
applicant/owner they can decide to submit an application and other times they can be less
than forthcoming. He continued that whilst there is an open case it shows the Council has
not considered that it is acceptable and that it is worthy of closing. Matthew Leigh stated
that this application has been submitted because the applicant has brought it forward, it has
not been because officers have proactively taken action against one over another, but this
applicant has attempted to regularise the situation. He made the point that officers have
considered the merits of the scheme and come up with a recommendation of refusal, with
the fact that there is an advert next to it that is potentially unauthorised as well is an
ongoing, open case and should not have any material consideration on determination of this
application.

Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:

Councillor Marks questioned whether this was just progress as 20-30 years ago it would
have just been a dull bulb and now as there are LED lights they are a lot brighter. He
expressed the view that 50 years ago the sign for the barbers would have just been a red
and white pole and whilst he understands the approach of planning he questioned whether
this is not just what is happening in a LED world that people live in. Councillor Marks stated
that he cannot see the harm that is being mentioned, he can understand that it is near the
fountain and is probably not as in keeping as previous lights and frontages, however, in his
view, this is a modern society and he cannot see anything wrong with the application.
Councillor Benney referred to the signage at the Turkish restaurant being considered a
couple of months ago but the committee received a slating on Facebook questioning
whether members were sane for refusing this signage. He agreed with Councillor Marks that

Page 8



LED lights have progressed and this is modern signage, with March Broad Street having
been updated at a cost of millions of pounds and Barclays Banks is being demolished on
the corner and this is changing the whole of Broad Street. Councillor Benney stated that he
visited March in the evening and in the Conservation Area of March there are 8 other
business premises that have got internally illuminated signage and, in his view, this is a
modern way of living questioning what people would rather see a shop that is lit up or one
that is boarded up and empty not paying any rates or offering a service to the people of
March. He stated that he will be supporting this proposal.

e Councillor Imafidon referred to refusing in September the Turkish restaurant and whilst it is
a Conservation Area, he thinks he will be supporting this proposal even though he did not
support the Turkish restaurant one. He expressed the view that, compared to the previous
picture shown of what the shop looked like, the sign is not significantly bigger and whilst it is
illuminated so is next door. Councillor Imafidon made the point that this is a trading street so
it has to somehow make itself known to passing trade and customers and the rotating pole
is a recognised international sign to show that it is a barber’s shop. He stated that he will be
supporting the application as he does not think it is as detrimental because it is a
commercial street.

e Councillor Marks made the point that a barbers instead of a dry cleaners relies on footfall, it
is an internationally recognised sign and it works, and in relation to LED lighting,
Cambridgeshire County Council replaced half of the lights in Fenland with dull lighting, so
this stands out.

e Councillor Connor stated that he called this application into committee as he thought it had
some merit and he is unable to add to the comments of the other councillors but he will be
supporting the application.

e Alan Davies clarified that in terms of the officer recommendation that is based on the duty
placed on the Council when assessing proposals in Conservation Areas, with the test being
to preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the Conservation Area. He
continued that this is an advert consent application and the signage would not necessarily
be recommended for refusal if it was elsewhere in a modern shop front or modern precinct
but the consideration here is the impact it has on the historic Conservation Area, with it
being a modern design and not necessarily appropriate for a Conservation Area.

Proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Marks and agreed that the
application be GRANTED against officer's recommendation, with authority delegated to
officers to apply conditions.

Members do not support officer's recommendation of refusal of planning permission as they feel
that the proposal is not detrimental to the street scene, Conservation Area or Listed Building, it
enhances the regeneration of the Town Centre and character of the area and does not detract
from it, and the fabric of the building is not being altered.

(Councillor Mrs French declared that she is involved with Shop Front Grants and took no part in
the discussion and voting thereon. She further registered, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the
Code of Conduct on Planning Matters, that she is a member of March Town Council but takes no
part in planning)

P64/25 F/YR25/0405/VOC
LAND NORTH OF 96A TO 100 WESTFIELD ROAD, MANEA
VARIATION OF CONDITION 22 (LIST OF APPROVED DRAWINGS) OF PLANNING
PERMISSION F/YR22/1156/0 (ERECT UP TO 26 X DWELLINGS, INVOLVING THE
FORMATION OF A NEW ACCESS (OUTLINE APPLICATION WITH MATTERS
COMMITTED IN RESPECT OF ACCESS)) TO ALTER ACCESS ROAD

Danielle Brooke presented the report to members.

Page 9



Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Matthew Hall, the agent. Mr Hall stated that the officer has summed up the application very well
and the proposal is merely to move the access into the position it is built in now, with no objections
from Environmental Health, Highways or the Tree Officer. He made the point that the proposal
moves the access even further away from the TPO and there is no other change to the application,
with the conditions currently being worked upon and an archaeological dig has been carried and
the drainage design has been submitted to Anglian Water.

Mr Hall stated that when he had a meeting with the applicant a few weeks ago they are keen to
push on and have reviewed the Section 106 Agreement when the trigger points are for payments
and none of that is being changed, with the applicant being well aware when the payments need to
be made.

Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Mrs French expressed the opinion that it is a good application, and she will fully
support it.

e Councillor Marks stated that the proposal is within his ward and by slightly moving the
access over it gives it a better vision splay. He added that he has not heard anybody
complain about this development within the village and is happy to support it.

e Councillor Imafidon stated that he is happy to support and changing the access would
probably protect the tree further, which is a plus. He made the point that it was nice to see
that the surface of the road is good and almost in a finished state.

Proposed by Councillor Marks, seconded by Councillor Imafidon and agreed that the
application be GRANTED as per the officer’s recommendation.

(Councillor Benney declared that the agent has undertaken work for Chatteris Town Council and
himself personally and the applicant is also known to him, but he is not pre-determined and will
consider the application with an open mind)

(Councillor Imafidon declared that the agent is undertaking work for him, but he is not pre-
determined and will consider the application with an open mind)

(Councillor Marks registered, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct on
Planning Matters, that he is a member of Manea Parish Council but takes no part in planning)

P65/25 F/YR25/0609/F
222 LYNN ROAD, WISBECH
ERECT 8 X DWELLINGS INVOLVING THE DEMOLITION OF EXISTING
BUILDINGS

Tom Donnelly presented the report to members and drew attention to the update report that had
been circulated.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Chris Walford, the agent. Mr Walford stated that this application seeks approval for eight 2 to 3
bedroom dwellings creating much needed housing provision within the built-up area of Wisbech
and the proposal has the full support of Wisbech Town Council, Highways, Ecology and the Tree
Officer. He added that the proposal involves the demolition of the former Superseal showroom and
its associated factory to the rear where the windows and doors were manufactured on site, with
Superseal now having moved the whole operation and their staff to a new location out of town and
the site has been vacant for about 12 months.

Mr Walford made the point that the site is vacant, was operated by Superseal for many years and it

Page 10



is a quite historic use and there are no current restrictions on the activities or working hours so in
theory any future business could, with similar working operations in retail or light industrial use,
potentially move in and continue operating from the site. He expressed the view that this is a non-
conforming use within a built-up residential area that is flanked on three sides by existing
residential dwellings.

Mr Walford expressed the opinion that, based on its location and the proximity to existing
dwellings, they feel that the site should ultimately be residential, with the site having an extant
permission for 3 dwellings, however, this permission is not financially viable when factoring in
demolition costs, tree protection and BNG offset so the number has been increased to make it a
viable and workable scheme. He feels that the site is in a sustainable location, it is located a short
walk from the town centre, close to local amenities and the St Peters Primary School.

Mr Walford referred to the officer's report for the extant permission describing the site as well
situated, sustainable and in accordance with planning policy. He expressed the view that, with
regard to overlooking to neighbours, the site is enclosed by dense trees and hedges, all of which
will be retained as part of the scheme and the site has been designed to ensure there is no impact
on existing trees, one of which is a TPO tree, hence the more unusual layout that is purely to avoid
the root protection areas.

Mr Walford made the point that officers have stated that they have concern with some of the
gardens being shaded by existing trees, however, in his view, this is personal preference and
consideration by a buyer in the future, not a reason to refuse the development and it is nice to see
new build plots that do have trees, referring to the Chapter Gardens site in Leverington which had
many trees and the conclusion was that it was not a reason to refuse. He stated that, in terms of
flood risk, the proposal adopts the same finished floor levels agreed as part of the extant
permission, which was deemed to pass the sequential and exception tests as it was a
redevelopment of a site within a built-up urban area previously used for Classes A-D and, in his
view, this provides significant weight and at the time outweighed any concerns before which is a
material consideration that should be made and considered with this application.

Members asked questions of Mr Walford as follows:

e Councillor Marks referred to the concern regarding overlooking and shaded areas and
asked has this design been formulated to protect the trees or if there were less properties
would that make a difference? Mr Walford responded that the Tree Officer and third party
tree specialist came to the site and there has been a real focus on trying to retain those
trees as he feels they are key to the site and are in good condition, with there not being a
way to remove under policy unless they are an age dying or decaying trees. He stated that
the ones on the perimeter were essential to be kept for the reasons that are being
discussed today. Mr Walford acknowledged that it is not an average and an usually shaped
site and the indicative outline for the three showed them very close to the boundaries, which
were approved under delegated powers so any number, in his view, between 3 and 8 due to
the nature of the trees and the shape of the site would result in the same. He expressed
concern that the site is now vacant, what is going to happen with it, it is in the middle of the
town, it is in a residential area but recognised it is not going to tick all the boxes, however,
all consultees are supportive.

Members asked questions of officers as follows:

e Councillor Gerstner asked for confirmation that the pathway for pedestrians is fully
compliant, and officers are supportive of this now? Tom Donnelly responded that the
reference in the update report was on amended plans that provided clarification about the
extension of the footpath along the site frontage and this has been considered by the
Highway Authority and they are satisfied that subject to conditions the scheme would be
acceptable in terms of the highway safety impact and safety of pedestrians using that
footpath.

Page 11



Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:

Councillor Marks expressed the view that the agents are working with a lot of restrictions on
this site due to the trees but it is nice to see the trees are being retained and whilst there will
be overlooking most properties overlook something. He stated that he does not agree with
the one car parking space outside the window of No.6 but the design has been made to fit
onto this land and smaller gardens and shading probably adds to the character. Councillor
Marks stated that he will be supporting the application.

Councillor Mrs French stated that it is a site that does need redevelopment otherwise it will
sit there as a brownfield piece of land for decades and the agent, in her view, has done a
great job to fit the development into this awkward piece of land. She stated that she will also
support it.

Councillor Benney made the point that these trees will come down at some time as trees do
die and it is about the quality of the living space versus the trees and whilst he understands
the issue of viability from the previous application it seems to be cramming dwellings onto
the site due to the trees and putting car parking in front of one of the dwellings, with the
proposal not being ideal. He questions the thinking about putting trees before people’s
quality of living.

Councillor Mrs French made the point that every street in Fenland has cars parked outside
the front of a house so does not agree this is an issue.

Councillor Marks referred to a previous item on TPO where trees could be replaced so
these trees may be replaced and he hopes in 20 years time that 75% of the trees would be
left but there would also be vegetation.

Councillor Gerstner referred to the officer’s report which states there is insufficient
information to demonstrate that refuse vehicles can adequately transverse the site and he
tends to agree.

Councillor Marks stated that there are various sized dustcarts and if the applicant liaises
with Fenland there would be some mechanism to empty the bins. He made the point that
the site is in Flood Zone 2, committee keep discussing flood zones and he would be more
concerned about this than dustcarts and layout.

Councillor Connor stated that he cannot remember this site flooding, even in the great flood
which occurred he believes in 1981.

Councillor Meekins stated that the great flood was in 1978, but he does feel it is putting ‘a
quart into a pint pot’ and 8 dwellings are being squeezed in. He feels that the car parking is
a red herring as most properties have car parked outside their windows.

Councillor Marks expressed the opinion that planning is about land usage and this proposal
makes good use of land.

Councillor Benney expressed the view that a better scheme could be produced with the
trees taken down and there is too much emphasis put on these trees but recognised that
this is not the application before members. He feels that whilst the proposal does work the
trees are standing in the way of where people are going to live, they are going to be
crammed when they could have bigger gardens and if the trees were removed the agent
would have come up with a totally different and better scheme.

Councillor Mrs French made the point that if someone does not want a small garden, they
will not purchase these properties.

Proposed by Councillor Marks, seconded by Councillor Mrs French and agreed that the
application be GRANTED against officer’'s recommendation, with authority delegated to
officers to apply conditions.

Members do not support the officer's recommendation of refusal of planning permission as they
feel that it is a good use of land with no trees being damaged or removed, it is a brownfield site,
the site lies within Flood Zone 2 and homes are required in Wisbech.

(Councillor Imafidon declared, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct on

Page 12



Planning Committee, that he is a member of Wisbech Town Council and was a member of the
Town Council’s Planning Committee when this application was considered and took no part in the
discussion and voting thereon)

(Councillor Meekins declared, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct on
Planning Committee, that he is a member of Wisbech Town Council but takes no part in planning)

P66/25 F/YR25/0547/F
LAND NORTH OF 1 GULL ROAD, GUYHIRN
ERECT 6NO DWELLINGS AND THE FORMATION OF 2NO ACCESSES

Tom Donnelly presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from Rory
Canham, the agent. Mr Canham stated that this is an infill site and all the dwelling are 100%
affordable, ensuring homes for local people and future generations. He expressed the view that the
principle of development, on balance, is considered to be acceptable, noting the positive support
from various consultees such as Highways, Ecology, Archaeology, Environment Agency and
Environmental Health.

Mr Canham referred to the 100% affordable housing provision and made the point that the
Council’s Housing Team have previously confirmed that there are 31 names of people currently
seeking affordable homes in Guyhirn. He stated that a recent outline application 70 metres to the
south east of the application site along Gull Road received approval during September’'s committee
meeting and involved the erection of 24 affordable homes and in light of that approval this
application site is the last remaining gap in development on this side of Gull Road and would
represent a completion of the linear pattern of development along Gull Road, therefore, showing
compliance with Policy LP3 relating to infill development whilst simultaneously not extending the
village boundary.

Mr Canham expressed the opinion that the proposed 6 affordable units within this application look
to successfully assist in meeting the remaining provision of the 31 affordable units assigned to
Guyhirn, taking the new total to 30. He feels the design proposals put forward with this application
are also in keeping with the form, scale, character and materiality of the immediate area, mirroring
the similarly sized scheme which has been built to the north of the site.

Mr Canham stated that they naturally approached the parish in August 2024 prior to any formal
application being submitted where the parish noted their interest in this site being a rural exception
site supporting affordable housing for a registered social housing provider and subsequently they
have submitted this application following this positive pre-application consultation with the parish
where they had a separate objection based on the highway, traffic and parking concerns. He
added that the separate highways consultation concluded and highlighted no objections on these
same concerns, with there being ample off-road parking being provided including two new access
driveways which achieve suitable turning circles and visibility splays all in accordance with the
Fenland Local Plan.

Mr Canham advised that the applicant has been in dialogue with Anglian Water direct where they
have a pre-development drainage strategy agreement in place should planning be sought, which
involves foul drainage connecting to the existing infrastructure along Gull Road whilst surface
water is discharged to the existing drains to the rear of the site subject to separate agreement with
the IDB. He continued that in terms of flooding the application is located on the border of Flood
Zones 1 and 3 and the sequential test submitted clearly justifies the search area as being the
parish boundary and, therefore, not District wide, which was a similar approach taken for the
recent approval of the 24 to the south east of the site with that specific application site being
located further into Flood Zone 3.

Page 13



Mr Canham expressed the opinion that the site is technically safe from flooding with the indicative
street scene showing that the proposed heights are comparable with the neighbouring dwellings
and the land levels will not be raised above road level, which mirrors the approach of the built
dwellings directly opposite and to the north of the site where no issues have been identified. He
feels that this application is a perfect example and sole reason why rural exception sites exist in
order to allow affordable housing to sufficiently meet the obvious local need and the proposal is,
therefore, considered acceptable in respect of character, amenity, biodiversity and highway safety
impact.

Members asked questions of Mr Canham and Mr Walford as follows:

e Councillor Mrs French asked if they have been in discussion with North Level Drainage
Board? Mr Walford responded that they commented during the application and they
undertook the 8 to the north for private market sale so they had a lot of information needed
from this development that has been adopted into this proposal, essentially 9 metre
easement to the back, no pathways, ramps or anything within that area and they accepted
discharge to that on the previous application so have assumed this proposal will be the
same. He added that the applicant has made direct contact as well.

e Councillor Mrs French asked, if approved, what will the plans be with the riparian dyke as
the owner is responsible? Mr Walford responded that there will be a housing provider for the
site and they will be made aware of the 9 metre easement and it is their duty to pass onto
their tenants.

e Councillor Benney referred to the proposal being affordable and asked what is the split in
terms of shared ownership or rental and will preference be given to local people as from the
statistics there is a need within Guyhirn? Mr Walford responded that it is a struggle to find a
housing provider on smaller sites so no one has been definitely lined up but there are 3
companies in the running so he is unable to guarantee the exact nature of affordable. He
added that he is not sure about local provision but there would be a preference for those
registered in the Guyhirn area or whether this could be conditioned or put in the legal
agreement. Councillor Benney stated that he understands the position but wanted to know
the breakdown and preference to local people.

Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Marks referred to the fact that committee discussed a scheme adjacent
previously hearing today what the agent said previously, and these are 4 properties along
the road which are houses and not bungalows.

e Councillor Benney stated that he visited the site and there are a lot of houses along that
road that have been approved, with all these houses looking nice and all these gaps will be
filled in making Guyhirn a destination place. He feels it is a good solid application, with the
same arguments for and against as with the adjacent application and he will support it.

Proposed by Councillor Marks, seconded by Councillor Imafidon and agreed that the
application be GRANTED against officer’'s recommendation, with authority delegated to
officers to apply conditions and for the applicant to enter into a Section 106 Agreement
regarding affordable homes and the offering to local people.

Members did not support the officer's recommendation of refusal as they feel that a precedent has
been set, the application is an infill development and there is significant benefit to the people of
Fenland by providing much needed affordable homes which outweighs the requirement for a
sequential test.

(Councillor Connor declared that his reason for call-in related to the weight to be given to the
community benefit, but is not pre-determined and will consider the application with an open mind)

P67/25 F/YR25/0530/F

Page 14



LAND SOUTH OF WENNY HOUSE, IRETONS WAY, CHATTERIS

CHANGE OF USE OF EXISTING PADDOCK LAND TO DOG EXERCISE AREAS
INCLUDING THE ERECTION OF 2 X SHELTERS, A DETACHED DOG GROOMING
HUT AND A 1.8M HIGH BOUNDARY FENCE, AND THE FORMATION OF
ASSOCIATED HARDSTANDING

David Grant presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Matthew Hall, the agent. Mr Hall stated that on site at present there is a café, a shop selling
various country goods, animal feeds, gifts and homeware and that business has been on site for
approximately 8 years, with there already being parking on site and an existing access. He advised
that the applicants have identified a need for this proposal in Chatteris and have already had a
number of enquiries with regard to the dog grooming proposal following the application appearing
in the Cambs Times in July and also from people visiting the site.

Mr Hall made the point that there are other dog exercise areas in March, Manea and Doddington
which are popular. He stated there are no technical objections to this application, it is all in Flood
Zone 1.

Mr Hall advised that queries were raised by the Highways Officer and they were given time to
address these, which was gratefully received, and Highways have now come back and there is no
objection, with the proposal being to upgrade the existing access slightly. He stated that the
proposal will allow further expansion of an existing business, looking to employ further persons for
maintenance and the dog grooming business, which, in his opinion, will complement the existing
business.

Mr Hall expressed the view that the officer's report sums up the application well, with a
recommendation to approve. He referred to a comment by Chatteris Town Council about having 2
metre high industrial fencing set around, which has not been proposed as, in his opinion, it would
stick out being next to a very prominent road and they have worked with the officer, receiving
suggestions on fencing, which they have took on board.

Members asked questions of Mr Hall as follows:

e Councillor Meekins referred to Chatteris Town Council wanting a 2 metre high fence but 1.8
metre is considered high enough and asked about their proposal for the double gate system
of access to each of the areas? Mr Hall responded that the gated system is set back so
people can pull off the road, he believes users will book online and they will then receive a
code for the gate to open it. Councillor Meekins sought clarification that this was the access
to the two fields for dog exercising? Mr Hall indicated it was, making the point that the main
access from the main road will always be open.

Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:
e Councillor Benney stated that whilst this is in Manea parish now it is nearer to Chatteris, he
knows the site well and these dog exercise facilities seem to be cropping up everywhere.
He welcomes this application, it is a further development of the business and another
service being offered and he is sure it will do well when it is up and running. Councillor
Benney stated that it is nice to see something coming to Chatteris and feels this application
just needs approving.

Proposed by Councillor Meekins, seconded by Councillor Mrs French and agreed that the
application be GRANTED as per the officer’'s recommendation.

(Councillor Benney declared that the agent has undertaken work for Chatteris Town Council and

Page 15



himself personally, but he is not pre-determined and will consider the application with an open
mind. He further declared, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct on Planning
Matters, that he is a member of Chatteris Town Council but takes no part in planning)

(Councillor Imafidon declared that the agent is undertaking work for him, but he is not pre-
determined and will consider the application with an open mind)

(Councillor Marks declared that he believes he has had dealings via business with the applicant
and took no part in the discussion and voting thereon. He further declared, in accordance with
Paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct on Planning Matters, that he a member of Manea Parish
Council and attends Chatteris Town Council meetings but takes no part in planning)

P68/25 F/YR25/0698/F
LAND WEST OF BURNLEA HOUSE, WIMBLINGTON ROAD, MANEA
ERECT 1 X SELF-BUILD/CUSTOM BUILD DWELLING AND GARAGE, CHANGE
OF USE OF LAND, ERECTION OF AN INDUSTRIAL SHED AND FORMATION OF
AN ACCESS, IN ASSOCIATION WITH EXISTING BUSINESS

David Grant presented the report to members and drew attention to the update report that had
been circulated.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
David Nicholas, a supporter of the proposal. Mr Nicholas informed members that he lived close to
this location, probably 200-300 metres, and has lived here for 10 years, but farmed the land for
about 30 years and his father farmed the land prior to this so he has experience of the land for the
past 70 years. He made the point that in that time there has been no flooding whatsoever and he is
a member of the local drainage board, so he is well aware of drainage matters, although he does
not represent the drainage board.

Mr Nicholas expressed the view that there has been people trying to imply that there is not good
road visibility but that is not true as they have farmed here for 70 years and they have never had a
problem, with the visibility in both directions being very good. He stated that the one problem he
has had with farming is theft but since he has moved on the farm that has virtually reduced and he
can understand why Mr Harrison wants to live with his buildings with his equipment in to keep them
secure because, in his view, in the Fens this is a problem.

Members asked questions of Mr Nicholas as follows:

e Councillor Marks stated that he lives in Manea and travels Wimblington Road every day, he
referred to access and vision along that road and asked if he would agree that, from Lion’s
Drove, Boots Bridge and up to Poly Sports can be seen, probably a distance of 1.5 miles in
total? Mr Nicholas agreed and stated it is approximately 1 mile to Boots Bridge.

e Councillor Marks referred to Mr Nicholas’ property being the one that has been built further
down Lion’s Drove, which is quite a large property with three garages, and asked if it was in
keeping with the dwelling being proposed today, being of the same size and scale. Mr
Nicholas responded that he could not comment on this.

e Councillor Marks asked in relation to drainage boards if this comes under Wimblington? Mr
Nicholas responded that it is the Curf and Wimblington Combined Internal Drainage Board.
Councillor Marks continued that he has stated that he is unaware of any flooding within that
area, which is in Flood Zone 3 and asked if the land is drained? Mr Nicholas responded that
he did not know, it could well be, but he has not seen it flood.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from Sam
Harrison, the applicant, and Matthew Hall, the agent. Mr Harrison stated he wishes to build an
occupational dwelling for himself, his wife and three children, two of which are in Manea school. He
added that he has lived in Manea for just over 25 years and is proud to call it his home.

Page 16



Mr Harrison stated that part of this application is for a storage shed and yarded area to be a secure
base to run his equipment from and he is currently running out of his parents shed, which he has
outgrown. He feels the need to have his own premises in a secure independent location for the
future building of the business, and he was recently successful in being awarded a small business
grant from FDC, which has already helped him in being able to purchase machinery that has
secured him some additional contracts.

Mr Harrison informed members that he currently has himself and three full-time members of staff,
with his father working part-time as well as part-time admin staff. He stated that he is not looking to
build this to sell, it will be for himself and his family to live in and to be able to build and safeguard
his business for the future.

Mr Hall made the point that the applicant has outlined his personal circumstances and his business
which is expanding with contracts in Cambridgeshire and Lincolnshire and been awarded a small
grant by Fenland District Council. He referred to the report where Cambridgeshire Constabulary
confirmed that this area is in a medium crime risk area, not low.

Mr Hall stated that there are numerous objections to this application, as seen in the report,
however, when you view these they are all very similar and a lot of them are from empty properties
in Doddington and March, with this being raised with officers and Carol Pilson. He made the point
that there are no technical objections to this application and the applicant is happy to sign a legal
agreement and pay a fee as this is clearly a self-build property where the applicant has been
heavily involved with the design, is going to build it and live in it and knows the conditions
regarding self-build.

Mr Hall stated that they are not applying for a residential dwelling and using this site is logical, the
applicant lives in Manea and this site is next to the shed he uses, with this shed also lying within
Flood Zone 3 as are the adjacent buildings as is Mr Nicholas’ dwelling, with the Environment
Agency having no objection to this application. He made the point that the proposal is for an
established business that wishes to expand with further on-site storage for equipment and there
are three full-time staff employed plus the applicant, with some part-time staff.

Mr Hall expressed the opinion that the design in relation to National Planning Policy Paragraph 84
would enhance the setting, it does not create any adverse impact on neighbouring properties, no-
one has objected from the adjacent sites and also it is a very similar size to Mr Nicholas’ property.
He reiterated that it is an established business that was started by the applicant 17 years ago who
has outlined his personal circumstances.

Members asked questions as follows:

e Councillor Marks referred to the mention of it being an established business and that over
the years he has probably expanded with more contracts and equipment and have
outgrown their current facilities and asked what benefit this extra area will give him? Mr
Harrison responded that they are hoping to further expand in time, he does not want to be
one of those that grows the biggest and falls the quickest, with steady expansion being his
intention. He stated that he is currently based out of his parents shed, he has almost evicted
everything of his father’s out of the shed, so he is housing him and his father wants his shed
back hence the application. Mr Harrison stated that the one proposed shed is slightly bigger,
and he is hoping to further fill it with more equipment, more employment for themselves and
more work.

e Councillor Marks asked if the land is drained and, as a garden business, does he have a
flail where he can keep the dyke tidy? Mr Harrison responded that they have undertaken
projects on the existing land and have come across land drains across the site. He added
that he does have equipment to flail the dyke out but only to a certain reach, all of their
equipment is compact and classed as light goods, and they already maintain the front

Page 17



roadside dyke as it does get overgrown if they do not.

Councillor Marks referred to Ghant Farm being 2 mile up the road and security issues here
have been that CCC have now agreed to a hard gate being installed because of break ins
and issues. He asked if this was similar to Mr Harrison? Mr Harrison responded that his
father’s property has been secure but previously there have been two guard dogs there,
which have now passed away, and his father is away a lot more as well as his family which
is leaving all the equipment exposed. He does not live on site, so it is becoming a factor of
concern that it is now starting to get vulnerable and with the equipment not being able to all
fit in the barn there are mini diggers and vans sitting outside which are vulnerable.
Councillor Marks agreed with this as he travels the road most days and can see the
equipment sitting there.

Councillor Benney referred to it only being an opinion on drainage and whether it drains or
not and asked for assurance that there is a drainage scheme here, whether it is building the
land up so that it safeguards it from flooding, and there is a technical solution, irrespective of
whether the land drains or not, to flooding of the property that is proposed. Mr Hall
responded in the affirmative, it is a large site, a lot of it is permeable area, with a large
amount of area for soakaways which would be in accordance with Building Regulations,
there is also a drainage ditch at the front riparian ditch but he would suggest that it will be
on-site drainage and it is likely that there will also be some rainwater harvesting from the
shed which can be used in the business. He added there are no mains drains here, and it
would be a treatment plant, which is one of the reasons the site has been made so large is
for the drainage.

Members asked officers questions as follows:

Councillor Marks referred to 1.2 of the officer’s report where it is considered there is
insufficient evidence for information submitted to demonstrate the proposal is essential for a
rural worker as required in an elsewhere location such as this, therefore, the proposal is
considered unacceptable in principle contrary to policies LP3 and LP12, however, members
have heard from the applicant regarding security on site and the business is actually
running from next door so how would it be established that it is not needed if he erected a
shed? Alan Davies responded that the application was not accompanied with the
information that the applicant has discussed so the justification on the basis of security was
not with the application, but it also is not a material planning consideration. He made the
point that it is a self-build, custom dwelling in an elsewhere location so the principle of this is
based on whether it is appropriate within that location.

Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:

Councillor Marks stated that he knows the area as he travels it twice a day at least and this
is a proposal for a business that is expanding and has been supported by FDC in the past,
which will provide a home for a young family and provides the comfort factor of security and
extra assistance regarding parking. He made the point that, in relation to flood zones, there
have been previous applications regarding workplace homes where they were built out of
the ground so high you needed a ladder to walk into the front room, and members have
heard from the agent that there is mitigation that can be implemented and from a supporter
that the area does not flood. Councillor Marks expressed the view that the proposal should
be supported as committee has done with many others.

Councillor Mrs French expressed the view that it is good that this is a young farmer
prepared to invest, especially with what they have had to go through over the last 18
months.

Councillor Benney made the point that this is a business that wants to grow, with it being
hard enough being a businessman currently and this provides employment for local people.
He expressed the opinion that there are no technical reasons that cannot be worked
around, and it is known the plant is very nickable and a theft could finish the business so the
best security there is, is living on the premises. Councillor Benney stated that this is the
applicant’s site although there might be other locations, but this is helping a business, it is

Page 18



not in an elsewhere location and will be the applicant’'s home. He stated that he will be
supporting the proposal.

e Councillor Marks expressed the view that the visibility splays are very good unlike the
application that committee considered further along at Poppyfields, it ticks all the boxes and
the ground is also land drained, with the applicant going to keep the drain clear. He
expressed concern over the various dubious letters that were submitted and hopes they do
not get the outcome they wanted.

e Councillor Connor commended the application being for a young family wanting to invest in
business, with Fenland being Open for Business and it would be a travesty if this was
refused. He stated that he would be supporting the proposal.

Proposed by Councillor Marks, seconded by Councillor Benney and agreed that the
application be GRANTED against officer’'s recommendation, with authority delegated to
officers to apply conditions in consultation with the Vice-Chairman and for the applicant to
enter into a Unilateral Undertaking.

Members do not support the officer's recommendation of refusal of planning permission as they do
not feel this is an elsewhere type location, it is a good use of land, it provides security for the
business which is a growing business and mitigation can be undertaken for the site lying in Flood
Zone 3.

(Councillor Benney declared that the agent has undertaken work for Chatteris Town Council and
himself personally, but he is not pre-determined and will consider the application with an open
mind)

(Councillor Imafidon declared that the agent is undertaking work for him, but he is not pre-
determined and will consider the application with an open mind)

(Councillor Marks declared that the applicant’s parents are known to him, but he does not know or
socialise with the applicant and is not pre-determined and will consider the application with an
open mind. He further declared, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct on
Planning Matters, that he is a member of Manea Parish Council but takes no part in planning.)

P69/25 F/YR25/0526/F
49 WHITTLESEY ROAD, MARCH
ERECT 12 X LIGHT INDUSTRIAL UNITS AND A LINK EXTENSION TO EXISTING
UNITS INVOLVING THE DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDING

David Grant presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Matthew Hall, the agent. Mr Hall stated that the site was used by Fenn’s Buses for just over 40
years, there are permanent structures on site which the photos show, some of which are being
utilised as part of this proposal. He continued that the applicant purchased the site approximately a
year ago and at present the units on site are rented out to existing businesses.

Mr Hall made the point, as the officer has stated, this is a brownfield site and under 10.3 it states
this is a material consideration that weighs positively on the proposal. He continued that directly
opposite this site, to the north in 2024 planning permission was obtained under delegated powers
for industrial units, with that site progressing, and this is all in Flood Zone 3 just as this site is.

Mr Hall expressed the view that there are no technical objections to this application from Lead
Local Flood Authority, Highways and March Town Council and he is pleased to note that Fenland’s
own Business and Economy Team support the application and state there is a significant demand
for these units. He reiterated that this site is directly opposite a site under delegated powers

Page 19



received approval in 2024 for industrial units and within the officer report it stated on that
application that the proposal was on an established site with some replacement buildings, the
scope of the sequential test is agreed to be confined to this site as all of the site is in Flood Zone 3
there are no preferred areas within the site where the buildings would be set and, in his view, this
site is directly opposite to the south, is also in Flood Zone 3, confirmed as brownfield, has been
used by Fenn’s buses for over 40 years and is already partly developed.

Mr Hall referred to Policy LP6 and, in his opinion, the proposal would allow for employment
opportunities and one key point in the officer’s report under 10.7 is that between 2012-2025 the
town of March should achieve 105,000 metre squared employment area but at present it has only
achieved about 51,500 metre squared of employment area, which is not even half the requirement
so there is still a significant need and this application will go towards that. He referred to the site
layout plan on the presentation screen, making the point that over half of the site is parking to help
with the drainage and to comply with the Local Plan in terms of parking and they have used
existing buildings on site that are already rented out.

Mr Hall stated that the proposal does not affect the Board’s drain, that is all to the north on the
opposite side of the road and Middle Level have not objected. He showed a plan of the site
highlighting that directly to the west is the Force One site where works have commenced, which
was approved by members in 2021 in Flood Zone 3, beyond that is the Middle Level offices to the
west which is also in Flood Zone 3, directly to the north is the site he has already referred to in
Flood Zone 3 and to the east there are industrial units with businesses, Fox’s boatyard and to the
north there is also further industrial businesses.

Mr Hall stated the report states it is a brownfield site, it has been used by Fenn’s Buses for over 40
years who retired and then the applicant, Mr Rutterford, brought it, it is set between industrial sites,
over half the site is for parking, there are no objections to the application, there is a need for these
units, which members have previously said and Fenland’'s own Business Team state there is a
need and on the previous application it was stated that Fenland is Open for Business.

Members asked questions of Mr Hall as follows:

e Councillor Benney acknowledged that the site is in Flood Risk 3 but asked if there is a
technical solution to stop flooding? Mr Hall responded that they submitted a Flood Risk
Assessment as well as a drainage strategy and the ditch to the south is in the applicant’s
ownership, he has cleaned it out and maintained it and from that ditch there is a pipe under
the site within his ownership which then discharges into the Board’s drain to the north and
underground attenuation tanks will be installed also so it should go in at greenfield run off
rate.

e Councillor Marks referred to the mention of footpaths and asked if there is not a walkway
that comes across the A141 down Marina Drive, which is about 50 yards? Mr Hall
responded that was correct, with Marina Drive being approximately 20 metres from the site.

e Councillor Marks made the point that the site is currently in use and asked is everything
being used that is able to be used? The Chairman allowed Mr Rutterford to respond. Mr
Rutterford responded that they are and there is a waiting list for units.

Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Benney expressed the opinion that the map tells a story as the site is surrounded
by industrial units, a carpentry shop, motor mechanics, Fox’s Marina, the approved Force
One site and the Middle Level Commissioner’s offices, with the industrial units approved
opposite in Flood Zone 3 under officer delegation. He feels to say it is unsustainable as
there is not a footpath is being out of touch with local reality as you cannot work in a rural
area without a car and having a footpath is not an issue, with there being plenty of parking
on site for people. Councillor Benney questioned where else industrial units can be placed,
however, the application is for this site, with when he was Portfolio Holder for Economic
Growth a policy being brought in to help build these type of units and the Council should be

Page 20



supporting businesses, with this being what is needed in Fenland, it wants to retain
business as it is not just about bringing new business into the area but the fact that if there
is a business that relocates outside the area people lose their jobs. He expressed the
opinion that this is the right place for this proposal, it is crying out to be approved and he will
be supporting the proposal.

e Councillor Marks agreed with Councillor Benney, he deals with a number of businesses in
Fenland and a lot of them want to expand into bigger units and they cannot find them, with
this area becoming more and more industrial, with only a minority wanting to walk to the
site. He made the point that someone is prepared to build something in Fenland and it will
bring revenue in. Councillor Marks stated that he is surprised to see the application in front
of committee, the Force One application took a long to time to resolve, which is next door
but this is a brownfield site and has all the issues that Force One had so questioned why it
is at committee. He stated that he will be supporting the application.

e Councillor Connor expressed the view that this application should not have come before
committee, it is clear the site is crying out for industrial units, the Council’s Business Team
support it and Fenland is Open for Business.

Proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Imafidon and agreed that the
application be GRANTED against officer’'s recommendation, with authority delegated to
officers to apply conditions.

Members do not support officer's recommendation of refusal of planning permission as they feel
that it is not a rural area but industrialised, the fact that it brings employment and prosperity
outweigh any perceived detrimental harm to the character of the area, it is not an unsustainable
location, there is a technical solution to overcome the fact that the site lies in Flood Zone 3 and
there is a need for this type of development in Fenland.

(Councillor Benney declared that the agent has undertaken work for Chatteris Town Council and
himself personally, but he is not pre-determined and will consider the application with an open
mind)

(Councillor Mrs French declared that the applicant supports March Events which she is involved
with and took no part in the discussion and voting thereon. She further declared, in accordance
with Paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct on Planning Matters, that she is a member of March
Town Council but takes no part in planning)

(Councillor Imafidon declared that the agent is undertaking work for him, but he is not pre-
determined and will consider the application with an open mind)

(Councillor Marks declared that he supplies forklifts to and obtains parts from one of the tenants on
the site, but he is not pre-determined and will consider the application with an open mind)

(Councillor Gerstner left the meeting following this item and was absent for the remaining agenda
items)

P70/25 F/YR25/0520/RM
NENE PARADE, BEDFORD STREET, CHASE STREET, WISBECH
RESERVED MATTERS APPLICATION RELATING TO DETAILED MATTERS OF
ACCESS, APPEARANCE, LANDSCAPING, LAYOUT AND SCALE (PLOT 5 ONLY)
PURSUANT TO OUTLINE PERMISSION F/YR24/0485/VOC TO ERECT A C2 USE
CARE HOME FACILITY TO ACCOMMODATE 70 X APARTMENTS WITH
COMMUNAL AND AMENITY SPACE

Hayleigh Parker-Haines presented the report to members and informed members that Anglian
Water has responded today confirming that they are satisfied the surface water hierarchy has been

Page 21



complied with and, therefore, this application is nhow recommended for approval subject to the
conditions contained within report.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Alastair Close, the agent. Mr Close stated that he is delighted that, after many months of working
closely with officers, the application is recommended for approval. He commended the officers for
the comprehensive report as well as their diligence throughout this process which has led to the
recommendation.

Mr Close made the point that Nene Waterfront is a major regeneration opportunity, with outline
planning permission being approved in 2023 for five plots and these comprise of a mix of
residential, commercial and a care home, with this application relating to Plot 5 and will deliver an
extra care home with 70 apartments in line with the outline permission. He stated that Fenland
Extra Care Consortium, the applicants, is a partnership between Bemore, Seafield Construction
and Pinnacle Care Group, industry leaders in both delivery and operation of state of the art care
facilities, with the consortium working closely with Fenland Future Ltd, Cambridgeshire County
Council and Homes England and all of these stakeholders are fully supportive of the much needed
care accommodation being created.

Mr Close stated that the apartments will be for over 55’s who require an element of care, they will
be able to live independently but with the added security of access to professional care on site and
the homes will also be fully adaptable so they can respond to evolving care needs and residents
will have access to shared communal amenities. He made the point that 100% of the units will be
affordable and are subject to nomination rights and the building will also be partially funded by a
Homes England grant to support the affordability for residents.

Mr Close expressed the opinion that local needs data confirms considerable demand for this type
of accommodation and it will be similar to the successful facilities in Whittlesey and Doddington,
being the first of this quality in Wisbech. He expressed the view that 25 new jobs will be created on
site with many more opportunities during the construction phase.

Mr Close stated that the building has been designed to embrace its waterfront setting, two wings
extend towards the River Nene which both maximises views for residents as well as helping to
create light and airy living space. He feels the share central amenity area links directly to the
waterfront promenade to generate interest and activity and the facade of the building will be
predominantly finished in brick work to respect the local character, and this will be patterned
across the various facades to add interest and where practical there are also areas of green roof.

Mr Close continued that the building is set within structured landscaping, which includes native
planting and there will be 24 dedicated parking spaces as well as internal space for mobility
scooters. He added that the building has been designed so that all sensitive accommodation, ie
living space, is outside of the flood zone and his team has worked closely with Anglian Water and
the Environment Agency to ensure that all flooding and drainage arrangements are fully compliant
and as officers have confirmed this is now agreed.

Mr Close stated that all other matters are confirmed as being acceptable and he hopes it is clear
that the proposal has been carefully designed to meet both residents needs and respect the local
setting, and he looks forward to working in continued partnership to deliver this exciting scheme
and breathe new life into this site. He asked members to support the officer's recommendation.

Members asked questions of Mr Close as follows:

e Councillor Marks referred to the mention of 25 jobs on site and asked if they were live in
jobs? Mr Close responded that some may be, but staff tend to work on a rotation basis and
Pinnacle find that 50% of their staff live within 5 miles of the site and 70% within 10 miles so
mostly they will be local positions. Councillor Marks asked that they are to look after the

Page 22



residents? Mr Close responded it will be a mix, care home staff to look after the residents,
on-site management and maintenance staff for the operational side.

Members asked officers questions as follows:

e Councillor Marks asked how many ground floor flats there are? Hayleigh Parker-Haines
responded that there is no residential accommodation at ground floor, it is at podium level
elevated from the ground floor like a mezzanine, which is to overcome the flood risk being
0.5 metres from the ground floor.

Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:

e Councillor Mrs French expressed the opinion that it is an excellent application, and she
thinks Wisbech people and the Town Council will be pleased to see it, with the site being
derelict for many years.

e Councillor Meekins expressed the view that it is a welcome application, it is in his ward and
the whole site has been an eyesore for too long. He stated that his experience of care
homes is that the grounds are well maintained and staff are on site to look after residents so
there are no problems with anti-social behaviour, with it also being right next to the Police
Station.

e Councillor Marks stated he fully supports the proposal, it is nice to hear there are going to
be at least 20 workers on site, but his only concern is with the flood risk that exists but
sensibly no ground floor accommodation is proposed.

e Councillor Meekins stated, in relation to the flood risk, there is a flood wall right in front of
this site and gates and it is supposed to be a one in a thousand-year event so does not feel
it is a risk.

e Councillor Marks agreed it can be mitigated by flood walls/gates but flood risk is brought up
regularly as an issue.

e Matthew Leigh made the point that this is a Reserved Matters application, so the Council
has already accepted the principle of development of the site in a flood zone.

Proposed by Councillor Meekins, seconded by Councillor Mrs French and agreed that the
application be GRANTED as per the officer’s recommendation.

(Councillor Benney declared that he was on the Investment Board when this proposal initially came
forward, and took no part in the discussion and voting thereon)

(Councillor Imafidon declared that he is part of Fenland Future Ltd and took no part in the
discussion and voting thereon. He further declared, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code
of Conduct on Planning Matters, that he is a member of Wisbech Town Council but takes no part in
planning)

(Councillor Meekins declared, in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct on
Planning Matters, that he is a member of Wisbech Town Council but takes no part in planning)

P71/25 F/YR25/0274/F
LAND WEST OF PLAYING FIELD, BARTON ROAD, WISBECH
ERECT X 42 AFFORDABLE DWELLINGS, 1 X OFFICE/COMMUNAL SPACE
INCLUDING CYCLE STORES, LANDSCAPING, HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS AND
ASSOCIATED WORKS AND DEMOLITION OF ALL EXISTING BUILDINGS

Alan Davies presented the report to members.

Members received a presentation, in accordance with the public participation procedure, from
Beverley Moss, the agent. Ms Moss stated that the officer has provided a succinct report on the
recently updated position of the flood risk and drainage consultees as a direct response to the
reason for deferring the decision at the committee last month. She made the point that the

Page 23



conclusion from those key parties is clear that there is not a technical flood risk or drainage reason
to object to the proposals, with the consultees being wholly satisfied with the technical information
submitted and that the use of planning conditions will provide the necessary controls for
development and she trusts this gives members the comfort they require.

Ms Moss stated that she presented the key headlines last month and reiterated that this is a
scheme for 42 affordable homes, with all the homes being available for social rent and provides a
secure housing option for people on the lowest of incomes. She added that the Council’s own
Housing Needs report confirms there is a clear and demonstrable need for affordable housing of all
tenure types in the District.

Ms Moss made the point that all of the homes are bungalows and 6 of those will be fully adapted
for wheelchair users, with the new homes in an area identified in the Local Plan for housing growth
and that area of growth was subject to a Level 2 Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) when
the area was first identified for inclusion in the Local Plan. She continued that the SFRA confirmed
that Wisbech is well defended from fluvial and tidal flood risk issues through a number of things
and the Local Plan was adopted on that basis.

Ms Moss expressed the view that the site is sustainably located close to the centre of Wisbech and
the site has never flooded in 67 years the current owner has lived there. She stated that the
development involves the reuse of previously developed land, which forms a key part of both
national and local planning policies.

Ms Moss made the point that there are no objections from the Local Highways Authority both in
terms of impact on the local highway network or detailed design in the layout, with the proposal
including 8 visitor parking spaces. She feels that officers are satisfied that the new homes will not
result in any amenity issues for neighbouring residents and the new homes will be accompanied by
new landscaping in the form of private gardens spaces, new trees and other shrub and grass
planting, with over 400 metres of new hedgerow and an area of informal amenity open space.

Ms Moss stated that the resolved position of the Council is that contributions for social
infrastructure will not be sought on 100% affordable schemes in recognition of the viability issues
in this area. She summarised that this is a much-needed affordable housing scheme that seeks to
deliver a high-quality development, and which has addressed all relevant technical issues, with no
objections from any consultees and she asked committee to resolve to grant planning permission.

Members asked officers the following questions:

e Councillor Marks expressed surprise that members had asked for four different agencies to
attend, all of which are not present today and asked if they were invited in writing or
verbally, especially in the case of Anglian Water that they definitely said they could not
attend. Alan Davies responded that was correct, he e-mailed each of the four consultees
directly and asked for them to attend, along with Highways, with all five responding to the e-
mail confirming they were unable to attend and in lieu of this they would provide written
responses, which has confirmed they have no concerns.

e Councillor Connor stated that after the Chairman’s Briefing yesterday he was concerned
because a lot of the deferment was around Anglian Water so he contacted a senior officer
at Anglian Water and he confirmed to him that no planning officer at Anglian Water had
been contacted about attending today but they were asked for extra information which they
duly submitted. He suggested that there may have been crossed wires either by Anglian
Water or by officers, if it is Anglian Water he will be contacting them again to clarify the
situation, but he did think it was imperative that Anglian Water attended today. Alan Davies
responded that he was in contact with a planning advisor from Anglian Water, showing the
Chairman his computer screen showing the response that they were unable to attend.
Councillor Connor stated that he does not like having misinformation from anyone so will be
following this up.

Page 24



Councillor Marks stated he believes the senior officer from Anglian Water that Councillor
Connor spoke to who members deal with on a regular basis regarding the reservoir did offer
to the Chairman to field an officer at the meeting but by the time it came through it was
suggested it be via Teams so it was felt that it was not acceptable. Councillor Connor
confirmed this to be correct but had to decline his offer through Teams as there would not
have been time before the meeting to arrange.

Councillor Mrs French made the point that there are so many different departments at
Anglian Water so can understand why there was some confusion and at her quarterly
meeting with them she did bring up the chaos at Barton Road and they did say they were
looking into it. She thanked Ms Moss for her update and feels that members have got the
information back that they wanted.

Members made comments, asked questions and received responses as follows:

Councillor Marks stated that he is probably going to be in a minority of one, but he is still not
keen on this application, with there being something wrong with putting people who are
disabled in Flood Zone 3, with it being known in Wisbech that it does flood. He feels that
committee is opening itself up to a lot of problems on site should there have to be a major
evacuation, he knows that Councillor Benney will come back and say that there is
mitigation, but, in his view, sense should prevail in putting people at 55 plus in wheelchairs
in an area that is already known to have flooding issues and he does not want to be
remembered as a councillor who gave planning permission on a site where people have
had to be evacuated and it has caused a lot of problems to the emergency services.
Councillor Benney made the point that this is a policy compliant application, there is no
reason to refuse it but plenty of reasons for it to be approved, mainly monetary ones as if it
is not approved this will go to an appeal, the Council will lose and have costs given against
it. He referred to mitigation, with officers having differing views in differing areas and this
area is nearer to the sea and is being built 300 mm out of the ground and is not deemed an
issue. Councillor Benney referred to the roadworks and feels they are a ‘red herring’ and
have no bearing on this application, this is about land usage and, in his view, it is a policy
compliant application and committee is only guided by the technical people who inform us it
will be safe and whilst he appreciates the concerns of Councillor Marks but this just makes a
mockery of Flood Zone 3 to him as you cannot build in Flood Zone 3 in Manea, which is
miles from the sea and far less likely to flood than Wisbech is, but building can take place in
Wisbech. He stated that national policy does not take into account that Fenland is probably
the best drained part of the country and all flooding is based on if all the pumps were turned
off at once and not turned back on again, which is very unlikely to happen. He expressed
the view that everyone lives with risk and this application needs approving as if it is not it will
go to appeal and it will cost the Council money, Council Tax will go up and the development
could still be allowed to proceed.

Councillor Connor stated that he has certain sympathies with the views of Councillor Marks
but there is nowhere else to go, it is a policy compliant application and there are no
objections from the technical consultees, with if it went to appeal, in his view, the Council
would lose. He added that his heart is saying it should not be supported but his head is
saying it should so he will be supporting the proposal.

Councillor Marks acknowledged the views of the other councillors, but he is struggling with
putting money in front of safety and is not convinced about the area.

Councillor Imafidon agreed with the views of Councillor Marks and will not be supporting it.
Matthew Leigh clarified that saying the scheme is policy compliant is not correct and what
officers are saying the benefits of the scheme outweigh the harm. He stated that officers
have laid out what the benefits are, which are subjective, and if this was a normal market
scheme officers would possibly not have reached the same recommendation.

Councillor Benney asked, in officer’s professional opinion, if this application was refused
and went to appeal, what would the outcome be? Matthew Leigh responded that this is a
subjective matter, he does not think the Council would get costs, it would be a balancing
exercise, planners have made an informed judgement, and it would be in the gift of the

Page 25



inspector.

Councillor Mrs French made the point that this is a difficult decision, but the benefits
outweigh the harm, it is in Flood Zone 3 and local councillors are not in support of it but
there is benefit for the surrounding Wisbech area, over 55 homes are required and there is
a waiting list for these homes. She stated that she will be supporting the application.
Councillor Marks stated that whilst he accepts what Councillor Mrs French says, there will
be disabled people living in a flood zone area and elderly people are also impacted with the
other issues in the area, which have not been resolved. He questioned that if this was not a
retirement type complex would this obtain planning? Matthew Leigh responded that there
are a few benefits from the scheme, the quantum of affordable housing and the fact that it is
older people’s housing as there is a need. He feels that if officers had a scheme of a less
quantum it would probably be less likely because the number of the public benefits go hand
in hand with the fact that it is age restricted and the benefits that go with that beyond just the
provision of those houses for those residents. Councillor Marks asked for clarification that if
this was a standard development the likelihood is that it would not get approval because it
does not tick all the boxes regarding the benefits of putting older people into a Flood Zone 3
site. Matthew Leigh responded that if it were a normal market scheme there would be no or
minimal public benefits and it cannot be said that the public benefits would outweigh the
harm, which is consistent with every application considered. Councillor Marks asked if this is
something the Inspector would take into consideration? He added that it has been said that
the Council would probably not get costs but if the inspector saw this proposal as a
standalone without the age restriction, bearing in mind that the last application considered
by committee was approval for 70 apartments on the Nene Waterfront with no downstairs
living at all for safety so there is already this application, does this then put the same
emphasis on needing this proposal? Matthew Leigh responded that there is an
acknowledged need for older people’s housing in the District and he does not consider that
a Reserved Matters to go with an outline application would significantly alter the need as
this has already received an in principle approval so it is not materially altering the balancing
exercise. Councillor Marks summarised that physically able younger people on that site
would more than likely be refused as a standard development, but older people is deemed
to be acceptable in Flood Zone 3. Alan Davies responded that the test officers have to apply
is a sequential test and then the exceptions test and in order to pass the exceptions test it is
looking at what the public benefits are being gained from this proposal and those public
benefits are the quantum of affordable housing, housing for over 55s and wheelchair
adapted housing which outweigh that the site lies partially within Flood Zone 3. He
continued that the site is not being considered as an open market site versus an affordable
site, it is being considered based on what has been submitted and are those public benefits
enough to outweigh the harm that will result in developing a site in Flood Zone 3 and this is
undertaken at every committee when sites are looking at that need a sequential test and an
exceptions test. Alan Davies made the point that if this site was a purely open market site, it
is difficult to say without undertaking the balancing exercise, but there is unlikely to be other
public benefits unless a theoretical application had other benefits.

Councillor Benney expressed the opinion that the proposal is not being built in Flood Zone 3
as by the time it is raised out of the ground it is above the flood line so people are not being
put at risk of flooding because their property is built up, which is the mathematics of building
it up 300mm. He added that if every pump was turned off it would only raise the water level
by 300mm and the floor levels are being raised out of the ground, the dwellings are being
built out of Flood Zone 3 so that they are in Flood Zone 1 by the time the floor level is
finished so the risk is taken away. Councillor Benney expressed the view that the calculation
between harm and benefit is a paperwork exercise in terms of the sequential test to approve
and run it through policy whereas the reality is that people are not being put in Flood Zone
3, they are in Flood Zone 1 plus the properties are out of the ground.

Alan Davies made the point that the northern part of the site, which is where the site will be
accessed from Barton Road, is in Flood Zone 1 so this is what the Environment Agency
would consider to be safe access and there is also the fact that the dwellings are being

Page 26



raised.

Councillor Marks stated that whilst he accepts part of Councillor Benney’s argument, he
does not accept all of it and it still does not dilute the fact that it is known that there have
been flooding issues within that area. He continued that Anglian Water are not in
attendance and it has been heard that there is a difference in opinion between officers and
Anglian Water whether they could or should have been in attendance, he has read the
press and visited the site and he is still of the view that he cannot support it.

Councillor Connor made the point that the agent did say the site has not flooded for 67
years which needs to be taken into consideration. Councillor Benney added that is without
mitigation.

Councillor Imafidon referred to officers mentioning the benefits outweigh the harm but asked
in this case to whose detriment, is it not to the detriment of the people who live there already
because one of the biggest arguments that he heard is that the people who already live
around this site complaining about how it affects their own lives, including the availability of
spaces with local doctors. He understands that it is not a planning reason, but should
committee not take that into consideration because it harms and not benefits those existing
residents. Matthew Leigh responded that the officer’s report deals with this matter, it is an
acknowledged point that Fenland struggles to deliver the Section 106 contributions that are
required and this scheme will not be providing contributions towards NHS the same as any
100% affordable scheme so while that weighs against the scheme members appear to not
give that very much weight as a decision making process because in this instance as well it
would only be NHS, there would not be any education shortfall because there is no
requirement. He continued that it does weigh against the development, but he would be
concerned for the consistency if this was going to be given a lot more weight than it
normally does, which would be the most risky part of an appeal if the Council was
inconsistent in its decision making.

Councillor Imafidon stated that there are highway issues as well, with Barton Road being
closed and, whilst it is being said it is not linked, Anglian Water are not present even though
they were invited and they have said Barton Road should be open in March 2026 but they
have given dates before, and these deadlines have passed. He added that roads such as
Magazine Lane and the road by the Secret Garden as it has been raining the verges are so
soft and cars were sliding into the ditches and, whilst he knows this is not going to continue
forever, there are serious problems around the roads in that area and another possible 60-
84 vehicles are going to be added and it needs to be taken into account how it impacts
people who already live there and the infrastructure in that area. Councillor Imafidon stated
that he will not be supporting this application.

Councillor Connor acknowledged the comments of Councillor Imafidon but made the point
that this is not a material planning consideration as issues are being spoken about which
are nothing to do with this application and carry no weight.

Councillor Marks stated in the main he agrees with Councillor Imafidon, previously on this
site, although it has not flooded for 67 years, there was a nursery and it has not been a built
up area with roadways, etc. He feels the water has to go somewhere and further along the
road there is an issue which could be compounded so he cannot support it.

Councillor Benney made the point that the road might not be fixed until April next year, but
this proposal is not going to be built by then so committee cannot go on what might happen.
He referred to the NHS and GPs will be found for a practice for an increase in population
within an area, with over 55s already receiving health care treatment and it is up to the
health service to move that provision from where they are to where they are going to be but
none of this is a planning consideration.

Councillor Marks stated his concern is not NHS but that there has been an issue and there
could be one going forward, Anglian Water are not present, and people will have mobility
issues, like himself, that are going to be placed in a problem area, which has a knock on
effect on the emergency services. He added that he has seen flooding first hand at Manea,
seen not only the disruption but the distress when people are having to evacuate their
houses.

Page 27



e Councillor Connor questioned what would be gained by having Anglian Water here?
Councillor Benney made the point that Anglian Water and the Lead Local Flood Authority
have been present on previous applications saying everything is fine and if they turned up
today they would only reiterate what they have stated within their reports.

Proposed by Councillor Benney, seconded by Councillor Mrs French and agreed that the
application be GRANTED as per the officer’s recommendation.

(All members present declared, in accordance with Paragraph 2 of the Code of Conduct on
Planning Matters, that they had been lobbied on this application)

(Councillor Meekins declared that he was not at the previous meeting when this application was
considered so took no part in the discussion and voting thereon. He further declared, in

accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Code of Conduct on Planning Matters, that he is a member
of Wisbech Town Council but takes no part in planning)

5.19 pm Chairman

Page 28



Agenda Iltem 5

F/YR25/0258/VOC
Applicant: Mr David Aplin Agent: John Mason
Lovell Partnerships Carter Jonas LLP

Land East Of, The Elms, Chatteris, Cambridgeshire

Variation of condition 7 (southern access) and removal of condition 16 (LEAP) of
planning permission F/YR22/0967/FDL (Erect up to 80 x dwellings (outline
application with matters committed in respect of access)) - re wording of
condition

Officer reccommendation: Approve, subject to completion of S106

Reason for Committee: Fenland Futures Ltd are the land owners.

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This Section 73 application relates to land east of The Elms, Chatteris; a 3.59-
hectare site forming the northern part of the East Chatteris Strategic Allocation
(Policy LP10, Fenland Local Plan 2014). Outline planning permission was granted
in September 2024 for up to 80 dwellings, subject to a Section 106 agreement
securing 20% affordable housing and financial contributions, including the
provision of an on-site Locally Equipped Area for Play (LEAP).

1.2 The application seeks:

e To amend Condition 7 to remove the requirement for a vehicular access to the
southern boundary, retaining only a cycleway/footpath link;

e To remove Condition 16 requiring an on-site LEAP, replacing this with a
financial contribution towards improvements at the Wenny Recreation Ground;
and

e To remove affordable housing provision, supported by a detailed viability
assessment.

1.3 Independent reviews of the applicant’s Financial Viability Assessment by CP
Viability Ltd and an independent Quantity Surveyor (Thornton Firkin) confirm that
the scheme is unviable even without affordable housing or S106 contributions. On
this basis, officers accept that the removal of these obligations is justified to
ensure the site’s delivery, consistent with national and local policy objectives to
maintain housing supply on allocated sites.

1.4 The proposed rewording of Condition 7 is also considered acceptable. The Local
Highway Authority raises no objection, confirming that the outline permission was
assessed on the basis of access from The Elms only. The amendment retains
pedestrian and cycle connectivity and avoids potential “rat run” issues, remaining
broadly consistent with the East Chatteris Broad Concept Plan.

1.5 The removal of Condition 16, with a £67,000 off-site contribution secured through
a Deed of Variation to the S106 agreement, is likewise supported. This
contribution will enhance local play facilities at Wenny Recreation Ground,
providing an equivalent community benefit within walking distance of the site.

Page 29



1.6 In summary, the application is supported by robust independent evidence, and the
proposed variations are considered to comply with Policies LP5, LP7, LP10, and
LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014). The amendments will facilitate the
delivery of housing on this strategic allocation without adverse impacts on
highway safety, open space provision, or the wider planning objectives for East
Chatteris.

1.7 The application is subsequently recommended for approval, subject to the
variation to the legal agreement.

2  SITE DESCRIPTION

2.1. The application site is located at the eastern edge of Chatteris and can be
accessed from The Elms (cul-de-sac) and Green Park, existing residential areas
to the west and north of the site respectively. The site measures 3.59 hectares
and is located within Flood Zone 1, but is subject to surface water flooding.

2.2. The site is currently informal grassland. The land to the south and east, beyond
the A142, are similarly undeveloped and are comprised of largely open
pasture/meadow land.

2.3. The site forms the northern part of the East Chatteris Strategic Allocation in the
adopted local plan. A Broad Concept Plan was adopted by Planning Committee
in June 2017, which covered a larger 26-hectare site in total, including land north
of Wenny Road and west of the A142. The adopted BCP identified overall
potential for up to 350 dwellings across the whole BCP area.

3 PROPOSAL

3.1. This application seeks alter the wording of Condition 7 and remove Condition 16
of the outline planning permission (F/YR22/0967/FDL) for the land to the east of
The Elms. Condition 7 of the outline permission states:

The submission of a detailed layout as required by condition No 1, shall include a
vehicular access and cycleway/footpath which will abut the southern boundary of
the site enabling a future link for development of land to the south within the East
Chatteris BCP allocation.

Reason: In accordance with policy LP10 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014, and the
adopted East Chatteris BCP, and in the interests of comprehensive development.

3.2  Condition 16 of the outline permission states the following:

Notwithstanding the indicative layout submitted with the application, the
submission of a detailed layout as required by condition No 1, shall include
details of a LEAP to be provided. The submission shall include full details of
specifications and layout of the play area, management and maintenance and a
timetable for delivery. The development shall be carried out only in accordance
with the approved details.

Page 30



Reason: In the interest of satisfactory development and in accordance with policy
LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

3.3 The applicant is seeking to reword Condition 7 by removing the words ‘vehicular
access and’, which would amend the condition to read as follows:

The submission of a detailed layout as required by condition No 1, shall include a
cycleway/footpath which will abut the southern boundary of the site enabling a
future link for development of land to the south within the East Chatteris BCP
allocation.

Reason: In accordance with policy LP10 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014, and the
adopted East Chatteris BCP, and in the interests of comprehensive development.

3.4 Itis proposed to remove Condition 16 entirely and a financial sum would be
provided for improvements to existing play space within the area through a Deed
of Variation to the existing s106 agreement.

3.5 Also proposed is the removal of the provision of affordable housing, on viability
grounds.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:

https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

4  SITE PLANNING HISTORY

Reference Description Decision
F/YR25/0350/RM Reserved Matters application Pending Consideration
relating to detailed matters of
appearance, landscaping,
layout and scale pursuant to
outline permission
F/YR22/0967/FDL to erect 54
x dwellings
F/IYR25/0249/NONMAT | Non-material amendment: Approved 16" April
variation to condition 11, 12, 2025

23 and 24 wording, relating to
planning permission
FIYR22/0967/FDL (erect up to
80 dwellings — outline
application with matters
committed in respect of
access)

F/YR22/0967/FDL Erect up to 80 dwellings — Granted 23
outline application with matters | September 2024
committed in respect of
access)

5 CONSULTATIONS
5.1 Itis important to note that the original submission for the variation of conditions

related solely to the amendment of Condition 7 and the removal of Condition 16.
The request to remove the affordable housing provision was not included until 31st

Page 31


https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

July 2025, which prompted a full re-consultation. The responses below reflect and
incorporate comments received from both rounds of consultation.

Chatteris Town Council

Obijection: initially the Town Council raised concerns that the removal of the
vehicular access will increase traffic on St Martins Road, Birch Avenue, and The
Elms, which cannot cope with additional volumes. Following the second
consultation, the Town Council recommends refusal, noting the development is
unpopular and provides no direct community benefit. Affordable housing, urgently
needed for local young people, was the only planned benefit, and its removal is
strongly opposed. The Council disputes the viability report and considers the
application should be determined by an independent authority, such as the County
Council. Following the consultation due to the receipt of the viability review
information the Town Council maintain their objection stating:

‘Recommend Refusal and strongly object to the proposal. There are no section
106 agreements which will benefit the town, despite the fact that the land was sold
by FDC for a profit. The town will gain nothing from this development. Affordable
housing, which is badly needed for the young people of the town was to be the
only benefit for the community and the proposal is now to remove that element.
The Town Council continues to dispute the viability report and notes that it
appears that FDC keeps on getting viability reports until it gets the answer it

wants. The Council believes this FDC application should be determined by another
authority, such as the County Council, as there is clearly a conflict of interest.

External Consultees
Cambridgeshire County Council Highways

Raised no object as part of either consultation: As set out in the covering letter by
Carter Jonas (dated 14th March 2025), a southern vehicle link between this
development and the development to the south (F/YR23/0697/FDL) was not
modelled as part of the outline permission (F/YR22/0967/FDL). In the event that a
southern vehicle link was being proposed, then additional assessment of the
impacts on the local highway network would be required.

The outline permission was assessed by the Local Highway Authority on the
premise of a sole vehicular point of access (The EIms) and considered accepted at
that time. This RM application proposes a sizable reduction in dwelling numbers
compared to the number approved at outline. The proposed variation of Condition
7 would not result in a significant impact on the public highway and is in line with
the transport assessments presented during the outline application.

Internal Consultees

FDC Environmental Health

No objection as part of both consultations.

Leisure and Open Spaces Manager

No objection: A s106 contribution to Wenny Recreation Ground which is at the

other end of the EIms would be a good location for the funds to be allocated,
rather than (the provision of) another play area.

Page 32



5.6

5.7

Local Councillor

As part of the re-consultation Councillor James Carney has objected to the

application:

e The proposed change to the southern access is unclear and should remain
to support future development, as required by the original planning
decision under policy LP10 and the East Chatteris BCP.

e The proposal to remove 20% affordable housing has caused significant
concern. The viability report offers no clear justification, and removing this
provision undermines local housing needs and the ability for residents to
live near work, family, and schools.

Local Residents/Interested Parties

Four objections to the proposal have been received from three individuals. One of
which was in response to the re-consultation, these are summarised below:

Objecting Comments

Officer Response

The Variation of Condition does not
conform to either the Local Plan or the
East Chatteris Broad Concept Plan
(BCP) as the BCP area has been split
into three separate applications and is
not ‘planned and implemented in a
coordinated way’.

Comments noted and discussed
throughout the below report.

By proposing to remove a vehicular
access link, the developer is moving
even further away from LP7, the
adopted BCP, and the entire purpose of
the BCP concept, which is to prevent
disjointed development on a Strategic
Allocation.

Comments noted and discussed in the
below report.

There is insufficient detail to assess if
the existing play areas are a suitable
substitute for on-site play areas in
accordance with the LP’s Open Space
Standards.

Comments noted and discussed in the
below report.

Full vehicular access is required by
planning officers between the two sites
within the East Chatteris BCP
(F/'YR23/0697/FDL and F/YR21/0981/F)
for the application to comply with the
BCP.

Comments noted and discussed
throughout the below report.

Vehicular Link (Condition 7): Removing
the required southwards vehicular link
undermines the adopted Fenland Local
Plan (2014) Policy LP7 and the
approved East Chatteris BCP (2017).

Comments noted and discussed
throughout the below report.

Page 33



This site's access via The Elms already
deviates from the BCP's Wenny Road
strategy; removing the internal link
worsens this fragmentation, risking
isolated estates lacking cohesion and
connections, contrary to the BCP's
intent.

Comments noted and discussed
throughout the below report.

Removing the on-site LEAP is
unacceptable - contradicts emerging
policy direction, significantly worsens
this local deficit for Chatteris, and
ignores the distinct function of equipped
play versus informal space.

Comments noted and discussed
throughout the below report.

Greenfield site - Land has been
grassland for decades, making it cost-
effective to develop.

Comments noted.

Public ownership - Originally owned by
Chatteris Urban Council, transferred to
FDC in 1974, and then to FFL (wholly
owned subsidiary) at a discounted rate
(£200,000).

Comments noted and discussed in the
below report.

Developer partnership - FFL partnered
with Lovell in March 2024; FDC is
effectively both landowner and
development partner.

Comments noted and discussed in the
below report.

Viability assessment issues:

- Treats the land transfer as private
and arm’s-length, inflating
Benchmark Land Value (BLV).

- Existing Use Value (£10,000/acre)
appears high for dormant
grassland.

- Landowner premium is excessive;
FFL does not need additional
incentive to develop.

Comments noted and discussed
throughout the below report.

Interrelated parties: FDC, FFL, and
Lovell are not independent, contrary to
assumptions in the VA.

Comments noted and discussed
throughout the below report.

Policy context: Site is part of the East

Chatteris Strategic Allocation; Local Plan

policies LP7 and LP10 require a broad
housing mix including affordable
housing.

Comments noted and discussed
throughout the below report.

Public expectation: Given public
ownership and discounted land transfer,
the development should deliver public
benefits, including affordable housing.

Comments noted and discussed
throughout the below report.

Page 34




The VA should be revised to account for | Comments noted and discussed
public ownership, related-party throughout the below report.
relationships, and existing incentives to
accurately assess unviability.

STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014).

POLICY FRAMEWORK
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2024

Chapter 2 - Achieving sustainable development

Chapter 4 — Decision-making

Chapter 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Chapter 8 — Promoting healthy and safe communities

Chapter 9 — Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 11 — Making effective use of land

Chapter 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 14 — Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Chapter 15 — Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Determining a Planning Application
National Design Guide 2021

Context
|dentity

Built Form
Movement
Nature

Public Spaces

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 — A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP4 — Housing

LP5 — Meeting Housing Need

LP10 — Chatteris

LP13 — Supporting and Managing the Impact of a Growing District

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District

LP17 — Community Safety

Page 35



9.1

9.2

Developer Contributions SPD 2015

Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD 2016

Emerging Local Plan

The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th
August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.
Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in
accordance with Paragraph 49 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry
extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are

policies:

LP1: Settlement Hierarchy

LP2: Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development
LP4: Securing Fenland’s Future

LPS:  Health and Wellbeing

LP7: Design

LP8:  Amenity Provision

LP11: Community Safety

LP12: Meeting Housing Needs

LP20: Accessibility and Transport

LP21: Public Rights of Way

LP25: Biodiversity Net Gain

LP27: Trees and Planting

LP28: Landscape

LP30: Local Green Spaces and Other Existing Open Spaces
LP31: Open Space and Recreational Facilities

LP32: Flood and Water Management

LP46: Residential site allocations in Chatteris

LP47: Employment allocations in Chatteris

KEY ISSUES

. Principle of Development

. Loss of Affordable Housing Provision

. Amendment to Condition 7 of the Outline Permission
. Amendment to Condition 16 of the Outline Permission
o The conditions subject to which planning permission was granted
BACKGROUND

Outline planning permission was granted on 23 September 2024 for up to 80
dwellings at land east of EIm Road, Chatteris. The application was subject to a
s106 agreement which is signed and dated as of 18" September 2024 which
amongst other things sought contributions in respect of a Localised Equipped
Area of play (LEAP) and 20% affordable housing.

The application site is within the East Chatteris Strategic Allocation in the adopted
Local Plan for which a Broad Concept Plan (BCP) has been produced and
adopted, this will be discussed further in the relevant sections of the below report.

Page 36



9.3 Schedule 2 of the signed S106 agreement sets out that prior to implementation
50% of the Infrastructure contribution (£80,000) shall be paid with the other 50%
to be paid prior to occupation of any part of the development, the definitions
provided provide further clarity about where this contribution will be allocated

9.4  Schedule 3 (para 2) goes on to state that no less than 20% of the total number of
dwelling shall be affordable housing units. With para 3 setting out the tenure
(70% affordable rent and 30% shared ownership).

9.5 Schedule 4 sets out the open space, which as per the definitions includes the
LEAP, as noted above this was originally proposed to be provided on-site.
However, the developer is now proposing to provide a financial contribution
instead.

9.6 Itis also pertinent to note that Fenland Future Ltd own the land. Fenland Future is
a wholly owned subsidiary of FDC which has the objective of, amongst other
things, maximising the return to the Council as shareholder from its asset portfolio
and exploiting opportunities for acquisitions, development and commercial return
from assets and to create a delivery model that operates with a degree of
commerciality in line with aspirations that mirror the Council's Business Plans and
Commercial Investment Strategy.

10 ASSESSMENT
Principle of Development

10.1. Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 allows amendments to, or
the removal of, conditions previously applied to planning permissions.
Applications under this section require the local planning authority to consider
only the questions of the conditions under which planning permission should be
granted. Accordingly, this assessment focuses on the proposed removal of
Conditions 7 and 16 attached to planning permission F/YR22/0967/FDL.

10.2. Notwithstanding the Section 73 requirements, the proposed amendments must
be considered in the context of the wider planning permission, the East Chatteris
Broad Concept Plan, and Policies LP7 and LP10 of the Fenland District Local
Plan (2014). Each condition is considered individually below.

10.3. The application also seeks to remove the affordable housing provision on viability
grounds. While variations to affordable housing obligations can be considered at
any stage, any approval would require modifications to the associated legal
agreement, making it logical to consider under this application.

10.4. The below assessment will discuss and assess each matter in turn against
relevant considerations starting with affordable housing provision then moving on
to each condition in turn.

Removal of Affordable Housing Provision

10.5. The Courts have made it clear that there are four essential questions to be
considered when a Council determines an application to vary or discharge an
agreement after five years. It is considered that these same questions are
appropriate when a landowner requests a variation of an agreement within the
five-year period. They are set out and assessed independently as follows:

Page 37



10.6.

10.7.

10.8.

10.9.

10.10.

What is the current obligation?

The existing obligation is that the development provides an element of affordable
housing and a financial contribution calculated on a per-dwelling basis. These
obligations are not incidental; they were fundamental to the grant of outline
planning permission and represented a balance struck between allowing the
development to proceed and ensuring that its impacts on housing need and
infrastructure were properly mitigated.

This is clear from the original officer report presented to committee on 8" March
2023 with the following paragraphs of importance:

3.2 The proposal includes provision of 20% affordable units and provision of a
total of £2,000 per dwelling accordance with the Council’s own viability
assessment part of the evidence base of the emerging plan. The provision will
be proportioned between the infrastructure requirements respectively. The
contributions and affordable housing will be safeguarded by provision of a
unilateral agreement

10.11 The proposal is to provide 20% affordable and comply with the current
position following the Council’s own viability assessment. This should result in 11
affordable rented and 5 shared ownership homes to be included in the Unilateral
Agreement. This is considered to accord with Policy LP5 of the Fenland Local
Plan

In terms of other infrastructure contributions:

10.14 As the development can provide only £2,000 per plot (accepted viability in
Fenland due to the evidence base viability study undertaken as part of the
emerging plan) this excludes the library provision as proportionately would be a
meaningless amount, the remaining proportionate contributions to be included in
the Unilateral agreement are as follows: £5120 towards the George Clare
Surgery. £31,360 Early Years provision in east Chatteris, £71,680 towards
Primary school places in East Chatteris (Glebelands or Kingsfield primary
schools) £51,840 towards Secondary school at Cromwell School Total £160,000.
10.15 The Unilateral agreement shall also include provision and details of
management and maintenance of the open space and LEAP, and 20% affordable
housing subject to the final number of houses provided, a maximum of 11
affordable rented and 5 shared ownership homes

What purpose does it fulfil?

The purpose of the obligation is twofold: firstly, to secure the provision of
affordable housing as part of the development, meeting an identified need within
the local housing market; and secondly, to ensure that an appropriate financial
contribution is made to mitigate the impact of the development on local services
and infrastructure. Without these provisions, the planning permission might not
have been granted, as the scheme would otherwise fail to accord with
development plan policies on affordable housing and the delivery of necessary
infrastructure.

Does it have a useful purpose?

It is clear that the obligation continues to serve a useful purpose. The need for
affordable housing has not diminished; if anything, it remains pressing. Similarly,

Page 38



10.11.

10.12.

10.13.

10.14.

10.15.

10.16.

10.17.

financial contributions are necessary to ensure that local facilities and services
can respond to the increased demand generated by the new development. These
considerations remain material planning concerns today, just as they were at the
time the outline permission was granted. The fact that the landowner willingly
entered into the agreement in order to secure the planning consent is evidence
that the purpose was, and remains, of real significance.

Will the proposed modification equally serve the identified purpose?

The proposed modification; namely, the removal of both the affordable housing
obligation and the financial contribution, would not serve the identified purpose at
all, let alone equally. By stripping out these obligations, the development would
cease to provide affordable housing and would contribute nothing towards
mitigating its impact. The purposes identified under questions 2 and 3 would
therefore be wholly undermined. A variation in such terms cannot be said to
maintain the balance originally struck between the grant of permission and the
securing of planning obligations.

The case of R (The Garden and Leisure Group Ltd) v North Somerset Council
[2003] confirms that the statutory test under section 106A is a specific one,
distinct from the broader range of planning considerations that might otherwise be
relevant when determining a planning application. In applying this statutory test, it
is the four questions set out above that are determinative.

Taking into account the above, the original outline consent was granted on the
strength of the affordable housing provision and financial contribution. These
elements were material to the decision at the time, and they remain so today.
Removing them would not satisfy the statutory test, particularly question 4.

The preamble to Local Plan Policy LP5 makes the delivery of affordable housing
a key priority. The Strategic Housing Market Assessment (2012) identifies a need
for 3,527 affordable dwellings in the district over the plan period. To help meet
this, Policy LP5 requires that a significant proportion of new housing
developments provide affordable homes, with requirements informed by local
market conditions, identified need and viability evidence.

Policy LP5 requires affordable housing on all sites of five or more dwellings.
Larger schemes (10+ units) must provide 25%, rounded to the nearest whole
dwelling. However, to inform the preparation of Fenland's emerging Local Plan, a
Viability Assessment was undertaken which looked at the cost of building new
homes and the costs associated with the policies in this Local Plan. This report
concluded that viability in Fenland is marginal and varies between localities in the
district.

Consequently, while the Council aims to deliver policy compliant 25% affordable
Housing provision on qualifying schemes where possible, it is acknowledged that
a reduced percentage of affordable housing via planning obligations to a
maximum of 20%, will be achievable in most instances.

Provision should normally be on-site, but off-site delivery or financial contributions
may be accepted in exceptional cases. Where robust viability assessments show
full compliance is not possible, the Council will negotiate. Beyond affordable
housing, the policy promotes a balanced housing mix, including executive and
self-build homes and housing for older or disabled residents. Where viable, new

Page 39



10.18.

10.19.

10.20.

10.21.

10.22.

homes should be built to Lifetime Homes Standards to support independent
living.

Furthermore, as outlined above the site is part of the East Chatteris Strategic
Allocation, as set out in the adopted Local Plan in policy LP10 and is therefore an
urban extension. Policy LP7 covers urban extensions stating; unless unviable to
do so, LP7c) requires; ‘(c) Provide a broad range of housing choice by size and
tenure (including market and affordable housing) and cater for people with special
housing needs’

A viability survey carried out by Carter Jonas (CJ) dated February 2025, has
been submitted to support the claims the scheme would no longer be able to
provide 20% affordable housing, which concludes the viability modelling of the
site indicates that the scheme is not viable at either 20% affordable housing or
zero affordable housing.

CJ’s Financial Viability Assessment tested two scenarios. In Scenario 1, a policy-
compliant scheme with 20% affordable housing and £108,000 in S106 costs
produced a residual land value (RLV) of -£2.65m, far below their benchmark land
value (BLV) of £986,113, rendering it unviable. Scenario 2, with zero affordable
housing but the same S106 costs, still produced a negative RLV of —£1.87m,
again well below the BLV. Even with sensitivity testing, the scheme only became
viable if both costs fell by 10% and revenues rose by 10%, giving a positive RLV
of just over £1m.

For Scenario 1, CJ estimated a Gross Development Value (GDV) of £14.8m,
against Gross Development Costs (GDC) of £17.5m, including build costs,
external works, contingency, professional and abnormal costs, finance, profit and
S106 obligations. This generated the negative RLV. Their conclusion was that the
scheme is unviable both with and without affordable housing.

In accordance with procedure, the Council has had this viability assessment
independently reviewed by CP Viability Ltd (CP) whereby it was concluded that
the site would remain viable with 20% affordable housing and a financial
contribution of £108,000. However, following additional information in terms of
abnormal costings and the receipt of additional information on how these figures
were derived, a subsequent review of CJ costing and abnormal costs was
undertaken by an independent Quantity Surveyor(QS) with a further viability
review undertaken as a result of this. The following conclusions were drawn:

QS conclusion

‘In compiling our assessments and comments above we consider the total
abnormal cost to be £620,588 against the £1,308,428 included in the Financial
Viability Assessment.’

‘In compiling our comments and assessments, we consider the total estimated
cost to be £11,896,132, compared to that of £12,996,460 set out in the Financial
Viability Assessment’

CP conclusion

‘This shows that with nil affordable housing and nil S106 costs the residual land
value is (minus) -£50,994. As this is below the benchmark land value of £986,113

Page 40



this fails to meet the viability threshold, even before any planning policy
contributions are factored in.

3.2. With Thornton Firkin’s cost advice inputted, the scheme therefore is shown to
be unviable and unable to support any affordable housing or S106 contributions.
Based on this 3rd party, independent advice we now therefore agree with the
applicant that there is a justification here for removing the affordable housing /
S106 in order to give the scheme the best chance of being delivered.’

10.23. Having undertaken a comprehensive review of the applicant’s viability submission
prepared by Carter Jonas, together with the independent appraisal by CP Viability
Ltd and the subsequent cost review provided by an independent Quantity
Surveyor (Thornton Firkin), it is clear that the financial case has been subject to a
thorough and transparent level of scrutiny. The independent reviews have
examined in detail the assumptions used in the applicant’s modelling, including
development values, build costs, abnormal costs, professional fees, finance, and
developer profit.

10.24. The Quantity Surveyor’s findings identified a notable overstatement of the
abnormal and total development costs within the applicant’s original assessment.
Specifically, total abnormal costs were reduced from approximately £1.3 million to
£0.6 million, and overall scheme costs from around £13 million to £11.9 million.
When these revised figures were tested within the updated financial appraisal
undertaken by CP Viability Ltd, the scheme continued to demonstrate that it
would not achieve a viable outcome, even when assuming no affordable housing
provision or financial contributions.

10.25. On the basis of this independently verified evidence, it is accepted that the
development cannot support the provision of affordable housing or financial
contributions towards local infrastructure without becoming unviable. This
conclusion accords with national guidance set out in the National Planning Policy
Framework and Planning Practice Guidance, which recognise that planning
obligations should not be applied to the extent that they would threaten the
viability and deliverability of a development.

10.26. While it is acknowledged that the removal of affordable housing and associated
contributions would alter the balance of considerations that originally justified the
grant of planning permission, this must be weighed against the wider strategic
imperative of securing housing delivery, especially on an allocated site. The site
forms part of the East Chatteris Broad Concept Plan and is a key component of
the District’s planned growth under Policies LP7 and LP10 of the Fenland Local
Plan.

10.27. Accordingly, although the loss of affordable housing and infrastructure
contributions is regrettable, the evidence demonstrates that the development
cannot proceed if these obligations are retained. Allowing their removal is
therefore considered necessary to enable the scheme to come forward, ensuring
that housing delivery on this strategic site can be realised in accordance with both
local and national objectives to boost the supply of homes.

Amendment to Condition 7 of the Outline Permission

10.38. Outline planning permission F/YR22/0967/FDL granted approval for up to 80
dwellings on land to the east of The EIms, Chatteris. This site is part of a wider
site, which was allocated for development for around 300 dwellings as part of the

Page 41



10.39.

10.40.

10.41.

10.42.

10.43.

10.44.

Local Plan. In particular, Policy LP7 covers the strategic allocations for the District
and Policy LP10 refers to those at the edge of Chatteris. Policy LP7 is specific in
a number of requirements for development at these allocated sites, namely the
need for a Broad Concept Plan to be developed for the site prior to the
determination of planning applications for the sites.

In the case of land to the east of The Elms a Broad Concept Plan was submitted
to Fenland District Council and approved in 2017 which proposes a masterplan
for the development of the allocation. Outline permission was approved based on
the approved East Chatteris Broad Concept Plan. The allocation has come
forward for development as three separate applications and land to the east of
The Elms is the northernmost of the three. The Broad Concept Plan envisages
that the three application areas will have a vehicular access link between them.
The effect of this proposal would be to remove the need to provide a vehicular
access from this site to the site to the south and thus the wider allocation site.

Condition 7 of F/'YR22/0967/FDL is worded as follows:

The submission of a detailed layout as required by condition No 1, shall include a
vehicular access and cycleway/footpath which will abut the southern boundary of
the site enabling a future link for development of land to the south within the East
Chatteris BCP allocation.

Reason: In accordance with policy LP10 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014, and the
adopted East Chatteris BCP, and in the interests of comprehensive development.

It is proposed to remove the reference to the vehicular access, which would result
in a vehicular access between the northernmost parcel of the allocation, which
has outline planning permission for up to 80 dwellings, to no longer have
vehicular access to the site to the south. However, the condition would still
require pedestrian and cycle access between the two application sites, and thus
the allocation as a whole.

East Chatteris Broad Concept Plan Implications

Two objections to the proposed re-wording of Condition 7 of F/'YR22/0967/FDL
argue that the East Chatteris Broad Concept Plan requires vehicular access
through the whole site, effectively functioning as a spine road for the allocation.
The Broad Concept Plan intended that there would be three main vehicular
accesses into the allocated site. No access is included in the Broad Concept Plan
for the area to the east of The Elms.

It is considered that the Broad Concept Plan indicatively proposed vehicular
routes through the allocated site. However, it is noted that non-vehicular
connectivity continues to be provided, and there are arguably better outcomes for
existing residents in terms of amenity and highway safety where a vehicular route
is not introduced. The Local Highway Authority has raised no objection to this
approach. On balance, the limited non-compliance with the overall aims of the
BCP is not considered to outweigh the overall acceptability of the proposal.

Furthermore, outline planning permission F/YR22/0967/FDL was determined with
full consideration given to the Broad Concept Plan. It was accepted, given that
the proposed vehicular access to the site is from the existing highway along The
Elms to the west, that the application is not fully in accordance with the Broad
Concept Plan. There are no approved plans or documents in the outline

Page 42



10.45.

10.46.

10.47.

10.48.

10.49.

10.50.

application that propose a vehicular link to the south, neither the approved
Location Plan nor the submitted Transport Assessment. As such, as the
applicant’s own supporting information states, there appears to be no specific
reason or obvious requirement as to why vehicular access to the site to the south
would be included in Condition 7.

East Chatteris Broad Concept Plan Practicalities

As referred to above, the Movement and Connectivity diagram on Page 37 of the
Broad Concept Plan shows two potential ‘indicative new connections’ from the
land to the south of the area which is the subject of this application. They are
located around the existing watercourse and would not be practical in terms of
their location to the east of parcel, the constraints such as the existing hedgerow
and watercourse and would not function as a useable or direct route between the
two application areas.

Added to this, were a vehicular link between the two areas to be created, it could
potentially have the opposite effect to that intended by the Broad Concept Plan,
which would be rather than creating a link road/spine road, such a vehicular link
could create a dangerous ‘rat run’ for existing residents from The Elms area, or
enabling residents of the wider allocated site to use The Elms as a ‘rat run’.

Cambridgeshire County Council (CCC) Highways has been consulted on this
application and confirms that they do not object to the proposal to amend
Condition 7, which in effect removes the need for a vehicular link to the south.
They offer the following comments that ‘a southern vehicle link between this
development and the development to the south (F/YR23/0697/FDL) was not
modelled as part of the outline permission (F/YR22/0967/FDL). In the event that a
southern vehicle link was being proposed, then additional assessment of the
impacts on the local highway network would be required’.

It is concluded that ‘the outline permission was assessed by the Local Highway
Authority on the premise of a sole vehicular point of access (The EIms) and
considered accepted at that time...The proposed variation of Condition 7 would
not result in a significant impact on the public highway and is in line with the
transport assessments presented during the outline application.

Chatteris Town Council objects to the proposal based on the traffic impact on
residents of St Martins Road, Birch Avenue and The Elms. The outline
permission was granted on the basis that vehicular access to the site would be
along those roads. This proposal would do nothing to amend that situation as
assessed as part of the outline planning permission. In fact, this proposal would
ensure no further vehicular movements are generated along those roads from
traffic generated from the development to the south.

Given that the Local Highway Authority raises no objection to the proposal on
practical or highway safety grounds, that the land east of The Elms site will
function appropriately in respect of vehicular access and that the outline planning
permission (F/YR22/0967/FDL) established that the development is not fully in
accordance with the approved Broad Concept Plan it is considered that the
proposal to amend the wording of Condition 7 to remove the need for a vehicular
access to the south is acceptable and would neither be contrary to the broad
principles of the Broad Concept Plan and therefore would comply with Policies
LP7 and LP10 of the Local Plan.

Page 43



10.51.

10.52.

10.53.

10.54.

10.55.

10.56.

Amendment to Condition 16 of the Outline Permission

Condition 16 of the outline planning permission requires a Locally Equipped Area
of Play (LEAP) to be provided on site as part of this development. The condition
is worded as follows:

Notwithstanding the indicative layout submitted with the application, the
submission of a detailed layout as required by condition No 1, shall include
details of a LEAP to be provided. The submission shall include full details of
specifications and layout of the play area, management and maintenance and a
timetable for delivery. The development shall be carried out only in accordance
with the approved details.

Reason: In the interest of satisfactory development and in accordance with policy
LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

The applicant proposes to remove the condition from the permission entirely. As
the application is in outline the amount of open space required will be determined
at reserved matters stage and the removal of this condition would not affect the
amount of open space required, just whether it has play equipment as part of it.
The applicant has proposed to provide a financial contribution to an existing play
facility in the vicinity for upgrades and improvements in lieu of the LEAP required
by condition.

The application site measures 3.59 hectares and therefore, in accordance with
Policies LP7, LP10 and LP16 of the Local Plan, Appendix B requires the proposal
to provide 1,436sgm of informal and equipped play space. The applicant accepts
that the effect of this application would mean that no equipped play space would
be proposed, but as stated above a financial contribution would be made for
improvements to play equipment nearby.

The applicant states in their submission that 1.75ha of open space would be
provided in the submitted reserved matters application, which amounts to ten
times the requirement set out in the Local Plan. However, there are no conditions
within the outline application requiring this and this is therefore a matter for
consideration as part of the reserved matters application for this site.

Both Fenland District Council’s Leisure and Open Spaces Manager and the s106
Monitoring Officer have been consulted on the proposal and have confirmed that
there is no objection to a financial contribution towards the upgrade or
improvement of equipment at a nearby play space in lieu of an on-site LEAP. The
Leisure and Open Spaces Manager has proposed that the contribution could
make improvements to the existing facilities at the Wenny Recreation Ground.
The Leisure and Open Spaces Manager has advised that a contribution of
£67,000 is required for improvements. This would fund the replacement of older
play equipment with modern items, upgrade outdated fencing to secure, family-
friendly designs, and carry out a general overhaul to ensure the facility remains fit
for use for the next 15 years. Due to the high cost of open space and play
equipment, a full-scale replacement is not feasible or reasonable.

It is considered that not only would this ensure that an equivalent improvement is
delivered for local residents, but it would also mean that residents of this
development site would benefit from it, as the Wenny Recreation Ground is less
than 10 minutes’ walk from the application site.

Page 44



10.57. No objections have been received to the proposal for a financial contribution
towards the improvement of a nearby play space in lieu of an on-site LEAP. As
such, the removal of this condition is considered to accord with Policies LP7,
LP10 and LP16 of the Local Plan.

10.58. A Deed of Variation to the existing s106 agreement will therefore be necessary to
secure the financial contribution.

LEAP and Viability

10.59. As a result of this variation of conditions application, an additional financial
contribution would ultimately be required, as outlined above. It is recognised that
the viability assessments undertaken by both Carter Jonas and CP Viability Ltd
did not make specific allowance for this additional contribution. However, this
omission is not considered to materially alter the overall conclusions reached in
either assessment. Both appraisals included provision for the Local Equipped
Area for Play (LEAP), with Carter Jonas allocating a sum of £32,550 for this
purpose, and CP Viability Ltd accepting this figure as a reasonable allowance
within the overall cost assumptions and abnormal cost items.

10.60. It is further acknowledged that the contribution requested by the Council’s Leisure
Services Manager exceeds the £32,550 allowance identified within the submitted
viability evidence. This has been accepted by the Applicant with no concerns
raised upon the impact on viability and therefore, there are no concerns in this
respect.

Other Matters Raised during consultation

10.61. The Local Planning Authority notes the objections raised regarding the
application, which can be grouped under site ownership, developer relationships,
viability, policy compliance, and local impacts. It is accepted that the site is
publicly owned, having been transferred from Chatteris Urban Council to FDC
and subsequently to FFL, a wholly owned subsidiary. Objecting comments advise
that FFL’s partnership with Lovell means that the landowner and developer roles
are closely interrelated, contrary to the arm’s-length assumptions made in the
submitted viability assessment. Concerns regarding the viability assessment are
acknowledged, including the treatment of the land as privately owned, the
potentially high Existing Use Value for dormant grassland, and an excessive
landowner premium, which may overstate the scheme’s unviability. As discussed
in preceding sections of this report, the VA has been independently assessed and
therefore, it is not considered to prejudice the determination of this application in
any respect.

10.62. The site forms part of the East Chatteris Strategic Allocation, and policies LP7
and LP10 require a broad housing mix, including affordable housing. Objecting
comments state that given the site’s public ownership and discounted transfer,
there is a clear public expectation that the development should deliver tangible
community benefits, particularly affordable housing. This is considered to be
adequately addressed within the relevant section of the above report.

Reimposition of previous conditions

10.63. As this application relates solely to the variation of one condition and the removal
of another, and neither change has any wider implications for the remaining

Page 45



conditions attached to the original permission, all other conditions will be retained
in full, as is standard for an application of this nature.

11. CONCLUSION

11.1. Taking into account the findings of the preceding assessment, it is considered
that the independently reviewed viability evidence prepared by CP Viability Ltd,
supported by the cost verification undertaken by an independent Quantity
Surveyor, provides a robust and transparent basis for decision-making. The
evidence confirms that, even when applying realistic and independently verified
assumptions for build costs, sales values, contingency, and finance, the
development is unable to generate a viable outcome while accommodating the
previously required 20% on-site affordable housing and £108,000 in infrastructure
contributions.

11.2. This conclusion contrasts with the initial position taken during the original grant of
permission, where the scheme was deemed capable of supporting those
obligations. However, the updated viability testing, reflecting current construction
costs, market conditions, and abnormal site requirements, demonstrates that
these assumptions are no longer achievable. The independent appraisal has
verified that the inclusion of affordable housing or financial contributions would
render the scheme unviable, even under favourable sensitivity scenarios.

11.3. Accordingly, it is accepted that the applicant’s position is substantiated by
credible, independently tested evidence. On this basis, it is concluded that the
removal of the affordable housing and financial contributions is justified in order to
ensure the deliverability of the development, consistent with the objectives of both
local and national planning policy to maintain housing delivery on allocated sites.

11.4. Furthermore, the proposed amendment to Condition 7 is considered acceptable.
The site will still provide pedestrian and cycle connectivity between parcels,
preserving movement through the wider allocation. The Local Highway Authority
has raised no objection, noting that the original outline permission assessed the
site with a single vehicular access from The EIms. The indicative nature of the
Broad Concept Plan does not mandate a vehicular link, and practical constraints
such as hedgerows and watercourses would make such a link unfeasible or
potentially unsafe. This amendment therefore aligns with the broad principles of
the East Chatteris Broad Concept Plan and complies with Policies LP7 and LP10
of the Local Plan.

11.5. Similarly in terms of the amendment to Condition 16, the removal of the on-site
LEAP is considered acceptable, subject to a financial contribution of £67,000 to
upgrade nearby facilities at Wenny Recreation Ground. This contribution will fund
the replacement of outdated play equipment, the installation of secure and family-
friendly fencing, and a general overhaul to ensure the facility remains fit for use
over the next 15 years. Given the prohibitive costs of full-scale on-site provision,
this approach represents a reasonable, deliverable, and community-led solution.
It ensures that residents of the development benefit from equivalent recreational
provision within walking distance, and it complies with Policies LP7, LP10, and
LP16 of the Local Plan.

12 RECOMMENDATION

Page 46



Members are recommended to APPROVE the application in accordance with
the following terms;

1. The Committee delegates authority to finalise the terms and
completion of the s106 legal agreement and planning conditions to the
Head of Planning; and,

2. Following the completion of the s106 application F/'YR25/0258/VOC
be approved subject to planning conditions set out below; or,

3. The Committee delegates authority to refuse the application in the
event that the Applicant does not agree to any necessary extensions
to the determination period to enable the completion of the s106 legal
agreement, or on the grounds that the applicant is unwilling to
complete the obligation necessary to make the development
acceptable

1

Approval of the details of:

i. the layout of the site

ii. the scale of the building(s);

iii. the external appearance of the building(s);
iv. the landscaping

(hereinafter called "the Reserved Matters") shall be obtained from the
Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development.

Reason - To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the details
of the development hereby permitted.

Application for approval of the Reserved Matters shall be made to the
Local Planning Authority before 23rd September 2027

Reason - To ensure compliance with Section 92 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

The residential elements of the development shall be up to and no
more than 80 dwellings (Use Class C3). 80 dwellings shall depend on
the submission of an acceptable layout at the submission of reserved
matters stage. No layout of 80 dwellings has been accepted by the
granting of this outline permission.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory
standard of development

Prior to the commencement of development, a Construction
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall
include the consideration of the following aspects of construction:

a) Site wide construction programme

b) Contractors' access arrangements for vehicles, plant and
personnel including the location of construction traffic routes to, from
and within the site, details of their signing, monitoring and
enforcement measures, along with location of parking for contractors
and construction workers

c) Construction hours and delivery times for construction purposes
d) Maximum noise mitigation levels for construction equipment, plant
and vehicles

Page 47



e) Dust suppression management including

1, identification of person responsible for air quality and dust issues
2, the recording of dust and air quality complaints

3, to undertake appropriate measures to reduce emissions in a timely
manner

4, An agreement for dust deposition, dust flux, or real-time particulate
matter monitoring locations with the Local Authority including baseline
monitoring before work commences

5, machinery and dust causing activities to be located away from
receptors

6, Wheel washing measures to prevent the deposition of debris on the
highway and the general environment

f) Site lighting

g) Location of Contractors compound and method of moving
materials, plant and equipment around the site

h) Details and locations of hoardings

The CEMP shall be implemented in accordance with the agreed
details unless minor variations are otherwise agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of safe operation of the highway and
protection of residential amenity, in accordance with policies LP15,
LP16 and LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

The submission of a detailed layout as required by condition No 1,
shall include a noise mitigation scheme. This shall be in accordance
with details set out within the submitted noise assessment under the
terms of application F/'YR22/0967/FDL and shall have regard to the
internal and external noise levels as stipulated in British standard
8223:2014 Guidance on sound insulation and noise reduction for
buildings and the World Health Organisation (WHO) Guidelines for
Community Noise.

The noise mitigation scheme shall confirm 'final' details of:

a) the fagade mitigation performance having regard to the building
fabric, glazing and ventilation

b) mitigation measures to reduce the level of noise experienced
externally

The scheme shall be carried out as approved before the residential
properties are occupied and shall be retained thereafter.

Reason: In the interests of safeguarding the amenity of future
residents of the dwellings and in accordance with Policy LP16(l) of the
Fenland Local Plan 2014.

Prior to the commencement of development, a scheme and timetable
to deal with contamination of land and/or groundwater shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.
The approved scheme and timetable shall then be implemented on
site. The scheme shall include all of the following measures unless
the Local Planning Authority dispenses with any such requirement
specifically and in writing:

a) A written method statement for the remediation of land and or
groundwater contamination affecting the site. This shall be based
upon the findings of a phase 2 site investigation and results of the

Page 48



phase 1 risk assessment (Geo-Environmental Desk Top Study
B030853). This shall include the following:

Assessing ground conditions to determine the contamination status at
the site (particularly the north of the site);

Carrying out groundwater and ground gas monitoring;

Assessing ground conditions to inform foundation design, including
the depth of the infilled pond;

Assessing the presence or absence of shallow groundwater;
Assessing potential suitability of the site for infiltration drainage; and
Undertaking chemical characterisation of soils in the event they are to
be reused or disposed of off-site (e.g., foundation arisings).

b) No deviation shall be made from this scheme without the express
written agreement of the Local Planning Authority.

¢) The provision of two full copies of a full completion report
confirming the objectives, methods, results and conclusions of all
remediation works, together with any requirements for longer-term
monitoring and pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for
contingency action shall be submitted and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To control pollution of land or water in the interests of the
environment and public safety in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework, in particular paragraph 189, and policy
LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

The submission of a detailed layout as required by condition No 1,
shall include a cycleway/footpath which will abut the southern
boundary of the site enabling a future link for development of land to
the south within the East Chatteris BCP allocation.

Reason: In accordance with policy LP10 of the Fenland Local Plan
2014, and the adopted East Chatteris BCP, and in the interests of
comprehensive development.

The submission of a detailed layout as required by condition No 1,
shall include as part of the reserved matters, the principal vehicular
access into the site being from The Elms, with an emergency vehicle
access provided from Green Park.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure the reserved
matters accords with the supporting Transport Assessment and
supporting evidence within this outline planning permission and in
accordance with policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

Prior to the commencement of development, a Public Rights of Way
scheme shall be submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning
Authority in consultation with the Local Highway Authority. Such
scheme shall include provision for:

a)the design of public rights of way routes, their surfacing, widths,
gradients, landscaping and structures.

b)any proposals for diversion and closure of public rights of way and
alternative route provision

Reason: In the interests of amenity and the safety of the public, in
accordance with policies LP15, LP16 and LP17 of the Fenland Local
Plan 2014.

10

Prior to the commencement of the development a scheme and
timetable for the provision of fire hydrants shall be submitted to, and

Page 49




agreed in writing by, the Local Planning Authority in consultation with
the Chief Fire Officer and provision of the fire hydrants shall be made
in accordance with the scheme and timetable.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development, in accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework.

11

No laying of services, creation of hard surfaces or erection of a
building shall commence until a detailed surface water drainage
scheme for the site, based on the agreed Flood Risk Assessment &
Drainage Strategy prepared by Tetra Tech Limited (ref: 784-B030853)
dated February 2023 as submitted and approved under the terms of
application F/YR22/0967/FDL, has been submitted to, and approved
in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
subsequently be implemented in full accordance with the approved
details prior to occupation of the first dwelling.

Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding, to improve and
protect water quality, and improve habitat and amenity and in
accordance with policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

12

The surface water drainage scheme, as required by condition No 11,
shall include details of the existing ground levels (in relation to an
existing datum point) within the application site and on land
surrounding the application site, and details of the proposed finished
ground levels of the development. The development shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory method of surface water drainage
and to prevent the increased risk of flooding, in accordance with
policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

13

Details for the long-term maintenance arrangements for the surface
water drainage system (including all SuDS features) shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority
prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby permitted.
The submitted details should identify runoff sub-catchments, SuDS
components, control structures, flow routes and outfalls. In addition,
the plan must clarify the access that is required to each surface water
management component for maintenance purposes. The
maintenance plan shall be carried out in full thereafter.

Reason: In the interest of satisfactory development and for the
avoidance of flooding, in accordance with policy LP14 of the Fenland
Local Plan 2014.

14

No development, including preparatory works, shall commence until
details of measures indicating how additional surface water run-off
from the site will be avoided during the construction works have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The applicant may be required to provide collection, balancing and/or
settlement systems for these flows. The approved measures and
systems shall be brought into operation before any works to create
buildings or hard surfaces commence.

Reason: To ensure surface water is managed appropriately during
the construction phase of the development, so as not to increase the
flood risk to adjacent land/properties or occupied properties within the
development itself; recognising that initial works to prepare the site

Page 50




could bring about unacceptable impacts and in accordance with policy
LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014,

15

Upon completion of the surface water drainage system, including any
attenuation ponds and swales, and prior to their adoption by a
statutory undertaker or management company; a survey and report
from an independent surveyor shall be submitted to, and approved in
writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The survey and report shall
be carried out by an appropriately qualified Chartered Surveyor or
Chartered Engineer and demonstrate that the surface water drainage
system has been constructed in accordance with the details approved
under the planning permission. Where necessary, details of corrective
works to be carried out along with a timetable for their completion,
shall be included for approval in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Any corrective works required shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved timetable and subsequently re-
surveyed by an independent surveyor, with their findings submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the effective operation of the surface water
drainage scheme following construction of the development, in
accordance with policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

16

No development shall take place until a Construction Environmental
Management Plan (CEMP: Biodiversity) has been submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP
(Biodiversity) shall include the following:

a) Summary of potentially damaging activities.

b) Identification of "biodiversity protection zones".

c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working
practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be
provided as a set of method statements) including ensuring no Non-
Native Invasive Species are spread across the site.

d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to
biodiversity features.

e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to
be present on site to oversee works.

f) Responsible persons and lines of communication.

g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works
(ECoW) or similarly competent person.

h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs.

The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented
throughout the construction period strictly in accordance with the
approved details, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interest of biodiversity and the safeguarding of
protected species and in accordance with policy LP19 of the Fenland
Local Plan 2014.

17

No development shall take place (including any demolition, ground
works) until a method statement for reptile translocation has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.
The content of the method statement shall include the:

a) purpose and objectives for the proposed works;

Page 51



b) detailed design(s) and/or working method(s) necessary to achieve
stated objectives (including, where relevant, type and source of
materials to be used);

c) extent and location of proposed works shown on appropriate scale
maps and plans;

e) persons responsible for implementing the works;

f) initial aftercare and long-term maintenance, as applicable;

g) disposal of any wastes arising from works, as applicable.

The works shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the
approved details and shall be retained in that manner thereafter.

Reason: In the interest of biodiversity and the safeguarding of
protected species and in accordance with policy LP19 of the Fenland
Local Plan 2014.

18

No external lighting shall be erected until, a "lighting design strategy
for biodiversity" for all lighting across the site has been submitted to,
and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The strategy
shall:

a) identify those areas/features on site that are particularly sensitive
for ecological constraints that are likely to cause disturbance in or
around their breeding sites and resting places or along important
routes used to access key areas of their territory, for example, for
foraging; and

b) show how and where external lighting will be installed (through the
provision of appropriate lighting contour plans and technical
specifications) so that it can be clearly demonstrated that areas to be
lit will not disturb or prevent the above species using their territory or
having access to their breeding sites and resting places.

All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the
specifications and locations set out in the strategy, and these shall be
maintained thereafter in accordance with the strategy. Under no
circumstances should any other external lighting be installed without
prior consent from the local planning authority.

Reason: In the interest of biodiversity and the safeguarding of
protected species and in accordance with policy LP19 of the Fenland
Local Plan 2014.

19

Details to be included in accordance with condition 1 shall include the
soft landscaping of the site. The scheme shall include the following
details:

a) Planting plans to all public areas including a tree lined avenue next
to the watercourse, retained hedge and trees in accordance with the
Arboricultural report, species, numbers, size and density of planting
with screen planting adjacent to site boundaries for existing nearby
residents.

b) Placement, type and number of any recommended biodiversity
enhancements.

c) Management and maintenance details and a timetable for planting,

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted

Page 52




details.

Any trees, shrubs or hedges forming part of the approved landscaping
scheme (except those contained in enclosed rear gardens to
individual dwellings) that die, are removed or become diseased within
five years of the implementation of the landscaping scheme shall be
replaced during the next available planting season by the developers,
or their successors in title with an equivalent size, number and
species to those being replaced. Any replacement trees, shrubs or
hedgerows dying within five years of planting shall themselves be
replaced with an equivalent size, number and species.

Reason: In the interest of amenity and biodiversity of the area and in
accordance with policies LP16 and LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan
2014.

20

Prior to the commencement of any works or storage of materials on
the site, all trees that are to be retained shall be protected in
accordance with British Standard 5837:2012. Moreover, measures for
protection in accordance with that standard shall be implemented and
shall be maintained to the Local Planning Authority's reasonable
satisfaction until the completion of the development for Building
Regulations purposes.

Reason: To ensure that retained trees are adequately protected, in
accordance with policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

21

Prior to first occupation of the development, the developer shall be
responsible for the provision and implementation of Welcome Travel
Packs to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. The
Welcome Travel Packs shall include the provision of bus taster tickets
and/or cycle discount vouchers. The Welcome Travel Packs shall be
provided to residents upon first occupation of each dwelling.

Reason: In the interests of sustainable travel and in accordance with
policy LP15 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

22

The details submitted in accordance with condition No 1 of this
permission shall accord with the recommendations in the Tree Survey
report as submitted under the terms of application F/'YR22/0967/FDL
(Job Number: B030853, Revision V2.0, Recommendations section
5.0 - 5.3) and shall include submission of an Arboricultural Impact
Assessment, a Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method
Statement.

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the development is
satisfactory and that it contributes to the visual character and amenity
of the area and to protect the character of the site, in accordance with
policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

23

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans and documents:

Page 53



T—
N
Ly R
1 LY
\ \
\\‘| |\‘I
i Vi
AT
\ \
\“I |\‘I
iy Vi
R
\ Vi
Vo
Lok
! N
[
| N
v
o
\
I
|
Pk
[
Vo
|
o
R
b
|
o
Co
i
' e
[
|
[
|
v
i
R
T
1 ! L
o
N ! o0
0oah
[
! o
Y
NI
coa
b
' I ’
i
i
s
'Il IIl
s
,Il I’l
sy
'Il lIl
s
clrony
K )
R
Lot
'I,l ,II'I
h
Jrioag
'I', [
I
I’Il III
h
Il A ,IIII
:III Iyl
SN
A
A YN
Sl
S
T U 1
Sl
h
A
)
,’/' S
. ' ’
._-'/ N :Il«'
5
Z ),
PR ':'/—~._
,'/// I
’ : ’
I/l/ 1//'
4 1//1'
II/I v/
Pl g,y
S,
ATy
STy
7, ://'l
Yy
ol g
QP
S
1) ///,' =
G
VA
SRS
7,7 B
N
7,
. f
,’b)//// 2
6O L (oD
\'@ riker
,
K
// //
R
R
/// //
E
K
S
R
,
//////
/// //
/// //
’ ,/
7
0
CAMBRIDGESHIRE

Created on: 03/04/2025

© Crown Copyright and database
rights 2025 Ordnance Survey 10023778

F/YR25/0258/VOC
Scale = 1:2,500

Fenland District Council

Page 54




Agenda Iltem 6

F/YR25/0347/F

Applicant: Mr Chris White Agent: Mr G Boreham

Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd

20 Nene Parade, March, Cambridgeshire, PE15 8TD

Erect 2x self-build/custom build dwellings involving demolition of existing
dwelling and garage within a Conservation Area

Officer recommendation: Approve

Reason for Committee: Deferral from 25t June 2025 Committee

1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This application proposes the redevelopment of a site within the March

1.2 While the resulting design does not wholly reflect the traditional character of Nene

1.3 The development is judged to accord with relevant Local Plan policies and

Conservation Area to provide two self-build dwellings. The scheme has
undergone significant design revision following Committee deferral in June 2025,
and subsequent engagement with the Conservation Officer. Amendments include
reductions in scale, revised roof pitches, narrowed dormers, removal of an integral
garage and adjustments to improve proportions and the relationship with
surrounding development.

Parade, the existing dwelling is itself uncharacteristic and the revised scheme now
sits more comfortably within its context. No substantial harm to the detriment of
the Character and Appearance of the Conservation Area is identified. The delivery
of two self-build dwellings offers minor additional benefit, despite the Council
already meeting local self-build demand.

national planning guidance.

2.1

2.2

Update

On 25 June 2025, Committee members resolved to defer the application to allow
officers to work with the Agent to secure a scheme acceptable in terms of design
and its impact on the character and appearance of the site and its surroundings.
The original officers report is appended to this update.

Following this, discussions took place in liaison with the Conservation Officer,
resulting in a series of revisions. These seek to balance the requirements and
aspirations of the Applicant with the statutory duty to preserve and enhance the
Conservation Area.

2.3 The design has subsequently been amended in the following ways:

e A detached garage introduced to serve Plot 1 (previously integral)

Page 55



2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

e Reduction in the overall width and depth of both dwellings.

e Narrowing of dormer windows.

e Reduction from double to single garages.

e Steeper roof pitches.

e Minor adjustment to the red line boundary to reflect ownership accurately.
e Addition of a gable projection to the rear elevation of each dwelling.

e Addition of a chimney to Plot 2.

e Proposed materials now include Weinerberger Weathered Gault blend brick,
Lincoln Clay interlocking pantile and Cedral cladding, with Plot 1 to have a
green door and Plot 2 to have a blue door.

As amended, each dwelling would now have a maximum height of 7.67 m, a width
of 8.53 m and a maximum depth of 11.4 m (including the gabled rear projection).
Previously, the dwellings had a maximum height of 7.75 m, with Plot 1 measuring
8.1 m by 10.7 m and Plot 2 measuring 8.5 m by 10.7 m.

Consultations

A statutory re-consultation was undertaken and the following comments were
received:

FDC Conservation Officer:

The increased width is welcome and more proportionate but | still consider that the
scheme would appear significantly better as a connected pair, thereby reflecting
the characteristic rows of cottages that front Nene Parade and West End.

A low level of less than substantial harm is identified in accordance with paragraph
213 of the NPPF, which requires clear and convincing justification for any harm to
the significance of a designated heritage asset. While the existing dwelling
provides limited contribution to the Conservation Area, the revised scheme still
falls short of fully conserving and enhancing the area or making a positive
contribution as required by paragraph 210. In particular, opportunities to achieve a
more traditional form and proportion, including reduced gable depths and a more
characteristic connected appearance, have not been explored within the design.
Notwithstanding this, certain material choices are acceptable in principle and
detailed elements can be refined to better reflect local character.

Local Residents

An additional objection comment has been received from a resident on Elwyn
Road and is summarised below:

Objecting Comments Officer Response
Out of character with the surrounding Comments noted and discussed within
Conservation Area, particularly along the original officers report and below.

Nene Parade.

The objector considers that insufficient Comments noted.
weight has been given to the

Page 56




4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Conservation Officer’s professional

advice.
They dispute the Agent’s claim that the Comments noted and discussed within
proposal is inspired by existing the original officers report and below.

traditional and modern dwellings, noting
that properties in this location are
generally wider and positioned on, or
very close to, the highway boundary.

It is argued that approval of the current Comments noted and discussed within
layout would undermine the effective the original officers report and below.
application of Conservation Area policies
and guidance in the future.

In contrast, the proposed dwellings Comments noted and discussed within
would be set back approximately 5.9—6 | the original officers report and below.
metres, which is considered inconsistent
with the prevailing street scene.

Reference is made to previous Comments noted.
consultations from the Conservation
Officer raising similar concerns and
highlighting the statutory duty to
preserve and enhance the character and
appearance of the March Conservation
Area.

ASSESSMENT

Given that the proposed amendments relate solely to the design and scale of the
dwellings, it is not considered that they materially affect other planning
considerations. These include the principle of development, neighbouring amenity,
amenity for future occupiers, landscaping and ecology, parking and highway
safety, flood risk or biodiversity net gain, as assessed within the original report
appended to this update. The proposal is therefore reassessed below on design
grounds only.

Design and Impact on Character and Appearance of the Area

Policies LP12 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan, sets out several criterions in
which proposals are required to meet, to ensure that high quality environments are
provided and protected. Policy LP12 focuses on development in rural areas with
Policy LP16 focusing specifically on design criterion. This stance is also supported
by Policy H2 of the March Neighbourhood Plan. The site sits within the March
Conservation Area and therefore the requirements of Policy LP18 in respect of
preserving and enhancing the special character of the Conservation Area are
relevant.

Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
requires Local Planning Authorities when considering development to pay special
attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance
of a conservation area.

The surrounding area is characterised by residential development, including single-
storey cottages with attic dormers and two-storey terraced properties. Surrounding
dwellings generally abut the road and occupy relatively narrow, long plots. The
existing site is somewhat unusual given its scale, form and set-back from Nene

Page 57




Parade. It sits at odds with the 1.5 and 2-storey traditional cottages that stand
directly on the back edge of the footway and which give Nene Parade its distinctive
character. The existing building is a mid-twentieth century bungalow and is not
considered architecturally or historically significant.

4.5 The proposed dwellings have been revised to address previously raised design
concerns. In particular, the removal of the integral garage from Plot 1 and its
replacement with a detached structure provides a more active and positive
frontage. The overall width and depth of both dwellings have been reduced and the
dormers have been narrowed, improving their proportion within the roofscape. The
change from double to single garages further reduces visual dominance and
incongruity.

4.6 Steeper roof pitches have addressed the earlier shallow, chalet-style appearance
and now better reflect the established character of Nene Parade. The overall
dimensions of the buildings have also been reduced.

4.7 Collectively, these amendments improve the relationship of the scheme with its
surroundings, allowing the dwellings to better reflect the scale, rhythm and
proportions of nearby development. However, opportunities to further reinforce the
traditional form, including reducing gable depths and adopting a more
characteristic connected appearance, have not been fully realised. As such, the
design does not wholly align with the expectations of paragraph 210 of the NPPF,
which seeks development that conserves and enhances the Conservation Area
and makes a positive contribution to local character.

4.8 Notwithstanding this, the resulting harm is assessed as low less than substantial,
consistent with paragraph 213 of the NPPF, which requires clear and convincing
justification for any harm to a designated heritage asset. Given the limited
contribution of the existing dwelling and the improvements secured alongside the
provision of two additional self-build dwellings which also carries minor positive
weight, despite the Council meeting its current self-build obligations, it is
considered on balance, that this low level of harm is outweighed by benefits.

4.9 On balance, whilst the development is considered to result in a low level of less
than substantial harm to the character or appearance of the Conservation Area, it
is considered that the minor benefits of two additional self-build dwellings,
alongside securing architectural detailing and materials would weigh in favour of
the scheme, and therefore the proposal complies with Policies LP16 and LP18 of
the Fenland Local Plan and relevant paragraphs of the NPPF.

4.10 Given the sensitive nature of the area, it is considered necessary and reasonable
to impose conditions removing permitted development rights relating to extensions
and roof alterations for each dwelling. This will ensure that any future works of this
nature can be appropriately assessed, particularly in relation to their impact on the
character and appearance of the conservation area and on neighbouring amenity.

Other Matters

Unilateral Undertaking

4.11 Recent appeal decisions have consistently dismissed proposals where there was
no enforceable mechanism in place to ensure that the approved dwelling would be
delivered and occupied as a genuine self-build or custom-build project. These

Page 58



decisions reinforce the importance of securing the self-build nature of such
developments through a legally binding agreement.

4.12 In line with best practice and national policy guidance, it is therefore considered

essential that a legal agreement; typically in the form of a Section 106 obligation, is
secured to guarantee the delivery of the dwelling as self-build. Without such a
mechanism, there is no means by which the Council can ensure the dwelling will
meet the requirements of self-build housing as defined by the Self-Build and
Custom Housebuilding Act 2015 (as amended).

4.13 As the application is recommended for approval, discussions have taken place

5.1

between the Officer and Agent to secure this obligation. However, in the interests
of expediency, this does not prevent the Committee from reaching a decision,
subject to completion of the agreement.

CONCLUSIONS

Overall, on balance, the less than substantial harm identified is considered to be
outweighed by the minor benefits associated with the provision of two self-build
dwellings and the design improvements secured through the revision of the
scheme. While the proposal does not fully replicate the traditional character of the
surrounding built form, the existing dwelling is similarly unreflective of local
vernacular and the amended design reduces the extent of harm to a low level. In
this context, the proposal considered to comply with Policies LP16 and LP18 of the
Fenland Local Plan and the relevant provisions of the NPPF.

RECOMMENDATION

Approve, subject to the completion of a legal agreement securing the Self-Build
and Custom nature of development and the following conditions or refuse
permission if the legal agreement is not completed within 6 months from the date
of this committee:

1. | The development permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 3 years
from the date of this permission.

Reason - To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2 | No development shall commence until a detailed Arboricultural Method
Statement and Tree Protection Plan, in accordance with BS5837:2012, have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The submitted details shall set out the measures to ensure the protection of all
trees to be retained throughout the construction period, including the type and
position of protective fencing and the means by which tree protection will be
monitored and maintained.

The development shall thereafter be carried out in full accordance with the
approved Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan, and all protective
measures shall remain in place for the duration of the construction works.

Reason: To ensure adequate protection of retained trees and to safeguard the
character and appearance of the area, in accordance with Policies LP16 and

Page 59




LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014).

The external materials of the development shall be carried out in full
accordance with the details set out within the submitted documents,
specifically:

Wienerberger Weathered Gault Blend brick
Marley Lincoln Rustic Red roof tiles

The development shall be completed using these materials unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development and to
preserve the character and appearance of the March Conservation Area, in
accordance with Policy LP18 of the Fenland Local Plan.

Notwithstanding Condition 3, the dormer faces and cheeks shall be finished in
lead and shall not be clad in uPVC. In addition, the mortar used in all
brickwork shall be a cream-coloured mix reflecting the characteristics of
traditional lime mortar and shall not comprise grey cement.

Reason: To preserve the special architectural and historic character of the
March Conservation Area in accordance with the Planning (Listed Buildings
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) and Policy LP18 of the
Fenland Local Plan 2014.

Prior to their inclusion in the development hereby approved, details of
windows and doors shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the LPA.
The proposed works shall be carried out in accordance with the details as
approved and retained as such, in perpetuity.

The details should include manufacturers specification (inc. elevation and
cross sections) and colour.

Reason: In order to preserve the special architectural and historic character of
the March Conservation Area and in accordance with the provisions of the
Town and Country Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 (as amended) and Policy LP18 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

Prior to the first occupation of the development, details of two bat roosting
boxes, including their design, specification and locations on the site, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved bat roosting boxes shall be installed prior to first occupation of the
dwellings and shall be retained and maintained thereafter for the lifetime of the
development.

Reason: To protect and enhance biodiversity in line with policies LP16 and
LP19 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until the parking spaces and
associated vehicular access to the adjoining highway serving that specific
dwelling have been provided in accordance with the approved plans, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The parking
spaces provided shall thereafter be retained for the use of occupiers and
visitors of the respective dwelling in perpetuity.

Reason: To ensure adequate space for parking off the highway is provided in
the interest of highway safety, in accordance with Policy LP15 of the Fenland
Local Development Plan

Page 60



Elevational windows (whether sash or casement) shall be set back into their
reveals from the front face of the brickwork by at least 50mm.

Reason: In order to preserve the special architectural and historic character of
the March Conservation Area and in accordance with the provisions of the
Town and Country Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 (as amended) and Policy LP18 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

The brick lintels above elevational windows and doors shall be gauged brick
arches maintaining the curvature to the underside as detailed on the drawings.

Reason: In order to preserve the special architectural and historic character of
the March Conservation Area and in accordance with the provisions of the
Town and Country Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 (as amended) and Policy LP18 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

10

Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town & Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order amending,
revoking or re-enacting that Order) no dormer window alteration or other form
of addition or opening shall be constructed in the roof or gable walls of the
buildings hereby permitted without planning permission having been obtained
from the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority retains control over the
future extension and alteration of the development, in the interests of its
architectural and visual integrity and character of this part of the conservation
area in which it is set and to prevent overlooking of neighbouring properties, in
the interest of the protection of residential amenity in accordance with Policy
LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan 2014.

11

Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town & Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order amending,
revoking or re-enacting that Order) no garages, extensions or separate
buildings (other than ancillary outbuildings not exceeding 10 cubic metres in
volume) shall be erected within the site without planning permission having
been obtained from the local planning authority.

Reasons: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority retains control over the
future extension and alteration of the development, in the interests of its
architectural and visual integrity and character of this part of the conservation
area in which it is set in accordance with Policies LP16 and LP18 of the
Fenland Local Plan 2014.

10

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans and documents

Page 61



Appendix A

F/YR25/0347/F
Applicant: Mr Chris White Agent: Mr G Boreham
Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd
20 Nene Parade, March, Cambridgeshire, PE15 8TD

Erect 2x self-build/custom build dwellings involving demolition of existing
dwelling and garage within a Conservation Area

Officer recommendation: Refuse

Reason for Committee: Number of representations contrary to Officer
recommendation

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This application seeks full planning permission for the demolition of an existing
five-bedroom bungalow on Nene Parade, March, and its replacement with two
chalet-style bungalows. The site lies within the March Conservation Area and is
located in a sustainable location within Flood Zone 1.

1.2 While the principle of residential development is supported by both the Fenland
Local Plan and the March Neighbourhood Plan, the proposed design is
considered to lack architectural merit and fails to respond positively to the historic
character of the conservation area. The scale, form, and detailing—particularly the
use of shallow-pitched roofs, oversized dormers, and integral garages—are not
reflective of the traditional built form along Nene Parade. As such, the proposal is
considered contrary to Policies LP16 and LP18 of the Local Plan and relevant
sections of the NPPF (2024), which seek to protect and enhance the special
character of the Conservation Area.

1.3 Other aspects of the proposal, including residential amenity, flood risk, ecology,
and highways, raise no significant concerns. However, these do not outweigh the
identified harm to the character and appearance of the conservation area.

1.4 Accordingly, the application is recommended for refusal.

2  SITE DESCRIPTION

2.1 The application site sits to the northern side of Nene Parade and falls within the
March Conservation Area. The site is currently occupied by a large, detached
bungalow with a detached garage to the western boundary. The existing dwelling
benefits from five bedrooms, a kitchen, dining room and living room. The existing
dwelling is not listed. To the south of the site is the River Nene and to the west is a
public footpath. The surrounding area is predominately residential in nature
consisting or terrace dwellings fronting the Road.

Page 62



2.2 The site sits in Flood Zone 1 and the March Conservation Area.
3 PROPOSAL

3.1 Planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing bungalow and
garage and the construction of two residential chalet-style bungalows on the site.
These will be set back slightly further than the existing built form on site.

3.2 Plot 1 would have a maximum height of 7.75 metres with an eaves height of 3.3
metres, a width of 8.1 metres and a depth of 10.7 metres. Also included is an
attached garage to the western side of the dwelling which would have a maximum
height of 6.1 metres with an eaves height of 2.95 metres, a width of 6.35 metres
and a depth of 7.7 metres. (internally this is 6 and 7 metres respectively). This
would provide a lounge, open plan kitchen/diner and utility room at ground floor,
alongside the parking of two vehicles with three bedrooms (one en-suite) and a
bathroom at first floor. The dwelling itself would benefit two gable dormer roof
alterations to the front and two to the rear of the proposed dwelling. With another
two to the rear of the garage.

3.3 Plot 2 would have a maximum height of 7.75 metres with an eaves height of 3.3
metres, a width of 8.5 metres and a depth of 10.7 metres. This would provide a
lounge, open plan kitchen/diner, utility room and integral garage at ground floor
with three bedrooms (one en-suite) and a bathroom at first floor. This dwelling
would feature two gable dormer roof alterations to the front and two to the rear of
the proposed dwelling.

3.4 The proposal would utilise the existing accesses off Nene Parade, however, these
would be widened. Two parking spaces per dwelling are proposed.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:

https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

4  SITE PLANNING HISTORY

4.1 There is no recent site history relevant to the determination of this application.

5 CONSULTATIONS

5.1 March Town Council
Recommends approval although notes serious concerns regarding the structural
integrity of the bank, subsequent issues with the road and traffic. Construction
traffic would exacerbate these existing issues

5.2 Arboricultural Consultant

No objection to the proposal subject to the inclusion of a suitably worded condition
to ensure a tree protection method statement is provided

5.3 CCC Highways
No objection subject to the relocation of the access serving plot 1

5.4 CCC Archaeology

Page 63



No comment or requirement for the scheme.
5.5 FDC Conservation Officer

Objects to the proposal due to the scale, form and architectural detailing being
insufficient and jarring, therefore, detracting from the character and appearance of
the conservation area

5.6 FDC Environmental Health

No objection subject to the inclusion of a condition in regard to limiting the hours of
demolition/construction

5.7 FDC Ecologist
No objection to the proposal subject to the following informatives:

- If bats are found at any time during the works, this must cease, and advice
sought from a qualified person

- 2 x bat roosting boxes should be installed on site, post-completion

- Care should be taken to avoid the spread of Wall Cotoneaster, which has
been recorded on site

5.8 Local Residents/Interested Parties

11 letters of support have been received from residents on Berryfield (x2), Elwyn
Road, Boundary Drive, Wisbech Road, Pits Lane, Knights End Road, Cypress
Close, Upwell Road, Gull Road and Curlew Avenue; these are summarised below:

- The proposal would be of a benefit to Nene Parade given issues with
subsidence and potential for it to become derelict drawing on anti-social and
homelessness activities.

- Asset to the area/ streetscene

- Better than existing property which is an eyesore

- Benefit to the Town giving opportunity for two families to live next to the river

- No justification to support repair of existing building given how unsafe it is.

- Increases the local housing stock which is desperately required.

One letter of objection has been received from residents on Nene Parade

- The proposal would result in the driveway being inaccessible — this driveway is
utilised by other residents to complete 2-point turns to leave the parade in a
safe manner.

- Devalue neighbouring properties

- Effects of lorries using Nene Parade — highway safety — vehicular and
pedestrian alongside concerns for riverbank

One letter of offering comments on the application have been received from a
resident on Nene Parade this is summarised below:

- An agreement needs to be met with the owner regarding retaining the

existing use of the driveway as a turning point for other residents and users of
the road.

Page 64



- This is an opportunity for a more appropriate design and build as existing
dwelling does not fit in well
- Consideration needs to be given to the construction route to be utilised.

STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014) the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste Local Plan
(2021) and the March Neighbourhood Plan (2017)

Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
requires Local Planning Authorities when considering development to pay special
attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance
of a conservation area.

POLICY FRAMEWORK
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2024

Chapter 2 - Achieving sustainable development

Chapter 4 — Decision-making

Chapter 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Chapter 8 — Promoting healthy and safe communities

Chapter 9 — Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 11 — Making effective use of land

Chapter 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 14 — Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Chapter 15 — Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

Chapter 16 - Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Determining a Planning Application
National Design Guide 2021

Context

|dentity

Built Form
Movement

Uses

Homes and Buildings

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 — A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP4 — Housing

LP5 — Meeting Housing Need

LP9 — March

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in

Page 65



Fenland
LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland
LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District
LP18 — The Historic Environment
LP19 — The Natural Environment

March Neighbourhood Plan 2017
H2 —  Windfall Development
H3 — Local Housing Need

Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments in Fenland SPD 2014

DM2 — Natural Features and Landscaping Schemes

DM3 — Making a Positive Contribution to Local Distinctiveness and character of
the Area

Emerging Local Plan

The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th
August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.
Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in
accordance with Paragraph 49 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry
extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are
policies:

LP1:  Settlement Hierarchy

LP2: Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development
LPS:  Health and Wellbeing

LP7: Design

LP8:  Amenity Provision

LP12: Meeting Housing Needs
LP22: Parking Provision

LP23: Historic Environment

LP25: Biodiversity Net Gain

LP27: Trees and Planting

LP28: Landscape

LP32: Flood and Water Management

KEY ISSUES

. Design

o Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Conservation Area
. Residential Amenity and Amenity Space

. Landscaping and Ecology

. Parking, Access and Highway Safety

o Flood Risk

. Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)

. Planning Balance

ASSESSMENT

Principle of Development

Page 66



9.1 Policy LP1 is the overarching policy supporting a presumption in favour of
sustainable development; planning applications that accord with the policies within
the Local Development Plan (LDP) will be approved without delay unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014)
sets out the settlement hierarchy within the District, setting out the scale of
development appropriate to each level of the hierarchy. Furthermore, Policy LP9
confirms that March is a focus for housing, employment and retail growth. This
stance is supported in Policy H2 of the March Neighbourhood Plan. The
application site is located within March whereby the majority of the District's new
housing, employment and retail growth should be directed.

9.2 Policy LP5 sets out the housing targets for the District and the Council has
undertaken a full assessment of the Five Year Housing Land Supply in the District
and has concluded that the Council is able to demonstrate a supply of specific
deliverable sites sufficient to provide for more than Five Years’ worth of housing
against the Council’s identified requirements. This is a material consideration and
means that any application for new development must be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Similarly, Policy H3 of the March Local Plan requires all housing
proposals to contribute towards meeting local housing need, which includes starter
homes, family homes, executive homes and self-build homes; and mixed tenure
that will result in a diverse community, where this is reasonably achievable

9.3 The Housing Needs Assessment 2021 identified a greater need of 2-3 bedroom
market units for the District. The proposal would provide two three-bedroom
dwellings and therefore would meet this identified need. Furthermore, the proposal
would result in the loss of a five-bedroom property (of which there is not great
identified need for in the District).

9.4 Given the sites location within the sustainable location of March Town Centre, with
good accessibility via sustainable modes of transport to everyday services and
facilities, it is considered the principle of development would be acceptable and in
accordance with Policies LP1 and LP3 of the LDP. Other Material considerations
will be discussed below.

Self-Build and Custom Housing

9.5 Policy LP5 of the Local Plan also seeks to ensure that housing solutions are
provided which meet market expectations, this includes self-build homes. This
stance is reflected by Policy H3 of the March Neighbourhood Plan. Under Section
1 of the Self Build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015, Local Authorities are
required to keep a register of those seeking to acquire serviced plots in the area for
their own self-build and custom house building. They are also subject to duties
under Sections 2 and 2A of that Act to have regard to this and to give enough
suitable development permissions to meet the identified demand.

9.6 As set out in the Regulations, Part 1 of a register comprises those people and
organisations who meet all the eligibility criteria, including the local connection test.
Part 2 comprises those people and organisations who meet most, but not
necessarily all, the eligibility criteria. The Council has a duty to ‘give suitable
development permission in respect of enough serviced plots of land to meet the
demand for self-build and custom housebuilding in the authority’s area’ (i.e. to
meet the demand for the number of applicants on Part 1 of their register) within a 3
year period, post the end of the base period.

Page 67



9.7 The permissions granted demonstrate that the demand for self-build and custom
housing (as identified by the register) is comfortably being met in Fenland.
Therefore, no weight will be given to the delivery of self/ custom build housing at
this time.

Design and Impact on Character and Appearance of the Area

9.8 Policies LP12 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan, set out a number of criteria that
proposals are required to meet to ensure that high quality environments are
provided and protected. Policy LP12 focuses on development in rural areas with
Policy LP16 focusing specifically on design criteria. This stance is also supported
by Policy H2 of the March Neighbourhood Plan. The site sits within the March
Conservation Area and therefore the requirements of Policy LP18 in respect of
preserving and enhancing the special character of the Conservation Area are
relevant.

9.9 Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
requires Local Planning Authorities when considering development to pay special
attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance
of a conservation area.

9.10 The surrounding area is characterised by residential development, featuring both
single-storey cottages with attic dormers and two-storey terraced properties.
Surrounding properties tend to abut the road and feature relatively narrow long
plots. The existing site is relatively unique in its own right given the scale form and
set back from Nene Parade. It is somewhat at odds with the 1.5 and 2 storey
traditional cottages that sit on the back edge of the footway which gives Nene
Parade its character. Furthermore, the existing building is a mid C20 bungalow and
not considered to be architecturally or historically significant.

9.11 The form and detailing of the proposed dwellings are considered to lack
architectural merit, in that they lack architectural detail and would appear awkward
within the street scene. The design is neither in-keeping with the single-storey
cottages with attic dormers or the two-storey terraced properties that form the
immediate and positive character of Nene Parade. The very deep floorplan of the
proposed dwellings gives a shallow raking roof which appears very much like a
chalet bungalow in terms of form, which is uncharacteristic of the current
residential development in the immediate vicinity. Additionally, the dormers are
substantially out of scale. Furthermore, integral garaging is not considered to
provide positive frontage to the public realm but rather serves to detract from the
special character of the conservation area.

9.12 There are indeed poor examples of development found along Nene Parade and
that the existing dwelling is of limited architectural merit, which is going to be the
case for a road that has evolved over the course of several centuries. However,
poor examples should serve to guide what should not be perpetuated, rather than
seen as a justification for further poor development that does not respond
positively to the conservation area. The proposal should take reference from
positive traditional buildings along Nene Parade and West End, in relation to scale,
proportionality, brickwork detailing (gauged arches, banding, cogged brickwork,
recessed windows, proportionate dormers, quality bricks and tiles/slates).

9.13 Taking into account the above assessment, it is considered the proposed

development by way of form, scale and detailing would fail conserve or enhance
the special character of the conservation area, of which the LPA have a statutory

Page 68



duty to protect. Therefore, the application is considered to be contrary to Policies
LP16 and LP18 of the LDP and Paragraphs 210, 212, 213, 215, 216, 219 and 221
of the NPPF (2024).

Residential Amenity and Amenity Space

9.14 Policy LP2 of the Fenland Local Plan seeks to promote high levels of residential
amenity. Similarly, Policy LP16 requires development proposals to not adversely
impact on the amenity of neighbouring users such as noise, light pollution, loss of
privacy and loss of light.

9.15 Each of the proposed dwellings would benefit from a usable amenity space of at
least a third of the plot, in line with the requirements of Policy LP16 (h). This is
considered to be sufficient in terms of privacy and usability.

9.16 Furthermore, given the proposal relates to the provision of two bungalows, largely
utilising the existing footprint of the existing dwelling on site, alongside the degree
of separation from neighbouring properties boundaries, it is not considered the
proposal would have a detrimental impact on neighbouring amenity by way of loss
of light, privacy or an overbearing nature. Similarly, each habitable room would be
served by sufficient openings, (although the bedrooms would only benefit from a
single north facing window) to provide an acceptable level of light and given the
orientation of the buildings in regard to the dedicated amenity space, there are no
concerns in regard to the amenity to be afforded to the future occupants.
Therefore, there are no objections to the proposal on these grounds.

Landscaping and Ecology

9.17 Policy LP16 requires all development to contribute to high quality environments; in
respect of landscaping criterion c) and d) requires proposals to retain and
incorporate nature and historic features of the site, such as trees, hedgerow and
field patterns, to retain and preserve landscape character and settlement pattern of
the surrounding area.

9.18 Furthermore, Policy LP12 (g) requires development proposals to ensure that the
site retains and respects ecological, heritage and biodiversity features.
Furthermore, policy LP19 requires development proposals to conserve, enhance
and promote the biodiversity and geological interest of the natural environment
throughout Fenland.

9.19 A number of trees which are considered to be of high public amenity value site
adjacent to the sites western and northern boundary’s, with the tree to the west
subject to a Tree Preservation Order. The Arboricultural Officer has been
consulted in regard to this proposal and confirms that the supporting arboricultural
report satisfactorily identifies the quality and constraints of the existing trees. The
only proposed arboricultural intervention is minor crown lifting to T1, which is
considered minimal and acceptable. The report concludes that the development is
acceptable within arboricultural parameters, subject to the implementation of
appropriate methodologies.

9.20 However, a robust Tree Protection Method Statement will be required to set out
how works within the Root Protection Areas (RPAs) and associated protection
measures will be managed in accordance with BS5837:2012. Therefore, should
the application be approved, and confirmation from the Agent that this is
acceptable given the trigger point for details would be prior to commencement, it is

Page 69



considered a suitably worded condition could be included to ensure the retention
and protection of trees.

9.21 Similarly, the accompanying preliminary ecological appraisal concludes that the
proposal would not impact on any protected or priority species, subject to
appropriate mitigation and enhancement measures. The Council’s Ecologist is
satisfied that this is the case and therefore, should the application be approved, a
condition would be included to ensure the proposed development is carried out in
accordance with the details and recommendations contained within this supporting
document.

Parking, Access and Highway Safety

9.22 Policy LP15 requires all new development proposals to contribute to the delivery of
the sustainable transport network by providing well designed, safe, convenient
access for all. Development proposals should provide well designed car and cycle
parking appropriate to the amount of development proposed, ensuring parking
provision is provided in accordance with the standards. Appendix A sets out that
two parking spaces are required for a three-bedroom unit. Appendix A also sets
out that a garage can be counted as a parking space provided the size of the
garage exceeds 7.0m x 3.0m (internal dimensions).

9.23 Each dwelling would benefit from a minimum of 2 parking spaces, including the
integral/attached garages and therefore, there are no objections to the proposal in
terms of parking provision.

9.24 Nene Parade is a narrow road, whereby on street parking is common. It is
acknowledged that this makes accessibility difficult and may result in congestion
and awkward manoeuvres for car users. However, the road does benefit from
parking restrictions and given the proposal relates to the provision of one additional
unit. It is not considered that the proposal would result in a material intensification
of the use of this road by future residents, to the detriment of highway safety.
Furthermore, the Highways Authority have raised no objection to the proposal in
this respect.

9.25 The Highways Authority have raised no objection to the proposal, subject to
revisions to the access serving Plot 1. It is therefore considered that the proposal,
would be acceptable, subject to minor amendments in this respect, in terms of
highway safety. Should this application have been considered acceptable against
all other material considerations, amendments would have been sought in
accordance with the Highway Authority’s recommendations. However, as the
application is recommended for refusal, whereby any amendments would result in
a significant material change to the scheme, these amendments have not been
sought.

9.26 It is noted that a number of neighbouring representations have been received
which raise concerns in respect of the additional traffic and highway safety which
has been discussed above. Given the temporary nature of construction, this is not
considered to materially weigh against the scheme. Similarly, reference is also
made to road users, including other residents, utilising the current drive to
maneuverer and turn around to exist the road in forward gear. Whilst this is
appreciated and acknowledged, this is an informal agreement with the current
occupants/owners and would not form a material planning consideration in the
determination of this application.

Page 70



9.27

9.28

Flood Risk

Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan and Paragraphs 170-182 of the National
Planning Policy Framework set out the approach to developing land in relation to
flood risk, with both documents steering development in the first instance towards
land at a lower risk of flooding. The application site sits within Flood Zone 1 and
therefore, there are no objections to the proposal in this respect.

Furthermore, appropriate details in terms of surface water drainage and foul
drainage can be secured by appropriately worded conditions should the application
be approved.

Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)

9.29 The Environment Act 2021 requires development proposals to deliver a net gain in

biodiversity following a mitigation hierarchy which is focused on avoiding ecological
harm over minimising, rectifying, reducing and then off-setting. This approach
accords with Local Plan policies LP16 and LP19 which outlines a primary objective
for biodiversity to be conserved or enhanced and provides for the protection of
Protected Species, Priority Species and Priority Habitat.

9.30 There are statutory exemptions, transitional arrangements and requirements

9.31

relating to irreplaceable habitat which mean that the biodiversity gain condition
does not always apply. In this instance, one or more of the exemptions /
transitional arrangements are considered to apply and a Biodiversity Gain
Condition is not required to be approved before development is begun because the
nature of the development being self / custom build is exempt from statutory net
gain.

Planning Balance

In terms of sustainability the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states
that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the achievement of
sustainable development. Achieving sustainable development means that the
planning system has three overarching objectives; economic, social and
environmental, which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually
supportive ways (so that opportunities can be taken to secure net gains across
each of the different objectives)

9.32 This stance is supported by Local Plan Policy LP1. In respect of the first of these,

the current proposal would provide economic benefits, for example in respect of
employment during the construction phase, as well as support for existing and
future businesses, services, and facilities by introducing additional residents that
would make use of them and provide future spend in the local economy. However,
given this relates to the provision of two self-build dwellings, with a net gain of just
one dwelling, this is considered to be negligible.

9.33 In respect of the social objective, it is noted that a number of minor benefits would

be provided, including the provision of two three-bedroom units, which meets the
identified need for market housing in the district. However, given this relates to just
two dwellings this is considered to be negligible. Representations have been made
advising that the proposal would be of benefit to the area given subsidence issues
alongside potential anti-social behaviour. These are noted however, in the absence
of any such reports/evidence, it is not considered this would weigh in favour of the
scheme to an extent that would overcome the harm identified.

Page 71



9.34 Lastly, in terms of the environmental objective, as discussed above, it is

considered the proposed scheme, it is considered the proposed development by
way of form, scale and detailing would fail conserve or enhance the special
character of the conservation area, of which the LPA have a statutory duty to
protect. Therefore, the application is considered to be contrary to Policies LP16
and LP18 of the LDP and Paragraphs 210, 212, 213, 215, 216, 219 and 221 of the
NPPF 2024. It is noted that the drawings provided indicate that solar panels are
proposed to the front roof slope of each dwelling, whilst we encourage renewable
energy provision, this would not overcome the harm identified above.

9.35 It is not considered that the negligible benefits as outlined above, would overcome

10

10.1

the identified harm in respect of the impact of the proposal on the character and
appearance of the site and surrounding character and appearance of the
conservation area.

CONCLUSIONS

Taking into account the above assessment, it is considered the proposed
development by way of form, scale and detailing would fail preserve or enhance
the special architectural character of the conservation area, of which the LPA have
a statutory duty to protect. Therefore, the application is considered to be contrary
to Policies LP16 and LP18 of the Local Development Plan and Paragraphs 210,
212, 213, 215, 216, 219 and 221 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2024.

10.2 It is acknowledged that the proposal would result in some minor benefits, however

11

as discussed above, these are not considered to overcome the harm identified.

RECOMMENDATION

Refuse, for the following reason:

1.

The proposed development, by virtue of its form, scale, and detailing, fails to
reflect the established character and architectural quality of the surrounding built
environment along Nene Parade. The dwellings are considered to lack
architectural merit, presenting dwellings which lack architectural detail and would
appear awkward within the street scene and would be at odds with the positive
vernacular of the area, including the nearby single-storey cottages with attic
dormers and two-storey terraced properties. The deep floorplans and resulting
shallow roof pitch give rise to a chalet-style form, which is uncharacteristic of the
locality, while the oversized dormers and integral garages further detract from
the street scene and fail to contribute positively to the public realm.

Rather than drawing inspiration from the area's traditional detailing — such as
gauged brick arches, banding, cogged brickwork, recessed windows, and
proportionate dormers — the design disregards these qualities, and instead
perpetuates poor-quality development that undermines the character of the
conservation area. As such, the proposal fails to preserve or enhance the
special architectural or historic interest of the Nene Parade Conservation Area,
contrary to Policies LP16 and LP18 of the Fenland Local Plan and Paragraphs
210, 212, 213, 215, 216, 219 and 221 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (2024 ), which collectively seek to ensure high-quality design and the
protection of the special architectural or historic interest of the conservation
area.

Page 72




Page 73



ot
£°
g
5
3
"ll'
El Sub Sta 3
I:’ o
Park Superstore 7
ey
hﬁ@
- [:‘
1&1 LA
“Yher, y
£ ¥l Reovs.
ESS dag
Pocklington Corp
Court Praq?::!m"

9/2/2025, 3:08:20 PM 0 55 11:116250 "2
| 1 1 1 | 1 1 1 |
| T T T | T T T |

|:| Fenland District Boundary 0 15 30 60 m

Fenland District Council

Uniform
© Crown Copyright and database rights 2025 Ordnance Suﬁsey AC000 2148.
ge




G/ abed

/w/ f
_ //
_
% ///

y

—

7
Al//////////////////}/////////////mmw E

i)
8 4 /*
- e %
o S
_— ,.ssss\\\\\
ORI
W LA
I
AL LLLLLLLLLLLLLERL
RLLARLLLLLLLLLLLLLLZALL
R S
QRIALLELALLLLA L LLLL L
. et PRI B!
o KR AR LIS
o RLARLLLLLRLELLLLL
5 R
PRI &‘t}«””te;.w&”
X RN
\~, AW
z R
5 -
‘(g'
3

VERTICAL FENCING
BOARDS NAILED
TO ARRIS RAILS

100x100 R.C CONCRETE
POSTS SET 900mm INTO
GROUND WITH CONCRETE
SURROUND AT 2.0m
CENTRES

ARRIS RAILS SET
BEHIND BOARDING

\— TIMBER GRAVEL

0.9m HIGH FENCE DETAIL
(1:50)

BOARDING

SAINSBURYS

e
.
et
A
T~

A

8
)
8!

:‘

\“

\

LR

‘\“’? VS GA
e AR
‘\\“\ s,s,\,;ss\,s,\
i — BV v
s SINEIIAY
N L S ZRZNONINENERE
\ S A AN
\ BN
\ A
\ L RIRIRIASRIATNA
e R
Lo T A DoAY
e Se et \ RS AEIRATON
un> 00 A A A
= ’ ) LA
— us) ERIRNRIEANINNN,
\ne——— AR
() el ||\ e SENONT SOSINSILIoNA
\ e A A RIS 8
“‘/ ) \«& SININININININININING. |
Wl /’ NN S SINININONINININININE
\\\\“\é —— IRAASNAINAINNNINIAAN
- ey MARBAL R AT
= e v Mt NS o
* STV e

SIS
SNSS

55

SSIISSISSISSEINSS
53

.

LRRRRRL &
IFSSHSSN SN

(RRRRRLRRLRLLR

%
' '%:ssssssssss
é/

IR

SISO

253

SISSISISISIISS

7 SN
LRRRLRRLRLLR

%
2

pa”

(

AL

S}\\\\\%
|

eE!

X2

14m HIGH ASH TREE
NOT ON OWNED LAND

<L

| Nee
=
X “‘;\‘
e R
»»‘\‘ o

o
9

oy

¢
\3
*

PROPOSED SITE PLAN (1:200)
LEGEND:

PERMEABLE BLOCK PROPOSED EXISTING
PAVING (NON SLIP) DWELLINGS GRASS % SLAB PAVING BUILDINGS

_ BIN STORE/
‘ VEGETATION COLLECTION

VERTICAL FENCING
BOARDS NAILED
TO ARRIS RAILS

100x100 R.C CONCRETE
POSTS SET 900mm INTO
GROUND WITH CONCRETE

PLOT 2 —No 21

]
CENTRES

‘ SURROUND AT 2.0m

ARRIS RAILS SET
/ BEHIND BOARDING

1.8m

\— TIMBER GRAVEL

F—

1.8m HIGH FENCE DETAIL "¢ PROPOSED STREET SCENE (1:200)
(1:50)

Copyright on all drawings

consulting the Engineers.

ask. All dimensions are in

Where materials, products

good building practice and

All products and materials
and used or fixed in acco
current recommendations.

forward to the Engineer

All finishes, insulation and
details

/

Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt

specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2024.

LOCATION PLAN (1:1250)

prepared by Morton & Hall

mm unless stated otherwise.

and workmanship are not fully

BS 8000 to the extent that the

to be handled, stored, prepared
rdance with the manufacturers

damp—proofing to architect’s

All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

N
w E
S
B | PLANNERS COMMENTS OCT 25
A | UPDATED FOLLOWING CLIENT COMMENT AUG 25
REVISIONS DATE

CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454

March, Fax: 01354 660467
Combridgeshire. E—mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk

PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

glia t anglia

LABS LABG

Fenland District Council
Building

Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland .

1102 8 6002
Y3INNIM AHOO3LVYO

CLIENT

Mr C White

PROJECT

20 Nene Par
March

PE15 8TD

Cambridgeshire

ade

TITLE

Scene & Fen

Location Plan & Proposed
Site Plan, Proposed Street

ce Details

DRAWN
J. Burrows

CHECKED

M. Hall

DATE OF ISSUE

DATE

August 2025

SCALE

As Shown

DRAWING NUMBER

H9928/10s



AutoCAD SHX Text
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
No 21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
No 22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
No 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
No 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
PLOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
PLOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
1.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
0.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
5.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
7.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
23.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
3.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
27a

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
LAMB'S PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
23a

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
NENE PARADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
WHERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
Cabaret

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2024. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
SLAB PAVING 

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
PERMEABLE BLOCK  PAVING (NON SLIP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
VEGETATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
EXISTING  BUILDINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
PROPOSED SITE PLAN (1:200) LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
 PUBLIC FOOTPATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
Mr C White 

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
20 Nene Parade

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
Cambridgeshire

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
PE15 8TD

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
Location Plan & Proposed

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
Site Plan, Proposed Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
Scene & Fence Details

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
J. Burrows

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
August 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
H9928/10

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
14m HIGH ASH TREE  NOT ON OWNED LAND  

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
LOCATION PLAN (1:1250)

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
2.0m HIGH BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
2.0m HIGH BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
1.8m HIGH TIMBER FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
PUBLIC FOOTPATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
1.8m TIMBER  FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
1.8m TIMBER  FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
NENE PARADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
PUBLIC FOOTPATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
PUBLIC FOOTPATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
RIVER NENE

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
RIVER BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
RIVER BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
WHERRY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
PUBLIC FOOTPATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
PLOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
PLOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
PROPOSED DWELLINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
PROPOSED STREET SCENE (1:200)

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
No.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
No.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
No.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
No.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
No.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
No.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
No.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
No.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
SAINSBURYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
0.6m HIGH FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
0.9m TIMBER FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
BIN STORE/ COLLECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
ENSURE ACCESS IS TO C.C.C GUIDELINES AND SET TO FALL AND DRAIN AWAY FROM HIGHWAY  

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
ENSURE ACCESS IS TO C.C.C GUIDELINES AND SET TO FALL AND DRAIN AWAY FROM HIGHWAY  

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
1.8m HIGH TIMBER FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
1.8m HIGH TIMBER FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
100x100 R.C CONCRETE POSTS SET 900mm INTO GROUND WITH CONCRETE SURROUND AT 2.0m CENTRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
ARRIS RAILS SET BEHIND BOARDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
TIMBER GRAVEL BOARDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
VERTICAL FENCING  BOARDS NAILED TO ARRIS RAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
1.8m HIGH FENCE DETAIL (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
100x100 R.C CONCRETE POSTS SET 900mm INTO GROUND WITH CONCRETE SURROUND AT 2.0m CENTRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
ARRIS RAILS SET BEHIND BOARDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
TIMBER GRAVEL BOARDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
VERTICAL FENCING  BOARDS NAILED TO ARRIS RAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
0.9m HIGH FENCE DETAIL (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
M. Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
33.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
UPDATED FOLLOWING CLIENT COMMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
AUG 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
PLANNERS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
OCT 25


Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

5200.0 Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt

ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

RWP JjL N N N B E RWP K RWP | | RWP zzizifiggitlidcmé Aglrovésc)i::ke tgnc?eBiSn ggggrcégngﬁe Wg(r’lent that the
—TT T L L L L L L L L — K;lactorr]rrllendqt(ijon?c defige thek quoli;]cy cz(f the fir;ishqfh wcilrk.
[ O I British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
A B L L L L L L L L L L L L L L B appropriate, BS or EC marks.
L L L L L L L L L L L L L L All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
i L L L L L L L L L L L L L L gEsreﬁecriecoormf#](:gd(ljr]do%?sc':ordonce with the manufacturers
_ o — t t t t t t t t t t t t t t by the BCO {or NHBC) 'ae requred by the Buiding.
- L L L L L L L L L L L L L L ]Boerng:]l?c?otr;)S tcr:|1r;d El:gi’:%e?btom completion certificate and
% 27@ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ 4550 ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ él(_l}tgiirsishes, insulation and damp—proofing to architect’s
= Y I O Y I B
S e R E#LLLLL
EELL%LLLLtb IR N Te
UTILITY — IR e 2m HEADROOM
T L LI IKITCHEN /O WGLLOOI -
N I S O S S R L L L L
S Ll Tl
B e RLLLLLL=LLLLLL
LLLLL N e
- - odss| LS L L L e
ZL 0L =Ly 11402 5
[ - —F Y I T I Ll '
X e = | I = Ll LI o
% LLLWQLloo)j AL L L1177 | | £t ==
0 L"LL éé
o 1G4 C &
— 3314
é@ 4414
LOUNGE
O
%%:) STUDY 3
@ UP 2m HEADROOM
 Rwp ) RWP
L§> L§> PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN
8527.5 (1 :50)
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN
(1:50)

B PLANNERS COMMENTS OCT 25

9, abed

A UPDATED FOLLOWING CLIENT COMMENT AUG 25
REVISIONS DATE
N\ /
CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454
March, Fax: 01354 660467
Cambridgeshire. Website: waw.mortonconsaltingengineers.co.uk
PE15 8AJ geng
BED 1 ﬁ LABS” V.. Feniand DiStric.:t Cf)unc”
2400 Building *
et D“esign.A\livarldsd ‘
/ /N ° Mr C White
5 KITCHEN / DINING (| e e ey
UTILITY WC STUDY 2400 20 Nene Parade
March
PROPOSED ROOF PLAN Cambrigdeshire
(1:100) PE15 8TD
PROPOSED SECTION A—A PROPOSED SECTION B-—B Plot 1
(1:50) (1:50) Proposed Floor Plans, Roof

Plan & Section

PLOT 1 | ==

CCCCCCC

SSSSS H9928/115



AutoCAD SHX Text_160
PLOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
M. Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
Mr C White 

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
20 Nene Parade

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
Cambrigdeshire

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
PE15 8TD

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
Plot 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
Proposed Floor Plans, Roof

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
Plan & Section

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
J. Burrows

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
August 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
H9928/11

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
M. Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
UPDATED FOLLOWING CLIENT COMMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
AUG 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
PLANNERS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
OCT 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
2.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
STUDY

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
BED 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
2.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
2400

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
2400

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
KITCHEN / DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
BED 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
FLAT  CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
9552.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
8527.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
UP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
RL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN  (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN  (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
UP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
2m HEADROOM 

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
2m HEADROOM 

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
KITCHEN / DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
STUDY

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
LOUNGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
BED 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
LANDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
ENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
BED 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
BED 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
3314

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
3953

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
4414

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
6103

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
4500

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
3227

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
2368

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
1200

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
1128

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
2333

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
2400

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
3299

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
1589

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
3299

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
3638

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
3849

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
4101

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
3314

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
3314

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
3551

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
11402.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
5200.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
PROPOSED ROOF PLAN  (1:100)

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
PROPOSED SECTION A-A  (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
PROPOSED SECTION B-B  (1:50)


If in doubt

ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where

specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
specification. All work to be in accordance with

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
starts or materials are ordered.

Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
consulting the Engineers.

without their written permission.

© «  |CATEGORY WINNER .
o 0w B 2009 & 2011
Wm o ! e L I T a
- %) e R = O 2 o () EAR: N
83 x § S s o> | & 8 < 2|2
a5 Qo = S ox | o £ 3 C 3|5 «—
.._.m Wn..nuw c o c X (@] — 2
g £ 5 2 5 8 O TI|: .
oc V=0 S K3 T o ~2oE 4 =
o O L5 m L Y033 O — 5 w 8
2 € ~mns o o VFso = S 5l e 2
n y— Pre - + NEREE < o (@} 4O.mm ..& ol o
S0 @ = I g Ire) > = 0 C 0o — B =
-0 5] S g 2 HDoge als )
° c £ o) o o O ©ss 0O o
o= 0+ c o o > w ©TF e X
> c_5 = - X = <+ 28 ie] w N e)
T ox.9 o o o) o £ s ¥ EE C o N &
s B9y o ) = R4 o Q 2 9mg: O £ g : L
£% gua o 5 = () ® O i Bm.mw c ke () “ :
oo GLE L = 2 a o E z o%.y 0 @ O o :
o Q c50 [°] = z G . _058% () g z
o5 <38 f : S § 3 m T o ¢ G
£ 27 glc 3 = c = = Q 3 _._|.__ FLdE MM m =
) & o .o 5 o 0 (-
£ 698 895, ¢ o | 0 2 o g 29 z - O o %
‘C oS o o [} O] = GZ 2
o © k) O\Pw % N Kg _|.L.|_d ..C | O MW [T} ol.ll |-
o B c® [e] c (2 ] Qo o W
O.=g oD@+ E g5 bl oo | x Q| gt X Qo = - O
Zz > —
L EgT P o 5 =P = < = 5 Q3 5 ¢ No)
5 35 %25 © O = 3.9 =N 3 = a¥e 7 = C .= 00 o) 0
o0 @ wm 2 o L 28 Lo = > .
BXE Tsv. 3 Ll SE St < z3g Se b g 5 ¢ O = — = 2 S
2] [Sht L0 c o 2] xr o O o Me = U [ %) [%2] = [ = c -+ = c
om o € o~ g C C = MU (@ x .= o =z = > c N b 3 N =
- a50 4 £ = 1 m = 0o 2+ La WE e J 7 @) O 5 O 2 — - 3
g 5°8 8820 4 - B 3 32 — m — = > sl 219l &
§ 358 Sgfe 8 = § 33 . o 5 6L o ® 3 S
S B0+ 6,20 © as|x S£a O =1 -2 3 B
5 £3F 822% Ze §ee = NS oa | aim k
a o o 2 Q L 0 e 8 z g "
o] <00 O« <O o a = ) ) & @

699/,

G289

PLOT T

50)

(1

50)

PROPOSED LHS ELEVATION

(1

~L_|

PROPOSED RHS ELEVATION

G289

699/,

699/,

= eassaamrniiili THHHE i
k= A HHHHE LI HHHHHHH|
= MMNMMW HHHH]

50)

(1

(1
T

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION
50)

TTTARRERTIINN

il
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION
7

i

699. G289

Page 77



AutoCAD SHX Text_312
7669

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
7669

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
7669

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
7669

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
PROPOSED RHS ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
PLOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
LEGEND: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
BRICKWORK: Weinerberger - Weathered Gault Blend

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
ROOF TILE: Marley - Lincoln Clay Interlocking Pantile,  Rustic Red

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
CLADDING: Cedral - Cedral Lap, Black C50

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
JOINERY: Tradelink - Clotted Cream UPVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
M. Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
Mr C White 

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
20 Nene Parade

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
Cambridgrshire

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
PE15 8TD

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
Plot 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
Elevations

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
J. Burrows

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
August 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
H9928/12

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
M. Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
PROPOSED LHS ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
UPDATED FOLLOWING CLIENT COMMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
AUG 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
FRONT DOOR: Pine Green UPVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
6825

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
6825

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
6825

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
PLANNERS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
OCT 25


m © ~ CATEGORY WINNER
- =2 mS 0 E] 2009 & 2011
< o M.m sE= W.ﬂ ho) « A Wl m. — T <
— O 0= g - |4 ) 0,
= 5 ¢ 2%y, £3° s ¢ 5 B G 5 : 2 D3Js <
o o o c ..m..mo o o5 o 9 = ol o £ > C & S L
T [e) = © o -2 + O ¥ S D b= = ~© o — =
o e} . [<37] (0] ~ =c® = he} c ER e
855 5 5 £ 08B E85°5 P2 .33 ¢ 5 g 52 2O B I«
] w o D2 hX.S O c V= 0O o o o 7|..m - —_—
c [} GrD..dOH.H.enN,h S G S5 [¢] o el +53528 © = 58 8
C [0} = = ] =
n.= o o T z Vs 0 < £ m s o [To Jurait 1 = 35 c
S o c — D Q-+ » _.Tm » C [e] H A H c o &) +Yse =] 7} 2
£ SL = vo+r Q00O 0 - P + R LY = = 0958 %) 0|2
= = : +ec®covoc - (S) S = 0 8¢ 2 M A
25° B 3% we’sgrsoz gL L,s0 @ g S 3 o 8855 A 8 o)
) c c ¥ 7'z %= 0¥ c o > R = x
pr € 8% £5ef5or o> ¥ 27s £ o s < 438 T & e
>0 O S _o o TS+ n < o .2 o 3] 3} £ 5 EE c o w 8
2~ a g ocg Ec8°50° .0 S¥ SO o 2 £ o) S 2 wvw88: «© c 3 : T
oHc € o.¢ To5e86x»85 €% va o 5 = @ ® w P—f3 T e} O ; :
ot= 90 =35 29 3E58Q2=HT aQ _ < > o, © E o 5 ¢
oy = 6 .3 = 0¥ oggnl o © oc E < P s O Z O =3 L m o 2
8SoT 0 ‘po o 55o a2 c350 = o 9 S G ..38% O 5 g
Womm c ot d..hLMm.qum..& . S =g o £ L o 3 3 i o8 H m (- ° >
hl O . = c o) m » o O o 12} =
03> n X g E i ~x ~x +T0 O o° c - FLws Zim
a"oww Eo_ P9 +FQ8 0¥ 5 o .= .o = S S Q 2 < O £~
L8020 =P, 05 0UEE585 wQ . culd [ o 2 2 > 0 bt
o5SE. ;065 8,95 E¥SEE 284 588 T O | g 3 o &5 = z ) o o
PP EE o 58,0800 W0 §55 585 5 = o3 e S | S 2 g = Sya 0
£ o o =
o 0= (&) S (@] [0} o L . o =
m.ﬁen.mmkoo m.m.m_..mwum:.wm.mE ..m.mm .m%.m.m 5 Ll mﬂ _m__% m_ 5 X mm = m - Q g_l C
o SO0 m 0 = & o o S el =z c o o -
o 2 c202c 05738 9 5 oE Zog B @) St >0 as .= = 15} W o W (- d8 O o)
O+ = c 9o [ ) Sn+an D0 0 w = X 0o w o.= O w o = — =] . o —
s=ot MoLg 49 _0=8c80, B2XE s 2 Ll <c& OTh s Z73 o3 g g ¢ ) - AN S 2 o
CES3x, 82 5.0 T 9358 5% 58ce 2 xd 053 38 g2 g2 | 2 E S 2 < o + = Q| ¢
cTomr -5 2098 TPS2 2550 L& 8705 = —1 m= rS& ) SE Lo wl|l & 5 2 05 '®) Z 0 Te) O ol _ z
ogm..nnlu.m rm.m ..m..hL V.O..m.mpm.w, .mo& m%so s W %) ? c %M o m — +— > 5 o .m 5
oo © 025 = 5 CO ¢ = m
EEEL2R5T Eo258S 0,50 3B g@sT 2 ] e B 20 - O O oLl S o >
oEuw 5 8°%= “05208EG 5 Baor G5,8T & [ s 52 1 =] 3] <2
CTS5E305 0 n< & = frag = 2>5c oot cFo oo e 2 -
020 8 5 P55 Fo55EFwe 50 £3590 £= aoel o _ i
QcpE Zc gy 008003 =Ea ot o3 *8 S oL i@ o g = g y
= O O o O O O 5T — [ -+ S0 z = w = 3} w Y
QQOE -0 O 0 QcpaO0pl8La =c35 c>x0g5 =0 < — << ] 3 4 2 i o Fs
OOTTOLOONWO T oxsLLnOL=M0 OO FaXse <o — 3 g = 5 5 g 3
C O
SC89
HHHHHHHHHHAHHAHHAHHAHA
\

50)

(1

50)

(1

PROPOSED RHS ELEVATION

PROPOSED LHS ELEVATION

699/,

GC89

S¢89

50)

(1

(1

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION
50)

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION

699/,

699/,

Page 78



AutoCAD SHX Text_397
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
Mr C White 

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
20 Nene Parade

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
Cambridgeshire

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
PE15 8TD

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
Plot 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
Elevations

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
J. Burrows

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
August 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
H9928/14

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
PLOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
LEGEND: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
BRICKWORK: Weinerberger - Weathered Gault Blend

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
ROOF TILE: Marley - Lincoln Clay Interlocking Pantile,  Rustic Red

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
CLADDING: Cedral - Cedral Lap, Black C50

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
JOINERY: Tradelink - Clotted Cream UPVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
FRONT DOOR: Steel Blue UPVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
M. Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
7669

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
7669

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
7669

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
7669

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
PROPOSED LHS ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
PROPOSED RHS ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
6825

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
6825

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
6825

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
PLANNERS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
OCT 25


Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

5200.0 Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt

ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

6/ abed

[ RWP T . RWP RWP ‘ ‘ RWP specification. All work to be in accordance with
— L L L L L L L L L —— —— = | ‘ ‘ J = %){C:jm?{lglr?g:]%éoﬁ)]rs:cjglegsntiekBiucsll(E]c?/ocz}oﬂ:zefl?gﬁg%htxccl:;kthe
EB t t t t t t t t t t t t t t ﬁ £ IIB . ZB\ X British §t§nré’%r:d°ssqﬁ§c Eg$£kr§t‘é%2&?ds°wﬁﬁf”5’v%ef; ‘
: \ : \ appropriate, or marks.
L L L L L L L L L L L L L L | ‘ C - Alldprodtécts th:ld dm_qtericlls ’éo be hqtnhdlfﬁ, storedf, ptrepored
N S O O O O O current recommendations. e
L L L L L L L L L L L L L L RWP o o B | ‘ Zi RWPO The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works
AR \5 | | et o e e Ot and
é L L L L L L L L L L L L L L DN | ‘ ‘ forgword to the Engineer P
: Ll L Lrs BREREEREE @p T égtgiirsishes, insulation and damp—proofing to architect’s
[ i Y O I O | B = —— -
N O O s I Y N N O ||
s0s | | e el L L L LT L
88 L L I | ‘*L‘U‘Tll‘_lTYL L [T~ 2m HEADROOM
LLLKIEﬁ-lEN /jﬁLNLN,GL Ll L L | | 3ED 1 B
N N Y 1 O O O O AR O
N A N T T s I O O | 3849
LLLLLLL@LLLLLL—; s I |
R R R R 74 I |
L L L L LZEl | B |
11452 5 N N O N I ] AN
‘ N O O O N B O | P [ e i Y
Ll IR N 2000+ I
R EAVEEEENR 200 e Ll 0 B -
LA L > i <5
C RN 5 i ~
3314 Za E\/
4414 @9
LOUNGE
O O
STUDY (:%% I B
UP Zr — 2m HEADROOM
9V !
Ly .
- WP RWP
AQJ PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN AQJ
8527.5 (1 50)
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN
(1:50)
A | PLANNERS COMMENTS OCT 25
REVISIONS DATE
\ CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454
B dgeshi e taomertommralcok
7 ScElqnsbrédAc_EJeshwe. Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk
Fenland District Council X
BED 1 LABC™ LABC™ £5
C 2400 Building *
Design Awards
Building Excellenc?e in Fenland ‘
; \ A
B /N Mr C White
5 KITCHEN / DINING (i i e el e
STUDY WC ~  UTILITY 2400 20 Nene Parade
March
PROPOSED ROOF PLAN Cambridgeshire
(1:100) PE15 8TD
PROPOSED SECTION A-—A PROPOSED SECTION B-—B Plot 2
(1:50) (1:50) Proposed Floor Plans, Roof

Plan & Section

PLOT 2 | ==

CCCCCCC

SSSSS H9928 /134



AutoCAD SHX Text_477
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
Mr C White 

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
20 Nene Parade

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
Cambridgeshire

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
PE15 8TD

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
Plot 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
Proposed Floor Plans, Roof

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
Plan & Section

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
J. Burrows

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
August 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
H9928/13

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
PLOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
M. Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
PLANNERS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
OCT 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
2.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
STUDY

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
BED 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
2.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
2400

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
2400

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
KITCHEN / DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
BED 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
FLAT  CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
9552.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
8527.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
UP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
RL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN  (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN  (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
UP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
2m HEADROOM 

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
2m HEADROOM 

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
KITCHEN / DINING

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
STUDY

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
LOUNGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
BED 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
LANDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
ENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
BATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
BED 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
BED 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
3314

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
3953

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
4414

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
6103

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
4500

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
3227

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
2368

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
2000

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
1200

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
1128

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
2333

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
2400

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
3299

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
1589

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
3299

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
3638

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
3849

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
4101

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
3314

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
3314

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
3551

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
11402.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
5200.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
PROPOSED ROOF PLAN  (1:100)

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
PROPOSED SECTION A-A  (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
PROPOSED SECTION B-B  (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
A


2 o «  |CATEGORY WINNER .
=, () n Hm 2009 & 2011
= e.m,.w ..mml Wm o ! N ¢ = ° <
re o= - = -
— - & 2%, £8° °5 ¢ ¢ 3 51 § 2 OG5 cC L0
o o 3 = W..mto - o s 1 ol & £ S C &l S —
= o oo * =) (5} O
T_o =< o © c-2 = . O o x Z o .= z|?
© . cC o (0] 2 C c x
N + ul N c = Y= = - O O — /
c * £ afT oc 3o o5 5 ) R O <|c
5% 3 o B po_Scveb. 8 o2 023 5 +Nef 5 = cla o 00
Sef 2 & 9 °88,3°E5F 22 B35 39E3 2 598
o c +— O B2 _..Im 7] . ] +Yse - 22 I 2
v o = & Qo000 o (0] - u— o + O c£o9 %) o2 |- n
c c gL 2 cO0c 0oL SR Veseéd 2 M
o'z O o +~ 350 «© n S -0 ) © cc [a ] o) (@))
5 OF c o= < o Lo lrg o
MW m " O;m mm 2 C =i .W w-.hL S..Ln c 66.“.m m o o
© —_ o— * —

55 c°, 58888208 S, 5x8 % +3Ee 2 'S O + . y D
oa—-a o ocp EcOTL 0T 0O cs Sas n0e = — w ¢ T
) o =0 £58 0o _ aP cE v o o % Mo E ) k= L O 2 3
— = Rt - — %}

v2c S 2. 55528920 ® $va o w P—f3 T e} (D) O “ z
€5- 2 5.5 8785058582 oy SLE z 0%:5 0 @ o %) o :
S Q0 = = o 50 o - w
8588 ©2%e gLevecy,3828 0 € £386  E g x%Ez . O o o g 2
QoY . oS c+ ) mss o0 P o i | 50 [
rDlupUS% em Qf..LreBEk ~ ..Lm Oy o FLws \mB pap— g
.32 8 .mMn 05" 0vEE58E g 205 ) M_ =5 O - O &
888E Ly 2% 20 305, 50€E Bos Poa, B 2 & O o ) Nl
Pcoo0P=p0 Ca,2+%0 W ‘CcoS £ 0% © [} = -+ w
.Mter% eroluw mﬂkem.mnon.u 9 0 G\PWO% s Q *— D G wn
=
m.SMH.m.mkos m..w...m_..mmu.mﬁomE m.mm .m%.t.mu m = m - ) g_l O c
ool 282l o520, %y T C Zoge B w »w o W (- O ve) e 0
o2 .=5c0P%coc .tpno_ Lou+an oo 9 [ =] . o— Q
=+ 0'C EC.H.& n O o0o=gagclo dvIAm T Lo S m c (] e |- o —_ %) o
O'cC 2% 3] S._.o <03 S LOco @ %8 B = o L c 4 z c
£ 2,85 Z22c oogs@m ST E 5852 2 B E oz = z 0 5 N B
cOxe S5 222 TOEL 2500 . 56 ©_05 ul S < o @) O 19} O el =1.135:3
o, EoBT  EE £5°.552558 £°3 880, ¢ e BZ 3 . 53 & - = > sl 2l e s
£ 228250 Eg¥88520ng 33- E0ST 2 5| 3 m S 2% O O O O L O o @ >l .
or oyg B = Lo2loco g O+ ogaET 2 ol x Sc g . - — ; :
£350 8g Lo eE3EEETGo 525 oL35 £ SSEL 4, = S N=o0on QL cl1E ]
RS, , 0 Z 5 g
58t 85 655% 28058885 a _25 2,92 —3F ~338 <2 ’ HIEE
OoovzaoOoho Taoslool=no Too FAxl =S < — 3 g E g 5 z B
N
= pd Al
o 5
Al
L
o
< L —~
_ G_.qnuu
< < 1
X -
z 5~
— =)
-~~~
% 2o L]
< n 0
X O
e — ad
< 0~ o
O L Y
o
% W al
Al o
Al
5 S Z
< < [ =
V (e V
o LW N HHHH AR [
— T =~ | | Sipigipipininipininininininigiy —
o Al [l == e e s L Ll
N R) \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ /N
03 2 . ©3
DHu 0 WY Y HHHHHAHHHA ] L 0
D R1 \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ D
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ ()
| A 3909090 GhhEhhhRGhEERRRhI Ll
) vy s L HHHHEHHHEHHEHL n
o A 000 nhhhRhERhRRRR W
¥ § 0 | i
DI DI \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ DI
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ o
|||||||||||| ¥
LTI

RWP

50)
50)

4040

(1
(1

3.5m

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION

PROPOSED GARAGE FLOOR PLAN

RWP

S CGLL

Page 80



AutoCAD SHX Text_625
PROPOSED GARAGE FLOOR PLAN  (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
7752.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
7.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
3.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
4040

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
PROPOSED RHS ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
PROPOSED LHS ELEVATION (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
PLOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
Mr C White 

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
20 Nene Parade

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
March

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
Cambridgrshire

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
PE15 8TD

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
Plot 1 Garage Floor Plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
Elevations & Section

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
J. Burrows

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
August 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
H9928/15

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
M. Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
PROPOSED SECTION A-A (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
PROPOSED GARAGE ROOF PLAN  (1:50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
RWP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
PLANNERS COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
OCT 25


Agenda Item 7

F/YR25/0776/PIP
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Giddens Agent : Mr G Boreham
Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd
Land North Of 386, Wisbech Road, Westry,
Permission in Principle for up to 9 x dwellings
Officer recommendation: Refuse

Reason for Committee: Town Council comments contrary to Officer
Recommendation

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1. The application seeks permission in principle of the erection of up to 9no.
dwellings on Land North of 386 Wisbech Road, Westry. As the application is
only for permission in principle, it is only possible to assess the location, land
use and amount of development proposed.

1.2. As assessed above, amount of development is acceptable in principle for new
residential development. However, the location of the site in an ‘Elsewhere’
Location fails to accord with the aims of Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan
(2014), where development is to be restricted to that which is essential to the
effective operation of rural enterprise, with no evidence submitted to
demonstrate this.

1.3. Further, the development of the site for residential purposes would not constitute
sustainable development, having regard to the settlement hierarchy as set out in
Policy LP3, and the Planning Inspector’s decision on a nearby site in relation to
application F/YR17/1114/0, resulting in an erosion of the open and rural
landscape character of the area.

1.4. The proposal is therefore considered to be unacceptable in planning terms, and
it is accordingly recommended that permission in principle is refused in this
instance.

2  SITE DESCRIPTION

2.1. The application site is located on Land North of 386 Wisbech Road, Westry. The
site is currently an undeveloped parcel of agricultural land.

2.2. There is residential development immediately to the north and south of the site,
with the site having a frontage of approximately 100m. There is also residential
development on the opposite side of Wisbech Road.

2.3. The site lies within Flood Zone 1 and is at very low risk of surface water flooding.

Page 81



3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

41.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

PROPOSAL

The proposal seeks permission in principle for the erection of up to 9no. dwellings
on the site.

Whilst not a requirement of a PiP application, an indicative site layout plan has
been submitted illustrating a centrally located access point onto Wisbech Road
serving all properties, with a linear form of development set back from the highway
by approximately 35m.

The indicative layout shows areas of soft landscaping along the front of the site,
with 2no. swales provided in this area to assist with drainage.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:

https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

SITE PLANNING HISTORY

There is no site history relevant to the determination of the application.

CONSULTATIONS
March Town Council — 04.11.25
Recommendation; Approval

Environmental Services - 24.10.25

No objection

CCC Archaeology — 27.10.25

No objection subject to condition securing scheme of archaeological work
CCC Highways - 03.11.25

No objection in principle — further details required at technical details stage

Anglian Water — 18.11.25
No objection
Mineral and Waste Authority — 19.11.25

The proposed dwellings at Plots 4 and 5 shown on the Proposed Site Plan
H10460/03A would be within the Consultation Area (CA) for the safeguarded
Waste Management Area (WMA) known as March AD Plant as identified under
Policy 16 (Consultation Areas) of the MWLP. Policy 16 seeks to safeguard waste
management facilities. It states that development within a CA will only be permitted
where it is demonstrated that the development will not prejudice the existing or
future use of the area, i.e. the waste management site for which the CA has been
designated; and not result in unacceptable amenity issues or adverse impacts to
human health for the occupiers or users of such new development, due to the
ongoing or future use of the area for which the CA has been designated.

Page 82


https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

5.7. Local Residents/Interested Parties

A total of 15no0. letters of objection were received from residents of Wisbech Road.

Objecting Comments Officer Response
Wisbech Road experiences a lot of traffic — See ‘Other Matters’ Section
HGV’s & Lorries

Development will result in increased traffic See ‘Other Matters’ Section
movements

Risk to pedestrians from proposed pavements — | See ‘Assessment’ section of report
approximate 45-minute walk to services &

facilities

Detriment to visibility of adjacent site access See ‘Other Matters’ Section
Loss of rural character See ‘Other Matters’ Section
Increased disturbance and lost of privacy to See ‘Other Matters’ Section
adjacent dwelling

Roadside drains overflowing See ‘Other Matters’ Section
Increased surface water flood risk See ‘Other Matters’ Section

6 STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014) the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Minerals and Waste Local Plan
(2021) and the March Neighbourhood Plan (2017).

7  POLICY FRAMEWORK

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2024

Chapter 2 - Achieving sustainable development

Chapter 4 — Decision-making

Chapter 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Chapter 8 — Promoting healthy and safe communities

Chapter 9 — Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 11 — Making effective use of land

Chapter 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 14 — Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Chapter 15 — Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Determining a Planning Application

National Design Guide 2021
Context

Identity

Built Form

Movement

Nature

Homes and Buildings

Fenland Local Plan 2014
LP1 — A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

Page 83



LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents
LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP4 — Housing
LP5 - Meeting Housing Need
LP9 — March

LP12 — Rural Areas Development Policy

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District

LP17 — Community Safety

LP19 — The Natural Environment

March Neighbourhood Plan 2017
H2 —  Windfall Development
H3 — Local Housing Need

Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments in Fenland SPD 2014
DM3 — Making a Positive Contribution to Local Distinctiveness and character of
the Area

Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD 2016

Emerging Local Plan

The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th
August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.
Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in
accordance with Paragraph 49 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry
extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are
policies:

LP1: Settlement Hierarchy

LP2: Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development
LP5: Health and Wellbeing

LP7: Design

LP8: Amenity Provision

LP12: Meeting Housing Needs

LP18: Development in the Countryside
LP20: Accessibility and Transport
LP22: Parking Provision

LP24: Natural Environment

LP25: Biodiversity Net Gain

LP27: Trees and Planting

LP28: Landscape

LP32: Flood and Water Management

KEY ISSUES

o Location

o Land Use

o Amount

. Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)

Page 84



9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

9.7.

ASSESSMENT

Noting the guidance in place regarding Permission in Principle submissions,
assessment must be restricted to (a) location, (b) use, and (c) amount, and these
items are considered in turn below.

Location

Policy LP1 is the overarching policy supporting a presumption in favour of
sustainable development, planning applications that accord with the policies within
the LDP will be approved without delay unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) sets out the settlement
hierarchy within the District, setting out the scale of development appropriate to
each level of the hierarchy. The application site is located in a generally rural
location, with limited access to services and facilities. As such, it is considered that
the site is located within an ‘Elsewhere’ location, as defined in Policy LP3 of the
Fenland Local Plan (2014). Policy LP3 stipulates that development in these
locations will be restricted to that which is demonstrably essential to the effective
operation of local enterprise. This position is further supported by Policy LP12.

This position was supported by an appeal decision made in respect of planning
application F/YR17/1114/0O (Appeal ref: APP/D0515/W/18/3209909) for a site
approximately 50m away, where the inspector concluded that this location should
be assessed as an ‘Elsewhere’ location on the basis of the descriptions as set out
in the Fenland Settlement Hierarchy.

Policy LP5 sets out the housing targets for the District and the Council has
undertaken a full assessment of the Five-Year Housing Land Suppl. In June 2025,
Fenland District Council published a new Five-Year Housing Land Supply report
(for the five-year period between 1st April 2025 and 31st March 2030) which
concludes that the Council can demonstrate a 6.6 years supply of housing land. As
the Council can demonstrate a robust supply of housing land which is well in
excess of five years supply, substantial weight is given to the Fenland Settlement
Hierarchy as specified within the Local Plan. Therefore, any application for new
development must be determined in accordance with the development plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

The submitted planning statement states that the site is located within the built
form of March and therefore accords with Policy LP3. However, on the basis of the
assessment above, and the Planning Inspectorate’s previous conclusion, it is not
considered that this is the case.

Further to this, the erection of 9 dwellings in a linear fashion in a generally rural
and open location such as this would inherently be to the detriment of the
character of the area through the urbanisation of an area characterised by
generally sporadic development.

No justification has been provided in support of the application to demonstrate that
the proposals would be essential to the effective operation of local enterprise, and
therefore it is considered that the proposal conflicts with the aims of Policy LP3 of

the Fenland Local Plan (2014), and therefore the location of the site is considered

to be unacceptable.

Use

Page 85



9.8. Whilst the site is located in what is considered to be a rural, ‘Elsewhere’ location,
there is existing sporadic residential development to the north and south of the site,
as well as on the opposite side of the highway.

9.9. Notwithstanding this, in the assessment of the aforementioned appeal on a nearby
site, the Planning Inspector concluded that this location would not be a suitable
location due to poor accessibility to services therefore rendering the location
generally unsustainable for residential development.

9.10. Given the proximity of this application site to that which was subject of the appeal,
it is not considered that the site would be materially different so as to render it a
sustainable location for residential development.

9.11.As such, it is not considered that the proposed use of the site for residential
purposes would accord with the aims of the Fenland Local Plan or NPPF in terms
of supporting sustainable development.

Amount

9.12. The application seeks Permission in Principle for up to 9no. dwellings. Whilst not
required as part of a PiP application, an indicative site layout plan has been
submitted showing 5no. detached properties in a linear arrangement, set back from
the public highway behind an access road running along the frontage of the site,
served by a single access point.

9.13. The site measures approximately 0.66 hectares in size. As such, the erection of
9no. dwellings would result in a density of approximately 12 dwellings per hectare.
It is considered that this is a relatively low density but would not be out of keeping
nor disproportionate in a more rural location such as this.

9.14.1t is considered that the development of the site for 9no. dwellings could likely be
accommodated in an acceptable and suitable manner at technical details stage.

9.15. Therefore, the principle of development in respect of the amount of development is
acceptable having regard to Policy LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014).

Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)

9.16. The Environment Act 2021 requires development proposals to deliver a net gain in
biodiversity following a mitigation hierarchy which is focused on avoiding ecological
harm over minimising, rectifying, reducing and then off-setting. This approach
accords with Local Plan policies LP16 and LP19 which outlines a primary objective
for biodiversity to be conserved or enhanced and provides for the protection of
Protected Species, Priority Species and Priority Habitat.

9.17. Applications for Permission in Principle is not within the scope of mandatory BNG.
However, any subsequent Technical Details Consent application would be required
to satisfy this requirement. It is at this point that the Biodiversity Gain Condition is
required to be approved before development is begun.

Other Matters

9.18. A number of representations on the application have been received raising
concerns about the development of the site in terms of highway safety and flood
risk associated with the site.

Page 86



9.19. The Highway Authority have commented on the proposal and have raised no
objection to the development in principle in highway safety terms. The Highway
Authority are content that sufficient visibility splays can be achieved from the
proposed access due to the geometry of Wisbech Road. It is, however, noted that
further information would be required at technical details stage to ensure that the
development is fully satisfactory in terms of highway safety.

9.20.In respect of flood risk, the site is located in Flood Zone 1 and is at low risk of
surface water flooding. As such, there are no issues to be resolved in relation to
Flood Risk, having regard to Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) and
Chapter 14 of the NPPF (2024).

9.21. The comments of the Mineral and Waste Planning Authority in relation to the
proximity of the site to the March AD Plant are considered matters which could be
addressed at the technical details stage.

10 CONCLUSIONS

11.1. The application seeks permission in principle of the erection of up to 9no. dwellings
on Land North of 386 Wisbech Road, Westry. As the application is only for
permission in principle, it is only possible to assess the location, land use and
amount of development proposed.

11.2. As assessed above, amount of development is acceptable in principle for new
residential development. However, the location and use of the site in an
‘Elsewhere’ Location fails to accord with the aims of Policy LP3 of the Fenland
Local Plan (2014), where development is to be restricted to that which is essential
to the effective operation of rural enterprise, with no evidence submitted to
demonstrate this.

11.3. Further, the development of the site for residential purposes would not constitute
sustainable development, having regard to the settlement hierarchy as set out in
Policy LP3, and the Planning Inspector’s decision on a nearby site in relation to
application F/YR17/1114/0, resulting in an erosion of the open and rural landscape
character of the area.

11.4. The proposal is therefore considered to be unacceptable in planning terms, and it
is accordingly recommended that permission in principle is refused in this instance.

11 RECOMMENDATION

Refuse; for the following reason:

1. | The proposed development, which is located outside the settlement of March,
is considered to be situated within the open countryside. Therefore, under
policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan the proposal is considered to be an
‘Elsewhere’ location. The application is not supported by sufficient justification
for dwellings in this location, where development is required to be essential
for the effective operation of rural enterprise. Further, the location of the site is
considered to be unsustainable for residential development and would result
in an incongruous erosion on the rural landscape character of the area,
contrary to the aims of Policies LP1, LP3, LP12 and LP16 of the Fenland
Local Plan, and chapter 2 of the NPPF (2024).

Page 87



F/YR25/0776/PIP

2 /’/
=1

10/21/2025, 10:18:58 AM 0 460
PO o :I ) f } } } } } } } i
Public Rights of Way Conservation Area Boundary 0 35 70 140 m
- = | Tree Preservation Orders Areas - Listed Building
& Tree Preservation Orders Trees [:| Fenland District Boundary
Fenland District Council
Uniform

© Crown Copyright and database rights 2025 Ordnance Suﬁsey AC0000815148.
age



68 abed

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

o)
V74 Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
V% starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt
(% ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.
=

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers
current recommendations.

The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and
forward to the Engineer

EXISTI

Baxters Farm

All finishes, insulation and damp—proofing to architect’s

N

details
0 STOREY
DWELLI
OVERHEAD
CABLES
?«
Baxters 2\ L i )
7 2 @ QA . ‘
Farm Cottages Y,
DRAINED AND SFALED
AWAY FROM HIGHWAY
N ‘:// METERS
) A 1:500 | [ I [ | [ | [ |
“%_}’ ‘\‘,‘!‘ WeStry 0O 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40
,,‘;"‘-“\5;’/"//\ S
e U
S %\\“\\\\\/% f/‘::‘"// OVERHEAD Lod ge
3 %‘«% CABLES
\‘ %%%% -
N @
LEGEND: e
“\?A/’g/éai | 30y PROPOSED FOOTPATH A SCHEME _AMENDED OCT 2025
%\%///‘/4“%"‘ TO CAMBRIDGESHIRE
e = COUNTY COUNCIL REVISIONS DATE
EXISTING DWELLINGS /%&‘ SPECIFICATIONS

oo
Yesls
fesss”
& =
\ \:“\
% 2
'{\\‘
\: 4\‘
N

PAVEMENT
EXISTING ACCESS CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454
March, Fax: 01354 660467
GRASS Cambridgeshire. E—mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk
PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

~ Fenland District Council
Building

= MARSHALLS BRINDLE LABC™ LABC
Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland ‘

BLOCK PAVING

. = MARSHALLS CHARCOAL
2
2

1102 ® 6002
Y3INNIM AHOO3LVYO

New
Marshall House

BLOCK PAVING

CLIENT

Mr Clive & Mrs Giddens

PROJECT

Land North of Marshall
House, Wisbech Road,
March, Cambridgheshire,

TARMAC

GRAVEL
% SLAB PAVING
L | WHEELIE BINS ‘ ; PE15 OBA
PSme  HEDGING ___v/://l\\\// ;‘ )

A D ‘ Proposed Site Plan
' VEGETATION | S
INDICATIVE
SB = 2m SILVER BIRCH (BETULA PENDULA)
CH = 2m CHERRY TREE (PRUNUS REGINA) ‘ ™" G.Boreham e
PROPOSED INDICATIVE SITE PLAN N The Paddocks e = usholme

Y

N
>

4

DATE DRAWING NUMBER

Oct 2025

(1 :500) WGStVleW ™ As Shown H1 0460/03A



AutoCAD SHX Text_708
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
Mr Clive & Mrs Giddens

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
Land North of Marshall 

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
House, Wisbech Road,

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
March, Cambridgheshire,

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
PE15 0BA

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
Proposed Site Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
INDICATIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
G.Boreham

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
Oct 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
H10460/03

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
PROPOSED INDICATIVE SITE PLAN (1:500)

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
SLAB PAVING 

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
WHEELIE BINS

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
VEGETATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
EXISTING DWELLINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
HEDGING

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
1:500

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
METERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
EXISTING ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
EXISTING ACCESS TO FIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
EXISTING ACCESS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
EXISTING ACCESS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
EXISTING ACCESS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
EXISTING ACCESS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
EXISTING ACCESS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
EXISTING ACCESS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
EXISTING ACCESS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
TWO STOREY DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
TWO STOREY DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
TWO STOREY DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
OVERHEAD CABLES 

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
OVERHEAD CABLES 

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
ACCESS FOR REAR FIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
PROPOSED LOCATION OF BIN COLLECTION POINT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
FIRST 10m OF ACCESS TO BE TO CAMBRIDGESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL SPECIFICATIONS, DRAINED AND SEALED AWAY FROM HIGHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
1.2m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
1.2m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
1.2m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
1.2m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
1.2m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
1.2m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
= MARSHALLS BRINDLE    BLOCK PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
= MARSHALLS CHARCOAL    BLOCK PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
SB = 2m SILVER BIRCH (BETULA PENDULA)

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
CH = 2m CHERRY TREE (PRUNUS REGINA)

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
2.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
35m

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
35.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
35.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
35.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
35m

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
SHARED PRIVATE DRIVE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
PLOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
PLOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
PLOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
PLOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
PLOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
1.8m CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
SCHEME AMENDED

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
OCT 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
PROPOSED FOOTPATH LINK TO CAMBRIDGESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
2m


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date 10 December 2025

Title TPO04/2025 Tavistock Road

1. PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to advise members of the current situation in respect of
confirmation of a Tree Preservation Order (TPO) at Cedar Manor, 20 Tavistock Road
Wisbech, and to determine an appropriate course of action.

2. SUMMARY

The emergency TPO was requested owing to Arboricultural Officer and Conservation Officer
consultation comments to an application for works to trees in a conservation area (TRCA) ref:
F/YR25/0646/TRCA), objecting to the works to the trees within the application. The works that
were proposed to tree under application F/YR25/046/TRCA) were to pollard the tree down to
5m above ground level. The Arboricultural Officer requested an emergency tree Preservation
Order (TPO) and submitted a Tree Evaluation Method for Preservation Order form confirming
the requirement for the TPO.

Matters relating to the issue and confirmation of a TPO are normally dealt with by delegated
powers and confirmations are only referred to this Committee where objections to the Order
are received. An objection to the TPO was received from the neighbour at 22 Tavistock Road.

In October 2025 an Emergency TPO was imposed on 1x Sycamore Tree at Cedar Manor 20
Tavistock Road, Wisbech. The Order was required to ensure the trees are protected as they
are highly prominent trees located within the Wisbech Bowthorpe Conservation Area, which
contributes to the amenity and character of the area.

No consultation responses were received regarding the emergency TPO from the applicant,
nor the town/parish council.

The Sycamore tree is located within the Bowthorpe Conservation Area and is within the
historic curtilage of the important (but not listed) Bowthorpe Hall. Modern residential
development has been previously permitted within the front curtilage of the hall that has
detached it from its frontage and boundary wall. The trees are in close quarters with the
modern host dwelling (20 Tavistock Rd). The tree is important in the setting of Bowthorpe Hall
and also forms a positive backdrop of views from Tavistock Road and important screening of
the modern dwellings within the immediate setting of Bowthorpe Hall.

The justification given for pollarding the tree was that the tree has become overbearing, with
cavities forming in the trunk meaning risk of failure. The Arboricultural Officer stated in their
response to the TRCA application that the proposed re-pollarding would reduce the canopy to
a level which would mean the tree is screened by surrounding vegetation and its wider
amenity value would be lost.

The tree report submitted with the original application does not provide sufficient evidence to
justify the conclusions it makes. No photographs, decay detection results, or internal

Page 91




investigations of the noted decay pockets have been included to support the claim that re-
pollarding is the only management option available. Without such evidence, it is not possible
to rule out less severe works that would both retain the amenity value of the trees and
potentially provide a more appropriate management solution.

This approach ensures that any trees of merit are afforded suitable safeguarding and reduces
the risk of future inappropriate works being carried out.

3. RECOMMENDATION

It is therefore recommended that members confirm the TPO in respect of the 1x
Sycamore Tree at Cedar Manor, 20 Tavistock Road, Wisbech.

Forward Plan Reference No.
(if applicable)

Not applicable

Portfolio Holder(s)

Not applicable

Report Originator

Tracy Ranger, Development Officer

Contact Officer(s)

Matthew Leigh, Head of Planning

Background Paper(s)

N/A

Page 92




1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

3.1

3.2

3.3

BACKGROUND

A TRCA application (a notification of proposed works to trees within a Conservation
Area. Town and Country Planning Act 1990.) was received under reference
F/YR25/0646/TRCA for Works to 1 x Sycamore tree within a conservation area.

The Arboricultural Officer completed an evaluation of all the trees at the site for a
potential TPO using TEMPO (Tree Evaluation Method for Preservation Orders) and
considered that the 1x Sycamore tree warranted a TPO.

During the processing of the TPO an objection from the neighbour at 22 Tavistock
Road was received resulting in the confirmation of the no. 1 tree to be presented to
the Planning Committee.

ASSESSMENT

The Order, which encompasses the site at Cedar Manor 20 Tavistock Road is
detailed on the accompanying plan.

Matters relating to the issue and confirmation of a TPO are normally dealt with by
delegated powers and confirmations are only referred to Committee where
objections to an Order are received.

The placement of a TPO does not prevent tree works or even removal but gives the
Local Planning Authority control over ‘inappropriate’ works.

The neighbour has objected to the placing of the TPO for the 1x Sycamore tree at
Cedar Manor, 20 Tavistock Road, where it was requested that the TPO be cancelled.
The neighbour detailed their reasons for objecting to the TPO as the following:

. Previously the tree branches have grown in such a way that they’ve touched a
bedroom window.

o In a recent storm a number of branches fell off onto the patio. We often have
to remove branches which have landed on the roof of our summer house & it’s
only a matter of time before this structure is seriously damaged.

o It is evident that the falling branches are getting worse so it’s obvious the tree
is becoming compromised & is not safe.

ARBORICULTURAL OFFICER’S ASSESSMENT

It is considered that the tree is of high amenity value within the Wisbech Bowthorpe
Conservation Area.

The tree in question is considered by the Arboricultural Officer to offer considerable
levels of positive verdant amenity to the conservation area, street scene, nearby
non-designated heritage asset and the host dwelling. The tree adds to the character
of the Bowthorpe Conservation Area and the setting of the non-designated heritage
asset (Bowthorpe Hall), where tree removal or harsh pruning works could impact on
this. The tree is significant, and no suitable justification has been provided to pollard
it.

It is considered expedient to place a TPO on the 1x Sycamore tree to contribute to
tree cover, amenity and biodiversity.

Page 93



3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

In light of the above considerations, it is considered that the placing of a TPO is the
correct decision to ensure that the correct advice and guidance is obtained
regarding protection of the tree population.

CONCLUSION

The justification given for pollarding the tree was that the tree has become
overbearing, with cavities forming in the trunk meaning risk of failure. The
Arboricultural Officer stated in their response to the TRCA application that the
proposed re-pollarding would reduce the canopy to a level which would mean the
tree is screened by surrounding vegetation and its wider amenity value would be
lost.

The tree report submitted with the original application does not provide sufficient
evidence to justify the conclusions it makes. No photographs, decay detection
results, or internal investigations of the noted decay pockets have been included to
support the claim that re-pollarding is the only management option available. Without
such evidence, it is not possible to rule out less severe works that would both retain
the amenity value of the trees and potentially provide a more appropriate
management solution.

Due consideration has been given to the objection from the neighbour; however it is
considered that the tree identified within the proposed TPO offers considerable levels
of tree cover and positive amenity to the Bowthorpe Conservation Area, street scene,
nearby non designated heritage asset (Bowthorpe Hall) and the host dwelling. As
such, the TPO should be in place to protect this significant tree.

It is therefore recommended that the TPO at Cedar Manor, 20 Tavistock Road
Wisbech is confirmed.

Page 94



_-oa

el

Tall
Timbers

Created on: 03/10/2025

Scale = 1:1,000

© Crown Copyright and database
rights 2025 Ordnance Survey 10023778

TPO04/2025
Tavistock Road Wisbech
T01 - Sycamore Tree

strict Counci

Page 95



TREE EVALUATION METHOD FOR PRESERVATION ORDERS (TEMPO):

SURVEY DATA SHEET & DECISION GUIDE

Date: 03/10/25 Surveyor: Andrew Day

Tree details

TPO Ref (if applicable): Tree/Group No: T1 Species: Sycamore
Owner (if known): Location: 20 Tavistock

Road, Wisbech

Part 1: Amenity assessment
a) Condition & suitability for TPO: Refer to Guidance Note for definitions

Score & Notes 1

5) Good Highly suitable
3) Fair Suitable
1) Poor Unlikely to be suitable

0) Dead/dying/dangerous Unsuitable

b) Remaining longevity (in years) & suitability for TPO: Refer to
‘Species Guide’ section in Guidance Note

Score & Notes

5) 100+ Highly suitable 4

4) 40-100 Very suitable
2) 20-40 Suitable

1) 10-20 Just suitable
0) <10 Unsuitable

c) Relative public visibility & suitability for TPO:
Consider realistic potential for future visibility with changed land use.

5) Very large trees with some visibility, or ~ prominent large trees Score &
3) Medium trees, or large trees with limited view only Notes 3
2) Young, small trees, or medium/large trees visible only
with difficulty
1) Trees not visible to the public, regardless of size

d) Other factors

Trees must have accrued 7 or more points (with no zero score) to qualify Score & Notes
1

5) Principal components of formal arboricultural features, or veteran trees 4)
Tree groups or principal members of tree groups important for their cohesion
3) Trees with identifiable historic, commemorative or habitat importance

2) Trees of particularly good form, especially if rare or unusual

1) Trees with none of the above additional redeeming features
-1) Trees with poor form or which are generally unsuitable for their location

Part 2: Expediency assessment

Trees must have accrued 10 or more points to qualify Score & Notes 5

5) Immediate threat to tree inc. s.211 Notice
3) Foreseeable threat to tree

2) Perceived threat to tree

Page 96




Part 3: Decision guide

Any 0
1-6
7-10
11-14
15+

Do not apply TPO
TPO indefensible
Does not merit TPO
TPO defensible
Definitely merits TPO

Decision: 14

Add Scores for Total:

Page 97



Created on: 24/11/2025 TP00412025 Feﬂlaﬂd

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

© Crown Copyright and database _ .
rights 2025 Ordnance Survey 10023778 Scale = 1:500 Fenland District Council




Agenda Item 9

F/YR25/0726/PIP

Applicant: Savage Developments Ltd Agent : Mr R Papworth
Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd

Land South Of 29, Primrose Hill, Doddington, Cambridgeshire
Permission in Principle for 2 x dwellings
Officer recommendation: Refuse

Reason for Committee: Number of representations contrary to Officer
recommendation.

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This application seeks Permission in Principle (PiP) for the development of two
dwellings on Land South of 29 Primrose Hill, outside the developed footprint of
Doddington.

1.2 Under Policies LP3 and LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan, the site is considered to
be in an 'Elsewhere' location, where new housing is only supported if it is
demonstrably essential to a rural-based enterprise. No such justification has been
provided. The development would therefore be in direct conflict with the settlement
hierarchy and spatial strategy of the Local Plan.

1.3 The site lies within Flood Zones 1, 2 and 3. Built development is shown in flood
zones 2 and 3. The application is not accompanied by a sequential test and as
such insufficient assessment has been undertaken and inadequate information
submitted to demonstrate that it is not possible for the development to be located
on a site with a lower risk of flooding. It is therefore considered that the proposal is
not in accordance with Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan, 2014, and Chapter
14 of the National Planning Policy Framework, 2024.

1.4 Although the density of development proposed is low and could be accommodated
physically on the site, this does not overcome the fundamental policy objections
regarding location and use. Other technical details, including highway safety, would
be addressed at the second stage (Technical Details Consent), though no
objections have been raised by the highways authority at this stage.

1.5 Therefore, the proposed development fails to comply with the Local Plan's spatial
strategy and the site's location remains unsuitable for residential development in
principle.

1.6 Accordingly, this application is recommended for refusal.

2  SITE DESCRIPTION

Page 99



2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

5.1

The application site is located outside of the settlement footprint of Doddington, to
the west side of Primrose Hill and is an agricultural field within an area
characterised by its open, agricultural nature with some sporadic development. To
the north of the site is 29 Primrose Hill which is a replacement dwelling. On the
opposite side of Primrose Hill are a pair of barns which have been converted to
residential. The site is bordered by post and rail fencing to the boundary with 29
Primrose Hill and open boundaries to the east, south and west.

The site topography slopes away from the highway with a drain located to the
eastern frontage of the site and a separate drain to the southern boundary. The
majority of the site is located in Flood Zones 2 and 3, with the north-eastern corner
of the site located in Flood Zone 1. None of the site is subject to a low, medium or
high annual likelihood of surface water flooding.

PROPOSAL

A location plan and an indicative site layout (although not a requirement of a PiP
application) accompany this submission. The indicative site layout proposes a new
5.5 metre wide shared access road in the north-east corner of the site leading to
two dwellings with detached work units. The dwellings shown face onto Primrose
Hill with large rear gardens containing a pond and planting around the site
boundaries.

The current proposal is the first part of the Permission in Principle application; this
first stage’ establishes whether a site is suitable in principle only, and assesses
the ‘principle’ issues, namely; (1) Location (2) Use, and (3) Amount of development
proposed

Should this application be successful the applicant will have to submit a Technical
details application covering all the other detailed material planning considerations.
The approval of Permission in Principle does not constitute the grant of planning
permission.

The applicant is only required to submit a completed application form, a plan which
identifies the land to which the application relates (drawn to scale and with a north
point) and the application fee.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

SITE PLANNING HISTORY

No relevant site history.

CONSULTATIONS
Doddington Parish Council — 04 November 2025

Object

Page 100


https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

5.2

5.3

Location - This part of Primrose Hill, being a significant distance from the
developed boundary of Doddington, is open countryside where any proposed
development needs to be fully justified by special circumstances. None have been
provided to support these two PIP applications and the applications therefore
conflict with FDC’s Policy LP3. In addition, there is a conflict with policy LP12 as
both developments would have an adverse impact on the character of the
surrounding countryside.

Access - This section of Primrose Hill has a speed limit of 60mph whether traffic
has left Doddington travelling towards Chatteris or heading towards Doddington
from Chatteris. Any traffic needing access to or from the development under
application F/YR25/0726/PIP must join Primrose Hill. Traffic needing access to or
from the development under application F/YR25/0730/PIP will initially join
Dykemoor Drove, a badly maintained track, before joining Primrose Hill. This area
of Primrose Hill has no street lighting or a footpath along the roadway to cater for
pedestrians. These dwellings together with their occupational units will create
additional traffic movements thereby increasing the risk of accidents on this busy,
fast road.

Workplace Units - No justification has been given that demonstrates there is a
need for workplace units in Doddington. Similar developments to those being
suggested have been built in Manea and Chatteris. Over the time since their
development a significant number of them have been converted into residential
use by the dwelling or are now used as residential annexes for relatives.

Cambridgeshire County Council — Highways — 22 October 2025

No objections - The applicant has shown a shared use access at a location with
good visibility in either direction which appear to be within the highway extent. |
would however note that all and any requirements for this access e.q. visibility
splays, widths, material etc... will need to be shown on any future submissions and
be to the correct guidance and specifications. As such this non objection by the
LHA is just for the principal of the development and not agreement that is accurate
at this stage or acceptable to the LHA.

Cambridgeshire County Council — Archaeology — 13 October 2025

Our records indicate that the development lies in an area of archaeological
potential, on a spur of higher ground on the southern fen edge of Doddington
where the land drops off to the deeper fen to the south. The fen edge was an area
commonly settled and exploited during the prehistoric to Roman periods. This has
been evidenced in the vicinity of the development area through findspots of a
Neolithic ground flint axe (Cambridgeshire Historic Environment Record reference.
03677) and a late Bronze Age rapier (CHER ref. CB14520). Roman occupation
has been recorded at Primrose Hill itself, through pottery and a hearth sealed by
peat formed through later marine inundation (CHER ref. 03778). The finds were
identified through deep ploughing, with hearth features and pottery being reported.

Whilst this site lies in an area of archaeological interest we cannot make specific
recommendations without sight of a finalised site layout plan and an understanding
of the scale and impacts of the proposed development. We are however content
that no works are required prior to determination of an application and
consequently we wish to raise no objections for this application to secure Planning
In Principle, however we would request to be consulted on any future planning
application for development within the redline area indicated, with the expectation

Page 101



5.4

5.5

6.1

that a condition on development, if required, could be secured at Technical Details

stage.

Fenland District Council — Environmental Health — 10 October 2025

No objection.

Local Residents/Interested Parties

Six communications of objection have been received. Five are from addresses in
Doddington, namely Primrose Hill x 4 and The Grange . One further objection is

from Doddington Road in Benwick.

Objecting Comments

Officer Response

Highway safety

This will be addressed in the Location section.

Development in an ‘Elsewhere’ location.

This will be addressed in the Location section.

Flood Risk and Drainage

This will be addressed in the Location section.

Impact on rural character

This will be addressed in the Location section.

Would set a development precedent.

This will be addressed in the Location section.

Commercial units not in an appropriate
location.

This will be addressed in the Use section.

No evidence of workplace homes demand in
the area.

This will be addressed in the Use section.

Loss of view

This will be addressed in the Matters Raised
During Consultation section.

Potential overlooking

This will be addressed in the Matters Raised
During Consultation section.

Impact on wildlife

This will be addressed in the Matters Raised
During Consultation section

Size of proposed dwellings

This will be addressed in the Matters Raised
During Consultation section.

Seven communications of support have been received. Three are from
Doddington, on Benwick Road, Turf Fen Lane and Askham Row. Two are from
Chatteris, on Gull Way and Lode Way. One supporter is from Williams Way in
Manea and one from Brewin Avenue in March.

Supporting Comments

Officer Response

The dwellings are near an existing business

This will be addressed in the Location section.

The dwellings are near a new development

This will be addressed in the Location section.

There is a need for occupational dwellings.

This will be addressed in the Use section.

The housing should be for local residents

This will be addressed in the Use section.

The housing will help retain local
entrepreneurs and professionals.

This will be addressed in the Use section.

There is a housing shortage in the country.

This will be addressed in the Use section.

STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan

(2014).

POLICY FRAMEWORK

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2024

Page 102




Chapter 2 - Achieving sustainable development

Chapter 4 — Decision-making

Chapter 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Chapter 9 — Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 11 — Making effective use of land

Chapter 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 14 — Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Chapter 15 — Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

Context Paragraph: 012 (Reference ID: 58-012-20180615). The scope of
permission in principle is limited to location, land use and amount of development.
Issues relevant to these ‘in principle’ matters should be considered at the
permission in principle stage. Other matters should be considered at the technical
details consent stage. In addition, local authorities cannot list the information they
require for applications for permission in principle in the same way they can for
applications for planning permission but can advise applicants on the decision
notice, where Permission in Principle is granted, what they would expect to see at
Technical Details stage.

National Design Guide 2021
Context

|dentity

Built Form

Nature

Uses

Homes and Buildings

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 - A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP4 — Housing

LP5 - Meeting Housing Need

LP12 — Rural Areas Development Policy

LP13 — Supporting and Managing the Impact of a Growing District

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District

LP19 — The Natural Environment

Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments in Fenland SPD 2014

DM2 — Natural Features and Landscaping Schemes

DM3 — Making a Positive Contribution to Local Distinctiveness and character of
the Area

Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD 2016
Emerging Local Plan
The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th

August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.

Page 103



9.1

9.2

10

Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in
accordance with Paragraph 49 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry
extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are
policies:

LP1: Settlement Hierarchy

LP2:  Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development
LP4: Securing Fenland’s Future

LPS:  Health and Wellbeing

LP7: Design

LP8:  Amenity Provision

LP12: Meeting Housing Needs

LP18: Development in the Countryside
LP19: Strategic Infrastructure

LP20: Accessibility and Transport
LP22: Parking Provision

LP24: Natural Environment

KEY ISSUES
° Location
. Use

° Amount

BACKGROUND

The proposal is an application for Permission in Principle to develop the site for 2
dwellings. The Permission in Principle route has 2 stages: the first stage (or
Permission in Principle Stage) establishes whether the site is suitable in principle
and assesses the principle issues namely:

(1) Location
(2) Use, and
(3) Amount of development proposed

And the second (Technical Details Consent) stage is when the detailed
development proposals are addressed. Technical details consent would need to be
applied for should the application be granted.

Evaluation of a PIP must be restricted to the issues highlighted above; even if
technical issues are apparent from the outset these can form no part of the
determination of Stage 1 of the process, Accordingly, some matters raised via
statutory bodies may not be addressed at this time.

ASSESSMENT

Location

10.1 Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) identifies Doddington as being a

‘Growth Village’'. For these settlements, development and new service provision
either within the existing urban area or as a small village extension will be
appropriate albeit of a considerably more limited scale than that appropriate to the
Market Towns.

Page 104



10.2 Policy LP12 identifies that to receive support, the site must be in or adjacent to the
existing developed footprint of the village, defined as the continuous built form of
the village and excludes individual buildings and groups of dispersed, or
intermittent buildings, that are clearly detached from the continuous built-up area of
the settlement. The Local Plan does not rely on defined settlement boundaries but
rather requires a physical assessment to be made to determine whether or not a
site is within a village for the purposes of Policy LP12. This results in a situation
where a site could be considered in general terms to be part of the village but not
be in the village for the purposes of the spatial strategy. It is considered that the
site is visibly separated from the edge of the built-up settlement of Doddington by
approximately 1 km when travelled by road.

10.3 It is apparent, that in the case of the application site, it is clearly detached from the
remainder of Doddington by agricultural fields and thus outside the continuous built
form of the settlement. The majority of the surrounding area is agricultural in use
and rural in nature. As such the proposal would constitute development in an
‘Elsewhere’ location as defined under LP3 which seeks to restrict that to essential
rural based development. The proposal is therefore in conflict with Policies LP3
and LP12.

10.4 Policy LP5 sets out the housing targets for the District and the Council has
undertaken a full assessment of the Five Year Housing Land Supply in the District
and has concluded that the Council is able to demonstrate a supply of specific
deliverable sites sufficient to provide for more than Five Years’ worth of housing
against the Council’s identified requirements . This is a material consideration and
means that any application for new development must be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.

10.5 The site comprises of approximately 0.52ha of Grade 3 Agricultural land as defined
by DEFRA (Defra Spatial Data Download) and classified as very good.

10.6 Policy LP12 ((i) states that development should not result in the loss of high grade
agricultural land or if so comprehensive evidence is provided to justify the loss.
Para 187 of the NPPF recognises the intrinsic character and beauty of the
countryside, including the economic and other benefits of the best and most
versatile (BMV) agricultural land (defined as Grades 1, 2 and 3a) and para 188
(footnote 65) advises that where significant development of agricultural land is
demonstrated to be necessary, areas of poorer quality land should be preferred to
those of a higher quality.

10.7 Having regard to the wider DEFRA mapping site, it is acknowledged that a
significant majority of the Fenland District falls within the BMV land with only the
urban areas of the main Market Towns, the Kings Delph and Morton’s Leam areas
and the north of March including the prison area falling within the lower grades. As
such, it is recognised that there are very few areas of poorer quality agricultural
land, and it would not be possible therefore for Fenland to meet its housing
demands without developing areas of BMV land.

10.8 This does not however confer that all agricultural land should be developed,
especially where it relates more to open countryside than to the settlement and
Officers consider that this is the intention of LP12, Part A (c), supported by the
preamble at paragraph 4.7.1 of the Fenland Local Plan. An assessment however
should be made as to the relationship of the land to the open countryside, in

Page 105



comparison to the built envelope of the settlement. As stated in the section above,
the application site is considered to relate more to the open countryside than the
built form, though it is acknowledged that 0.52ha is not significant in the context of
BMV land within Fenland.

10.9 The site and surrounding area is unlit and is not served by a footpath. However,
there is a bus stop located to the frontage of site which can provide a public
transport link to good and services in Doddington, Chatteris and beyond.

10.10 It is noted that the Agent has advised of other occupational / workplace
developments having been approved at Charlemont Drive, Manea, as well as
George Way and Albert Way in Chatteris. Each application must be determined on
its own merits. Notwithstanding this basic principle, it is considered that the sites
are materially different in that these dwellings are considered to be within the
established settlement, have lit roads and are served by footpaths. The site the
subject of this application is within open countryside, and no justification has been
provided as to why workplace dwellings are essential in this unsustainable
location. To allow workplace dwellings in this location would set a harmful
development precedent that would urbanise an area of open countryside that is
over 1 kilometre by road from the edge of the built up settlement of Doddington.

10.11 The site lies within Flood Zones 1, 2 and 3. Built development is shown in flood
zones 2 and 3. The application is not accompanied by a sequential test and as
such insufficient assessment has been undertaken and inadequate information
submitted to demonstrate that it is not possible for the development to be located
on a site with a lower risk of flooding. It is therefore considered that the proposal is
not in accordance with Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan, 2014, and Chapter
14 of the National Planning Policy Framework, 2024.

10.12 As per Policy LP3, development not falling into one of the categories set out in
the settlement hierarchy will fall into the “elsewhere” category and will be restricted
to that which is demonstrably essential to the effective operation of local
agriculture, horticulture, forestry, outdoor recreation, transport or utility services or
to minerals and waste development. Whilst the application is for two “occupational
dwellings”, the application does not state that these are specifically in relation to
any of the industries defined by Policy LP3. Development of this site would
introduce a formal, linear extension into the open countryside, which does not
respect the rural character. If this development was supported it would result in an
unacceptable urbanisation to the detriment of the open countryside through the
erosion the rural character of the locality. To allow unjustified residential
development in this unsustainable location would set a precedent for future
development, further eroding the open character of the area.

Use

10.13 The site is situated close to existing development in the open countryside,
however as stated above, it will be contrary to Policy LP12 — Rural Areas
Development Policy and Policy LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality
Environments across the District. The introduction of residential workplace units
and associated paraphernalia is considered to erode the character and
appearance of the open countryside. It is therefore considered that the site is not
acceptable to use for new dwellings.

10.14 In addition, whilst perhaps being a matter more appropriate for consideration at
Technical Consent stage, the location of the site for commercial activity and the

Page 106



established dwellings does raise potential issues around noise and whether a
high quality residential environment would ultimately be created.

10.15 Supporters of the proposal state that there is a need for occupational dwellings,
however, no supporting information has been provided to demonstrate this
unsustainable location has sufficient demand for workplace homes. Additionally,
no existing or proposed businesses have been identified to fill the workplace
units. One letter of support states that the housing should be for local residents,
however, there is no mechanism to secure this. Supporters also state that the
housing will help retain local entrepreneurs and professionals, however, that does
not justify development in an unsustainable location in Flood Zone 3.

Amount of Development Proposed

10.16 The application seeks Permission in Principle for two dwellings on a site of
0.52ha which will equate to a density of approximately 4 dwellings per hectare.
This is low density and could comfortably be accommodated on-site without
being considered an overdevelopment of the site. However, it is difficult to make
a direct comparison to other dwellings in the vicinity as they are low in number
and do not contain workplace unit buildings. The detailed layout and design will
be for consideration at the Technical details stage. In terms of consideration of
amount, the proposal is acceptable.

10.17 An objection has been raised as to the size of the proposed dwellings, however,
the proposed design is indicative, and therefore no planning weight can be given
to these comments at this stage of the planning process.

Matters Raised During Consultation

10.18 It should be noted that a number of supporting letters have commented noting
that the provision of two dwellings will not impact on highway safety or increase
congestion. These comments are noted, and this does form a material
consideration as part of this assessment, but as discussed above there are no
concerns, in respect of highway matters to the amount of development proposed.

10.19 ltis also noted that the Parish Council have raised concerns in terms of
congestion and the associated Highways impact of the proposal, however,
Cambridgeshire County Highways have raised no concerns at this stage, with
any additional details being secured at the Technical Details stage or subject of a
subsequent application. Further given that the proposal relates to two dwellings
this quantum of development, is unlikely to result in sufficient harm, to justify the
refusal of the application contrary to the Highway Authority’s recommendation.

10.20 Comments have been raised about impact on wildlife however, this is a matter
which is not attributed material weight at this stage of the application process.
Additional public comments raise overlooking concerns, however, this is a matter
that could only be determined at the Technical Details stage. Some comments
points to the national housing shortage. The only new dwelling approved in the
vicinity of the site is for a dwelling of exceptional design under F/YR21/0015/F
which accorded with local and national planning policy.

11 CONCLUSIONS

Page 107



11.1 As indicated above it is only location, use and amount of development that may
be considered at the first ‘permission in principle stage’ and it is considered that
the location and use of the site for residential development is unacceptable due
to the conflict with the settlement hierarchy of the Local Plan.

11.2 The principle of development is not supported as the site does not adjoin the built
form and whilst the proposal is for workplace dwellings there is no planning
justification for such a dwelling in this location.

11.3 The site is partially located in Flood Zone 2 and 3. The application is not
accompanied by a sequential test and as such insufficient assessment has been
undertaken and inadequate information submitted to demonstrate that it is not
possible for the development to be located on a site with a lower risk of flooding.

11.4 As such the application is considered to be in conflict with both national and local
policy and accordingly the recommendation is one of refusal.

12 RECOMMENDATION

Refuse; Permission in Principle for the following reason:

1. The application site constitutes an area of land located outside the developed
footprint of Doddington. Development of this site would result in an unacceptable
urbanisation, extending development into the countryside. It would likely set a
precedent for future development, further eroding the character of the area and
the open countryside. The development proposal will be in an ‘elsewhere’
location contrary to Policies LP3 and LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014). As
such any residential development on this site will be contrary to the above policy
considerations and thus, in terms of location and use, the Planning in Principle
application fails.

2 Policy LP14 (Part B) of the Local Plan requires development in Flood Zone 3 to
undergo a sequential test to demonstrate that the development cannot be
delivered elsewhere in the area at lower risk areas of flooding. Policy LP2 seeks
to deliver high quality environments, ensuring that people are not put at
identified risks from development thereby avoiding adverse impacts in the
interests of health and wellbeing. The site lies within Flood Zone 3 which is a
high risk flood area. The applicant has failed to undertake a substantive and
evidenced sequential test and has therefore failed to demonstrate that the
development could not be delivered in an area of lower flood risk, thereby failing
LP14 (Part B). Consequently, the proposal fails to satisfy policy LP2 of the
Fenland Local Plan as it fails to deliver a high quality environment and
unjustifiably puts future occupants at higher risk of flooding.

Page 108



F/YR25/0726/PIP

Howmoor Farm

Wir

Track

10/8/2025, 2:47:55 PM 1:1,250
55 110 220 ft

o T O

[:] Fenland District Boundary 15 30 60 m

Fenland District Council

Uniform
© Crown Copyright and database rights 2025 Ordnance SuBeéAgCOOO 815148.
e



0TT abed

I\ \ \

u\elG

DYKEMOOR DROVE

DYKEMOOR D

Dyke Moor

PRIMROSE HILL

PRIMROSE HiLL

£

Howmoor Farm

L]

]

S
LOCATION PLAN (1:1250)

METERS

s NN W .
5 10 15 20

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers
current recommendations.

The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and
forward to the Engineer

All finishes, insulation and damp—proofing to architect’s
details

REVISIONS DATE

MoRrToN & HALL
ConsuLTING LiIMITED

1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454

March, Fax: 01354 660467
Combridgeshire. E—mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk

PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

‘ Fenland District Council
LABS™ LABS™ o
Building

Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland .

1102 ® 6002
Y3INNIM AHOO3LVYO

CLIENT

Savage Developments Ltd

PROJECT

Proposed Development
South of 29 Primrose Hill
Doddington

Cambs PE15 OSU

Location Plan
DRAWN MH DATE OF ISSUE
DATE July 2025 DRAWING NUMBER
 Shour H10633/OB



AutoCAD SHX Text_879
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
Savage Developments Ltd

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
Proposed Development 

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
South of 29 Primrose Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
Doddington

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
Cambs PE15 0SU

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
Location Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
July 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
H10633/03

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
LOCATION PLAN (1:1250)

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
METERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
289600

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
289800


TTT abed

SED T
N2

s"Q‘
A\

vy

5y

NN
NANAT

PRIMROSE HiLL

PRIMROSE HILL

NEW 5.5m x 10m ACCESS TO
CAMBRIDGESHIRE COUNTY
COUNCIL GUIDELINES. SEALED
AND DRAINED AWAY FROM THE
HIGHWAY.

ecc

¢c¢

v

__

Howmoor Farm

a.

-

without their written permission.
consulting the Engineers.

starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt

Where materials, products and workmanship are

specification. All work to be in accordance with

appropriate, BS or EC marks.

current recommendations.

The contractor is to arrange inspections of the
forward to the Engineer

details

N

S

SITE PLAN (1:500)

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

All finishes, insulation and damp—proofing to architect’s

INDICATIVE PROPOSED

not fully

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where

works

REVISIONS

DATE

MoRrTon & HALL
ConsuLTING LiIMITED

uuuuuuuuuu

1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454

March, Fax: 01354 660467
Combridgeshire. E—mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk

PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

~ Fenland District Council | 3

LABC” LABC o
Building
Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland .
CLIENT

Savage Developments Ltd

PROJECT

Proposed Development

Doddington
Cambs PE15 OSU

South of 29 Primrose Hill

Indicative Proposed
Site Plan

- e —

o=

T July 2025 PRANG NAWBER

o H10633 /04



AutoCAD SHX Text_943
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
Savage Developments Ltd

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
Proposed Development 

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
South of 29 Primrose Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
Doddington

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
Cambs PE15 0SU

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
Indicative Proposed

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
Site Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
July 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
H10633/04

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
INDICATIVE PROPOSED SITE PLAN (1:500)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
NEW 5.5m x 10m ACCESS TO CAMBRIDGESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL GUIDELINES. SEALED AND DRAINED AWAY FROM THE HIGHWAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
WORK UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
WORK UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
PLOT 1 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
PLOT 2 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
BCP


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

F/YR25/0729/PIP

Applicant: Mr W Savage Agent : Mr R Papworth
Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd

Land North Of 10, Primrose Hill, Doddington, Cambridgeshire
Permission in Principle to erect 4 workplace dwellings
Officer recommendation: Refuse

Reason for Committee: Number of representations contrary to Officer
recommendation.

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This application seeks Permission in Principle (PiP) for the development of four
workplace dwellings on Land North of 10 Primrose Hill, outside the developed
footprint of Doddington.

1.2 Under Policies LP3 and LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan, the site is located
immediately adjacent to the built-up settlement of Doddington. However,
development of this site would introduce a formal, linear extension into the open
countryside, which does not respect the rural character or sporadic settlement
pattern as the village is exited. It would result in unacceptable urbanisation and set
a precedent for future development, further eroding the open character of this area.

1.3 Furthermore, the site lies partially within in Flood Zones 2 and 3. The application is
not accompanied by a sequential test and as such insufficient assessment has
been undertaken and inadequate information submitted to demonstrate that it is not
possible for the development to be located on a site with a lower risk of flooding.

1.4 The proposal is for up to 4 dwellings on a site of approximately 0.99 hectares,
equating to approximately 4 dwellings per hectare. It could therefore be argued that
this development underutilises the land. However, Policies LP12 (c) and (d) and
LP16 (d) require developments to respond to the local character in this regard, as
does Paragraph 135 of the NPPF; densities in the area do vary and as such this,
and the loss of Grade 3 Agricultural land against the context of best and most
versatile land within Fenland, are not put forward as further reasons for refusal.

1.5 Given the above considerations, this application is recommended for refusal.

2  SITE DESCRIPTION

2.1 The site is situated immediately to the west of the built form of the settlement of
Doddington and is in fallow agricultural use. Adjacent development consists of
dwellings at Turnpike Close to the east, and 10 Primrose Hill to the south-west.
Arable fields are located to the north, west and south of the site. The site is

Page 113



2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

5.1

bordered by frontage trees to the southern boundary, open fields to the west and
north, with a 1.8 metre high fence at the eastern boundary.

The site topography slopes gently away from the highway with a drain located to
southern frontage of the site. The site is located in Flood Zone 1, 2 and 3, with two
of the four dwellings located in in Zones 2 and 3 toward the west of the site. The
western half of the site is subject to a low, medium and high annual likelihood of
surface water flooding.

PROPOSAL

A location plan and an indicative site layout (although not a requirement of a PiP
application) accompany this submission. The indicative site layout proposes a new
5.5 metre wide shared access road in the south-west corner of the site leading to
four dwellings with detached work units. The dwellings shown face onto Primrose
Hill with large rear gardens containing a pond and planting around the site
boundaries.

The current proposal is the first part of the Permission in Principle application; this
first stage’ establishes whether a site is suitable in principle only, and assesses
the ‘principle’ issues, namely; (1) Location (2) Use, and (3) Amount of development
proposed

Should this application be successful the applicant will have to submit a Technical
details application covering all the other detailed material planning considerations.
The approval of Permission in Principle does not constitute the grant of planning
permission.

The applicant is only required to submit a completed application form, a plan which
identifies the land to which the application relates (drawn to scale and with a north
point) and the application fee.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

SITE PLANNING HISTORY

Reference Description Decision
F/YR22/0812/PIP | Residential development of up to 9 x dwellings | Withdrawn
involving the formation of 2 x new accesses — 14 July
(application for Permission in Principle) 2022
F/YR23/0113/PIP | Residential development of up to 9 x dwellings | Refused —
(application for Permission in Principle) 27 April
2023
CONSULTATIONS

Doddington Parish Council — 04 November 2025
Objection — The Parish Council expresses concerns regarding:

Highway Safety
Ribbon Development

Page 114


https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

Biodiversity Impact

Contrary to Policy LP3 of the Local Plan

A large number of existing workplace homes elsewhere in the district have had the
units converted into separate residential use or annexe use.

Cambridgeshire County Council — Archaeology — 14 November 2025

Our records indicate that the development lies in an area of high archaeological
potential, to the west of Doddington, near the edge of the existing settlement.
Whilst outside the settlement edge location there is the cropmark remains of a
network of Medieval ridge and furrow extending around the north of the proposed
development (Cambridgeshire Historic Environment Record ref. 09674). It is
located near the edge of the fen island on which the village is situated and this is
known as a favoured location for activity in the past particularly in pre drainage
times. Just to the west of the proposed development finds of Roman pot confirm
activity in the area (CHER 10888, 03778).

Whilst this site lies in an area of archaeological interest, we cannot make specific
recommendations without further understanding of the scale and impacts of the
proposed development. We are however content that no works are required prior
to determination of an application and consequently we wish to raise no objections
for this application to secure Planning In Principle, however we would request to
be consulted on any future planning application for development within the redline
area indicated, with the expectation that a condition on development, if required,
could be secured at Technical Details stage.

Fenland District Council — Environmental Services — 24 October 2025

Looking at document ‘Indicative Proposed Site Plan’ will the refuse bins be left by
the kerbside on collection days ?
1. New residents will require notification of collection and storage details by the
developer before moving in and the first collection takes place.
2. Refuse and recycling bins will be required to be provided as an integral part
of the development.

Cambridgeshire County Council — Highways — 23 October 2025

No objection — After a review of the submitted information and indicative highway
boundary extent in the area. | have no objection to the principal of the
developments access location or the construction of a footway along the Primrose
Hill leading to the village of Doddington. Whilst | have no objections to the principle
of the development and its associated infrastructure, to facilitate its construction.
This response is not acceptance of the shown layout, location or design from the
highway’s authority. IN the later stages of this application or should a separate
application be received all and any works within the highway and any access
points with it must meet the current highways authorities guidance at that time.

Fenland District Council — Environmental Health — 15 October 2025

No objection — In the event that Permission in Principle (PIP) is granted and a
further application for the site is submitted in the future, owing to the scale of the
proposed development and close proximity to existing residents, this service
requests the submission of a robust Construction Environmental Management
Plan (CEMP) in line with the template for developers, available on Fenland District
Council’s website at: Construction Environmental Management Plan: A template

Page 115



5.6

5.7

6.1

for development sites (fenland.gov.uk) The CEMP shall be expected to include
working time restrictions to negate the need for a separate condition.

Environment Agency — 10 October 2025

No objection — Requests IDB are consulted. States development should be
assessed against the Flood Risk Sequential Test.

Local Residents/Interested Parties

Comments of objection have been received from a property on Turnpike Close in
Doddington, which is beyond the eastern boundary of the site.

Objecting Comments Officer Response

Disturbance from business operations to This will be addressed in the Use section.

existing residents.

Not brownfield land. This will be addressed in the Use Section.

Wildlife impact. This will be addressed in the Matters Raised
During Consultation section.

Foul water drainage provision. This will be addressed in the Matters Raised
During Consultation section.

Number of storeys This will be addressed in the Matters Raised
During Consultation section.

Loss of view This will be addressed in the Matters Raised
During Consultation section.

Seven comments of supports have been received. Three are from Doddington, on
Benwick Road, Turf Fen Lane and Askham Row. Two supporters are from
Chatteris, on Gull Way and Lode Way. One supporter is from Brewin Avenue in
March, and one is from Williams Way in Manea. The nearest supporter is nearly
800 metres from the proposal site.

Supporting Comments Officer Response

The dwellings are in close vicinity to the This will be addressed in the Location section.
settlement.

Similar proposals are nearby. This will be addressed in the Use section.
There is a need for occupational dwellings. | This will be addressed in the Use section.
There is a housing need in the area. This will be addressed in the Use section.
This will benefit the local economy This will be addressed in the Use section.
This will retain business owners. This will be addressed in the Use section.
Building the homes will encourage local This will be addressed in the Use section.
businesses to join the community

STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014).

POLICY FRAMEWORK
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2024

Chapter 2 - Achieving sustainable development
Chapter 4 — Decision-making

Page 116



Chapter 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Chapter 9 — Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 11 — Making effective use of land

Chapter 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 14 — Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Chapter 15 — Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

Chapter 16 — Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

Context Paragraph: 012 (Reference ID: 58-012-20180615). The scope of
permission in principle is limited to location, land use and amount of development.
Issues relevant to these ‘in principle’ matters should be considered at the
permission in principle stage. Other matters should be considered at the technical
details consent stage. In addition, local authorities cannot list the information they
require for applications for permission in principle in the same way they can for
applications for planning permission but can advise applicants on the decision
notice, where Permission in Principle is granted, what they would expect to see at
Technical Details stage.

National Design Guide 2021
Context

Identity

Built Form

Movement

Nature

Uses

Homes and Buildings

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 - A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP4 — Housing

LP5 - Meeting Housing Need

LP12 — Rural Areas Development Policy

LP13 — Supporting and Managing the Impact of a Growing District

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District

LP18 — The Historic Environment

LP19 — The Natural Environment

Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments in Fenland SPD 2014

DM2 — Natural Features and Landscaping Schemes

DM3 — Making a Positive Contribution to Local Distinctiveness and character of
the Area

Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD 2016
Emerging Local Plan
The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th

August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.

Page 117



9.1

9.2

10

Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in
accordance with Paragraph 49 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry
extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are
policies:

LP1: Settlement Hierarchy

LP2:  Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development
LP4: Securing Fenland’s Future

LPS:  Health and Wellbeing

LP7: Design

LP8:  Amenity Provision

LP12: Meeting Housing Needs

LP18: Development in the Countryside
LP19: Strategic Infrastructure

LP20: Accessibility and Transport
LP22: Parking Provision

LP24: Natural Environment

KEY ISSUES
° Location
. Use

° Amount

BACKGROUND

The proposal is an application for Permission in Principle to develop the site for 4
dwellings. The Permission in Principle route has 2 stages: the first stage (or
Permission in Principle Stage) establishes whether the site is suitable in principle
and assesses the principle issues namely:

(1) Location
(2) Use, and
(3) Amount of development proposed

And the second (Technical Details Consent) stage is when the detailed
development proposals are addressed. Technical details consent would need to be
applied for should the application be granted.

Evaluation of a PIP must be restricted to the issues highlighted above; even if
technical issues are apparent from the outset these can form no part of the
determination of Stage 1 of the process, Accordingly, some matters raised via
statutory bodies may not be addressed at this time.

ASSESSMENT

Location

10.1 Policy LP3 of the Local Plan defines Doddington as a growth village. For these

settlements, development and new service provision either within the existing
urban area or as small village extensions will be appropriate, albeit of a
considerably more limited scale than appropriate to market towns. Given the site is
adjacent to existing built form, development could therefore be considered as an

Page 118



extension to the village but must also comply with the more detailed policy criteria
set out in Policy LP12 as well as Policy LP3.

10.2 The application site adjoins Turnpike Close to the east and as such would be
adjacent to the existing developed footprint of the village. However, Turnpike Close
(along with 8 Primrose Hill on the southern side of the road) is considered to be the
edge of the built form, with development further west along Primrose Hill being
sporadic frontage development of a rural nature, separated by fields and becoming
sparser as the settlement is exited.

10.3 Development of this site would introduce a formal, linear extension into the open
countryside, which does not respect the rural character or sporadic settlement
pattern as the village is exited, it would result in an unacceptable urbanisation and
set a precedent for future development, further eroding the open character of this
area. As such, the proposal is considered contrary to Policy LP12 Part A (c), (d)
and (e) which seek to ensure development would not have an adverse impact on
the character and appearance of the surrounding countryside and would not result
in linear development. Furthermore, Policy LP16 (d) of the Fenland Local Plan,
Policy DM3 of Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments in Fenland
SPD, seek to ensure that developments make a positive contribution and are
sympathetic to the local distinctiveness and character of the area, recognise the
beauty and character of the countryside and do not adversely impact on the
landscape character.

10.4 The site lies partially within in Flood Zones 2 and 3; Policy LP12 Part A (j) seeks to
ensure that developments would not put people or property in danger from
identified risks, such as flooding. Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan and
Chapter 14 of the NPPF seek to steer developments to the areas with the least
probability of flooding and development will not be permitted if there are
reasonably available sites appropriate for the proposed development in areas with
a lower risk of flooding. The application is not accompanied by a sequential test
and as such insufficient assessment has been undertaken and inadequate
information submitted to demonstrate that it is not possible for the development to
be located on a site with a lower risk of flooding and as such the development is
contrary to the aforementioned policies.

10.5 The site comprises of approximately 0.99ha of Grade 3 Agricultural land as defined
by DEFRA (Defra Spatial Data Download) and classified as good to moderate.

10.6 Policy LP12 ((i) states that development should not result in the loss of high grade
agricultural land or if so comprehensive evidence is provided to justify the loss.
Para 187 of the NPPF recognises the intrinsic character and beauty of the
countryside, including the economic and other benefits of the best and most
versatile (BMV) agricultural land (defined as Grades 1, 2 and 3a) and para 188
(footnote 65) advises that where significant development of agricultural land is
demonstrated to be necessary, areas of poorer quality land should be preferred to
those of a higher quality.

10.7 Having regard to the wider DEFRA mapping site, it is acknowledged that a
significant majority of the Fenland District falls within the BMV land with only the
urban areas of the main Market Towns, the Kings Delph and Morton’s Leam areas
and the north of March including the prison area falling within the lower grades. As
such, it is recognised that there are very few areas of poorer quality agricultural
land, and it would not be possible therefore for Fenland to meet its housing
demands without developing areas of BMV land.

Page 119



10.8 This does not however confer that all agricultural land should be developed,
especially where it relates more to open countryside than to the settlement and
Officers consider that this is the intention of LP12, Part A (c), supported by the
preamble at paragraph 4.7.1 of the Fenland Local Plan. An assessment however
should be made as to the relationship of the land to the open countryside, in
comparison to the built envelope of the settlement. As stated in the section above,
the application site is considered to relate more to the open countryside than the
built form, though it is acknowledged that 0.99ha is not significant in the context of
BMV land within Fenland.

10.9 The area in the vicinity of the site is unlit but is served by a footpath linking to the
centre of the village. There is a bus stop located to the frontage of site which can
provide a public transport link to good and services in Doddington, Chatteris and
beyond. However, it is not considered that these facilities overcome any other
harm identified.

10.10 Itis noted that the Agent has advised of other occupational / workplace
developments having been approved at Charlemont Drive, Manea, as well as
George Way and Albert Way in Chatteris. Each application must be determined on
its own merits. Notwithstanding this basic principle, it is considered that the sites
are materially different in that these dwellings are considered to be within the
established settlement and have different relationships to the consolidated built
form of those settlements. To allow workplace dwellings in this location would set a
harmful development precedent that would have an adverse urbanising impact on
an area of open countryside that is beyond the edge of the built up settlement of
Doddington. Additionally, no justification or evidence of the need for workplace
homes has been submitted in respect of this argument.

10.11 Development of this site would introduce a formal, linear extension into the open
countryside, which does not respect the rural character. It would result in an
unacceptable urbanisation and set a precedent for future development, further
eroding the open character of the area, as well as introducing unjustified
development into an area of flood risk, which would clearly be contrary to policies
LP12, LP14 and LP16 of the Local Plan.

10.12 Policy LP5 sets out the housing targets for the District and the Council has
undertaken a full assessment of the Five Year Housing Land Supply in the District
and has concluded that the Council is able to demonstrate a supply of specific
deliverable sites sufficient to provide for more than Five Years’ worth of housing
against the Council’s identified requirements. This is a material consideration and
means that any application for new development must be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.

Use

10.13 The site is situated close to existing development in the open countryside, however
as stated above, it will be contrary to Policy LP12 — Rural Areas Development
Policy and Policy LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments
across the District. The introduction of residential workplace units and associated
paraphernalia is considered to erode the character and appearance of the open
countryside. It is therefore considered that the site is not acceptable to use for new
dwellings.

Page 120



10.14 In addition, whilst perhaps being a matter more appropriate for consideration at
Technical Consent stage, the location of the site for commercial activity and the
established dwellings does raise potential issues around noise and whether a high
quality residential environment would ultimately be created.

10.15 Supporters of the proposal state that there is a need for occupational dwellings,
however, no supporting information has been provided to demonstrate this
unsustainable location has sufficient demand for workplace homes. Additionally, no
existing or proposed businesses have been identified to fill the workplace units.
Supporters state that the housing will help retain local entrepreneurs and
professionals, however, that does not justify development in an unsustainable
location in Flood Zone 3.

Amount of Development Proposed

10.16 The application seeks Permission in Principle for four dwellings on a site of 0.997
ha which will equate to a density of approximately 4 dwellings per hectare. This is
low density and could comfortably be accommodated on-site without being
considered an overdevelopment of the site. However, the detailed layout and
design will be for consideration at the Technical details stage. In terms of
consideration of amount, the proposal is acceptable. When compared to
dwellings within the built-up settlement limit the amount of development is
considered to be an underutilisation of the site. However, the quantum of
development is in keeping with the plot sizes of rural dwellings in an ‘Elsewhere’
location to the west of the site.

10.17 An objection has been raised as to the potential size of the proposed dwellings,
however, the proposed design is indicative, and therefore no planning weight can
be given to these comments at this stage of the planning process.

Matters Raised During Consultation

10.18 It should be noted that a number of supporting letters have commented noting
that the provision of four dwellings will not impact on highway safety or increase
congestion. These comments are noted, and this does form a material
consideration as part of this assessment, but as discussed above there are no
concerns, in respect of highway matters to the amount of development proposed.

10.19 Itis also noted that the Parish Council have raised concerns in terms of
congestion and the associated Highways impact of the proposal, however,
Cambridgeshire County Highways have raised no concerns at this stage, with
any additional details being secured at the Technical Details stage or subject of a
subsequent application. Further given that the proposal relates to four dwellings
this quantum of development, is unlikely to result in sufficient harm, to justify the
refusal of the application contrary to the Highway Authority’s recommendation.

10.20 Comments have been raised about impact on wildlife however, this is a matter
which is not attributed material weight at this stage of the application process.
Additional public comments raise overlooking concerns, however, this is a matter
that could only be determined at the Technical Details stage. Some comments
points to the national housing shortage, however it is not role of the Local
Planning Authority to address under provision elsewhere in the country when we
are exceeding our five year housing land supply with a total of 6.6 years
provision.

Page 121



10.21 It is important to note that a previous Permission in Principle application for this

11

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

12

site under F/'YR23/0113/PIP was recommended for refusal and subsequently
refused by the Planning Committee of 26 April 2023 on the basis of a harmful
incursion into the countryside and flood risk. Aside from the quantum of
development there has been no major changes to the proposal, or to local or
national planning policy, and this should be a significant material consideration
when this application is assessed.

CONCLUSIONS

This application seeks ‘Planning in Principle’ (PiP) for residential development of
up to 4 dwellings, where only in principle issues are assessed, namely the
location, use and amount of development. All matters of detail would be subject
to a Technical Details application should this submission be successful and
accordingly, matters raised by consultees may not be addressed at this time.

Development of this site for residential purposes would introduce a formal, linear
extension into the open countryside, which does not respect the rural character or
sporadic settlement pattern as the village is exited, it would result in an
unacceptable urbanisation and set a precedent for future development, further
eroding the open character of this area.

Furthermore, the site lies partially within in Flood Zones 2 and 3. The application
is not accompanied by a sequential test and as such insufficient assessment has
been undertaken and inadequate information submitted to demonstrate that it is
not possible for the development to be located on a site with a lower risk of
flooding.

The proposal is for up to 4 dwellings on a site of approximately 0.99ha, equating
to approximately 4 dwellings per hectare, it could therefore be argued that this
development does not make an effective use of land. However, policies LP12 (c)
and (d) and LP16 (d) require developments to respond to the local character in
this regard, as does paragraph 135 of the NPPF; densities in the area do vary
and as such this, and the loss of Grade 3 Agricultural land against the context of
BMYV land within Fenland, are not put forward as further reasons for refusal.

RECOMMENDATION

Refuse; Permission in Principle for the following reasons:

The application site constitutes an area of land located outside the developed
footprint of Doddington. Development of this site would result in an unacceptable
urbanisation, constituting ribbon development into the countryside. It would likely
set a precedent for future development, further eroding the character of the area
and the open countryside. The development proposal will be in an ‘elsewhere’
location contrary to Policies LP3 and LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014). As
such any residential development on this site will be contrary to the above policy
considerations and thus, in terms of location and use, the Planning in Principle
application fails.

The site lies partially within in Flood Zones 2 and 3; Policy LP12 Part A (j) seeks
to ensure that developments would not put people or property in dangers from
identified risks, such as flooding. Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan and

Page 122



Chapter 14 of the NPPF seek to steer developments to the areas with the least
probability of flooding and development will not be permitted if there are
reasonably available sites appropriate for the proposed development in areas
with a lower risk of flooding.

The application is not accompanied by a sequential test and as such insufficient
assessment has been undertaken and inadequate information submitted to
demonstrate that it is not possible for the development to be located on a site
with a lower risk of flooding and as such the development is contrary to the
aforementioned policies.

Page 123



F/YR25/0729/PIP

W

| i 0
23N

Gl

o .
‘55: 1:2,500

10/9/2025, 9:55:08 AM 0 5 230 460 f

| ! ! | ! ! ! |

| T T T T 1
|:| Fenland District Boundary 0 35 70 140 m

Fenland District Council

Uniform
© Crown Copyright and database rights 2025 Ordnance Suﬁsey ACOOOT&E)MB.
age 124



GZT abed

EXISTING SITE PLAN
(1:200)

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers
current recommendations.

The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and
forward to the Engineer

A

REVISIONS DATE

MoRrToN & HALL
CoNSULTING LIMITED

CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454

March, Fax: 01354 660467
Combridgeshire. E—mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk

PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

‘ [ 7aY Fenland District Council

LABC LABC o
Building
. Design Awards ‘

Building Excellence in Fenland

1102 8 6002
HANNIM AH0OILYD

CLIENT

Savage Developments Ltd

T v

PROJECT

Proposed Development
North of 10 Primrose Hill
Doddington

Cambs PE15 0OSU

TITLE

Existing Site Plan

DRAWN DATE OF ISSUE

R.Papworth

CHECKED

DATE Sep‘t 2025 DRAWING NUMBER

H10741/01

SCALE As Shown



AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
EXISTING SITE PLAN (1:200)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
H10741/01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
Sept 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
R.Papworth

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
Existing Site Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
Cambs PE15 0SU

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
Doddington

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
North of 10 Primrose Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
Proposed Development 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
Savage Developments Ltd


921 abed

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and

designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt

ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
V

British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
, appropriate, BS or EC marks.
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers
current recommendations.
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building

Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and
forward to the Engineer

A

U //
il CL|
L L L
C C U
L C L U
C C L L
C L | C
t | B _ /
L C
C C L U ‘
C L | L ’
C L L C
C C L C
U C C C
C C = C L
C C L C C
C C C L C C
U C C
C - k= - L -
L C = C
C U C C - L =
L L C C
£ = : : : : : :
U C C C C
L L C C O T - ._
CL CL] C C C L C C
- an - - C C C C C
= k- L L C C C CL L
U L C L - - “ETTLLLLL CLL
~~~~~ LLhLL Ll - L L
uA C C C r - ll:EEEtE\tELL\ELL\_LLLLL\/ Lt‘[tfi\[t' C LLLLLLLLLLLL\.\.LLLLLLLLt
| L L [ (I L —— [ [ -
- © T o L LLE[[LLLLLU’E'LLL T e T Lid ©
L L L | L LLLL\.LLLLLLL‘[tEELLLLLLLLLLL C [ = 0 tt L
: : ; o <R e e e e - S e :
_ (. C L
C C C L LL\.LLLLtLLL S AR L —— 1L C
C C C L e CLCL I
L L L L Corripbbli- CLL L
: : : t - e 5
C C C C
: : = S SmaENENmedmEEREREIEEoes i - S o= =
= = LL\EEEEE\E\E\[\E\\:LLL\,LLLLLL Lttttlitut LLLtttttttt\[tL\_\.LLU—LLt LLLtttLt‘[‘[ttt ttL '[t wiilf'y)
—= [ L L R =—— L C TCUCCLL O UL
[ === ._LL\_\_LLL L ] e L O ————— L L
LLLlb O e L L I CLL ——— L U
A e L A U I ——— 1 [
RERRNNREE - RN =—— Ll T e ammmmm S S I L L
LLLLLLLLLL\:\EE\E\\:LLLLL Ltt‘[tu_ L W e e LLLLLL\_LLLL\_LLLL O L\,LLtttttL\_L\,LLLLLLL L \[E \'ttﬁ
CLLLb I i — e EEE L L b
LU-‘—UELLLLLLLU-UJ' Ll tL t o U \_ el
LLtLLttL\-LL-—— LLH B C CL Y muss
R —— CEC C C PO 2 - i C
e e - . c 5 u c
L 7
N o - T C = C
RN ENERTL ——— s C = .
PR L o & : : ! E
CLL L] Ll
L\,LLLLLLLU—LLLL C -] Lttt [ C © C N
L L L L UL L
. 3 i oo : E L -
r PLOT| 4 C = C £ = CUTCOEELE
L L [ \_ | L
L L LU L C L
L _ L.L.: L _ L
L L (- L L
L LU L L L
. LU - R C L E
|
L ] L — » =1
T T T ] LELLLELLLLLLLLLL
C = TULLLlL
(I (A L
C E SO ELEEEE =& :
C = e . -
C Ll
i \E\E \_,L,L.LL—LLEL‘L‘L‘ L.;LC
= = . L
L] _
R e E
C L
C
, Cd C
== LL\_\.L.L.\.LL
L_LI,L_L.LLL L
C
e
R
C
L\;L — — e—
L
U ——
—
— —
— —
a— —
PATHWAY
PATHWAY R\MR( )SE k \
PATHWAY
55 PATHWAY
PATHWAY O ES E H\ \ _L
o
o PATHWAY ‘ 2
11
| — — |
—
|
‘. |
PATHWAY \ RO S
2.4m x 215m
NEW 5.5m x 10m ACCESS VISIBILITY SPLAY
TO CAMBRIDGESHIRE COUNTY
COUNCIL GUIDELINES.
2.4m x 215m
VISIBILITY SPLAY

SEALED AND DRAINED AWAY
FROM THE HIGHWAY.

REVISIONS

MoRrToN & HALL
CoNSULTING LIMITED

CONSULTING STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

DATE

1 Gordon Avenue,

Tel: 01354 655454
March, Fax: 01354 660467
Cambridgeshire. E—mail: info®@mortonandhall.co.uk
PE15 8AJ

Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

‘ [ 7aY Fenland District Council
LAenEsté\qhu east anglia

LABC o
Building
Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland ‘
CLIENT

1102 8 6002
HANNIM AH0OILYD

Savage Developments Ltd

PROJECT

Proposed Development
S

North of 10 Primrose Hill
Doddington
PROPOSED SITE PLAN

Cambs PE15 0OSU
/m %
(INDICATIVE LAYOUT)
(1:200)

Proposed Site Plan
Indicative Layout

DRAWN

R Pquorth DATE OF ISSUE

CHECKED

DATE

Sept 2025 DRAWING NUMBER

A H10741/02

SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
2.4m x 215m VISIBILITY SPLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
PATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
PATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
PATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
PATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
PATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
PATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
PATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
2.4m x 215m VISIBILITY SPLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
PROPOSED SITE PLAN (INDICATIVE LAYOUT) (1:200)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
H10741/02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
Sept 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
R.Papworth

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
Indicative Layout

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
Proposed Site Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
Cambs PE15 0SU

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
Doddington

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
North of 10 Primrose Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
Proposed Development 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
Savage Developments Ltd

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
NEW 5.5m x 10m ACCESS TO CAMBRIDGESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL GUIDELINES. SEALED AND DRAINED AWAY FROM THE HIGHWAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
PATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
10.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
5.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
PLOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
PLOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
WORK UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
WORK UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
WORK UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
PLOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
PLOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
WORK UNIT


Agenda Item 11

F/YR25/0730/PIP

Applicant: Savage Developments Ltd Agent : Mr R Papworth
Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd

Land North Of The Quadrant, Primrose Hill, Doddington, Cambridgeshire
Permission in Principle for 2 x dwellings
Officer recommendation: Refuse

Reason for Committee: Number of representations contrary to Officer
recommendation.

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This application seeks Permission in Principle (PiP) for the development of two
dwellings on Land North of the Quadrant, Primrose Hill outside the developed
footprint of Doddington.

1.2 Under Policies LP3 and LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan, the site is considered to
be in an 'Elsewhere' location, where new housing is only supported if it is
demonstrably essential to a rural-based enterprise. No such justification has been
provided. The development would therefore be in direct conflict with the settlement
hierarchy and spatial strategy of the Local Plan.

1.3 The site lies within Flood Zones 1, 2 and 3. Indicative built development is partially
shown in flood zones 2 and 3. The application is not accompanied by a sequential
test and as such insufficient assessment has been undertaken and inadequate
information submitted to demonstrate that it is not possible for the development to
be located on a site with a lower risk of flooding. This proposal is therefore contrary
to Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan, and Chapter 14 of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

1.4 Although the density of development proposed is low and could be accommodated
physically on the site, this does not overcome the fundamental policy objections
regarding location and use. Other technical details, including highway safety, would
be addressed at the second stage (Technical Details Consent), though no
objections have been raised by the highways authority at this stage.

1.5 Therefore, the proposed development fails to comply with the Local Plan's spatial
strategy and the site's location remains unsuitable for residential development in
principle.

1.6 Accordingly, this application is recommended for refusal.

2  SITE DESCRIPTION

Page 127



2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

5.1

The application site is located outside of the settlement footprint of Doddington.
The site is situated to the west of Primrose Hill and is in agricultural use. Adjacent
development consists of a commercial building to the south, and a dwelling of
‘exceptional’ design approved under reference F/YR21/0015/F on the opposite
side of Primrose Hill. An ‘exceptional’ design dwelling is an exemption from normal
rural residential policy and is supported by Paragraph 84 (previously Paragraph
80) of the NPPF. Arable fields are located to the north and west of the site. The
site is bordered by established trees and hedging to the eastern frontage with open
boundaries to the east, south and west.

The site topography slopes away from the highway with a drain located to the
eastern frontage of the site. The majority of the site is located in Flood Zone 1 with
the rear of the site located in Flood Zones 2 and 3. A eastern frontage drain is
subject to a low, medium and high annual likelihood of surface water flooding,
however, this drain whilst immediately adjacent to the site frontage is outside of the
red line boundary.

PROPOSAL

A location plan and an indicative site layout (although not a requirement of a PiP
application) accompany this submission. The indicative site layout proposes a new
5.5 metre wide shared access road to the north of the site leading to two dwellings
with detached work units. The dwellings shown face onto Primrose Hill with large
rear gardens containing a pond and planting around the site boundaries.

The current proposal is the first part of the Permission in Principle application; this
first stage’ establishes whether a site is suitable in principle only, and assesses
the ‘principle’ issues, namely; (1) Location (2) Use, and (3) Amount of development
proposed

Should this application be successful the applicant will have to submit a Technical
details application covering all the other detailed material planning considerations.
The approval of Permission in Principle does not constitute the grant of planning
permission.

The applicant is only required to submit a completed application form, a plan which
identifies the land to which the application relates (drawn to scale and with a north
point) and the application fee.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

SITE PLANNING HISTORY

No relevant site history.

CONSULTATIONS

Doddington Parish Council — 04 November 2025

Page 128


https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

Objection - Location. This part of Primrose Hill, being a significant distance from
the developed boundary of Doddington, is open countryside where any proposed
development needs to be fully justified by special circumstances. None have been
provided to support these two PIP applications and the applications therefore
conflict with FDC’s Policy LP3. In addition, there is a conflict with policy LP12 as
both developments would have an adverse impact on the character of the
surrounding countryside.

Access. This section of Primrose Hill has a speed limit of 60mph whether traffic
has left Doddington travelling towards Chatteris or heading towards Doddington
from Chatteris. Traffic needing access to or from the development under
application F/YR25/0730/PIP will initially join Dykemoor Drove, a badly maintained
track, before joining Primrose Hill. This area of Primrose Hill has no street lighting
or a footpath along the roadway to cater for pedestrians. These dwellings together
with their occupational units will create additional traffic movements thereby
increasing the risk of accidents on this busy, fast road.

Workplace Units. No justification has been given that demonstrates there is a
need for workplace units in Doddington. Similar developments to those being
suggested have been built in Manea and Chatteris. Over the time since their
development a significant number of them have been converted into residential
use by the dwelling or are now used as residential annexes for relatives.

Middle Level Commissioners Internal Drainage Board — 30 October 2025
The application involves development near to the Board’s 20m byelaw strip -
During the decision-making process both the applicant and your Council must
acknowledge the close proximity of important watercourses and/or associated
maintenance access strips to the application site.

Cambridgeshire County Council — Highways Officer — 23 October 2025

No objection - The applicant is seeking to construct two new private residential
dwellings, accessed off the highway along Dykemoor Drove. In principal | have no
objections to the proposal. However, this is application only seeks the approval in
principal of a development at this location. As such this non objection by the
highway authority does not supersede any future comments or requirements made
by the highways authority for the permission of a vehicle access from the highway
at this location.

Natural England — 17 October 2025

No objection.

Environment Agency — 10 October 2025

No objection — Consult the IDB and assess against the Sequential Test.

Fenland District Council — Environmental Health — 10 October 2025

No objection.

Local Residents/Interested Parties

Page 129



6.1

Two communications of objection have been received. Both objectors are from

Primrose Hill in Doddington.

Objecting Comments

Officer Response

In a countryside location.

This will be addressed in the Location section.

No information to justify loss of agricultural
land.

This will be addressed in the Use section.

There is no local or national policy related to
workplace homes.

This will be addressed in the Use section.

Other workplace homes in the district have
been converted into annexes or single storey
dwellings.

This will be addressed in the Use section.

No evidence of demand.

This will be addressed in the Use section.

New dwellings in the area are a replacement

dwelling and a dwelling of outstanding design.

This will be addressed in the Use section.

Speed limit is 60mph so not in a built-up
settlement.

This will be address in the Matters Raised
During Consultation section.

Poor visibility at proposed access due to
frontage trees.

This will be address in the Matters Raised
During Consultation section.

Site is unlit.

This will be address in the Matters Raised
During Consultation section.

Site is not served by a footpath.

This will be address in the Matters Raised
During Consultation section.

Seven communications of support have been received. Three are from
Doddington, on Benwick Road, Turf Fen Lane and Askham Row. Two are from
Chatteris, on Gull Way and Lode Way. One supporter is from Williams Way in
Manea and one from Brewin Avenue in March. The nearest supporter is 700

metres away from the proposal site.

Supporting Comments

Officer Response

The dwellings are near an existing business

This will be addressed in the Location section.

The dwellings are near a new development

This will be addressed in the Location section.

There is a need for occupational dwellings.

This will be addressed in the Use section.

The housing should be for local residents

This will be addressed in the Use section.

The housing will help retain local
entrepreneurs and professionals.

This will be addressed in the Use section.

There is a housing shortage in the country.

This will be addressed in the Use section.

STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan

unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan

for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan

(2014).

POLICY FRAMEWORK

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2024
Chapter 2 - Achieving sustainable development

Chapter 4 — Decision-making

Chapter 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
Chapter 9 — Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 11 — Making effective use of land

Chapter 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 14 — Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change

Page 130




Chapter 15 — Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

Context Paragraph: 012 (Reference ID: 58-012-20180615). The scope of
permission in principle is limited to location, land use and amount of development.
Issues relevant to these ‘in principle’ matters should be considered at the
permission in principle stage. Other matters should be considered at the technical
details consent stage. In addition, local authorities cannot list the information they
require for applications for permission in principle in the same way they can for
applications for planning permission but can advise applicants on the decision
notice, where Permission in Principle is granted, what they would expect to see at
Technical Details stage.

National Design Guide 2021
Context

Identity

Built Form

Nature

Uses

Homes and Buildings

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 — A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP4 — Housing

LP5 - Meeting Housing Need

LP12 — Rural Areas Development Policy

LP13 — Supporting and Managing the Impact of a Growing District

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District

LP19 — The Natural Environment

Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments in Fenland SPD 2014

DM2 — Natural Features and Landscaping Schemes

DM3 — Making a Positive Contribution to Local Distinctiveness and character of
the Area

Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD 2016

Emerging Local Plan

The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th
August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.
Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in
accordance with Paragraph 49 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry
extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are
policies:

LP1: Settlement Hierarchy
LP2: Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development

Page 131



LP4: Securing Fenland’s Future

LP5: Health and Wellbeing

LP7: Design

LP8: Amenity Provision

LP12: Meeting Housing Needs

LP18: Development in the Countryside
LP19: Strategic Infrastructure

LP20: Accessibility and Transport
LP22: Parking Provision

LP24: Natural Environment

8 KEY ISSUES
o Location
o Use
o Amount

9 BACKGROUND

9.1 The proposal is an application for Permission in Principle to develop the site for 2
dwellings. The Permission in Principle route has 2 stages: the first stage (or
Permission in Principle Stage) establishes whether the site is suitable in principle
and assesses the principle issues namely:

(1) Location
(2) Use, and
(3) Amount of development proposed

And the second (Technical Details Consent) stage is when the detailed
development proposals are addressed. Technical details consent would need to be
applied for should the application be granted.

9.2 Evaluation of a PIP must be restricted to the issues highlighted above; even if
technical issues are apparent from the outset these can form no part of the
determination of Stage 1 of the process, Accordingly, some matters raised via
statutory bodies may not be addressed at this time.

10 ASSESSMENT
Location

10.1 Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) identifies Doddington as being a
‘Growth Village’'. For these settlements, development and new service provision
either within the existing urban area or as a small village extension will be
appropriate albeit of a considerably more limited scale than that appropriate to the
Market Towns.

10.2 Policy LP12 identifies that to receive support, the site must be in or adjacent to the
existing developed footprint of the village, defined as the continuous built form of
the village and excludes individual buildings and groups of dispersed, or
intermittent buildings, that are clearly detached from the continuous built-up area of
the settlement. The Local Plan does not rely on defined settlement boundaries but
rather requires a physical assessment to be made to determine whether or not a

Page 132



site is within a village for the purposes of Policy LP12. This results in a situation
where a site could be considered in general terms to be part of the village but not
be in the village for the purposes of the spatial strategy. It is considered that the
site is visibly separated from the edge of the built-up settlement of Doddington by
approximately 1 km when travelled by road.

10.3 Policy LP5 sets out the housing targets for the District and the Council has
undertaken a full assessment of the Five Year Housing Land Supply in the District
and has concluded that the Council is able to demonstrate a supply of specific
deliverable sites sufficient to provide for more than Five Years’ worth of housing
against the Council’s identified requirements . This is a material consideration and
means that any application for new development must be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.

10.4 It is apparent, that in the case of the application site, it is clearly detached from the
remainder of Doddington by agricultural fields and thus outside the continuous built
form of the settlement. The majority of the surrounding area is agricultural in use
and rural in nature. As such the proposal would constitute development in an
‘Elsewhere’ location as defined under LP3 which seeks to restrict that to essential
rural based development. The proposal is therefore in conflict with Policies LP3
and LP12.

10.5 The site comprises of approximately 0.63ha of Grade 3 Agricultural land as defined
by DEFRA (Defra Spatial Data Download) and classified as very good.

10.6 Policy LP12 ((i) states that development should not result in the loss of high grade
agricultural land or if so comprehensive evidence is provided to justify the loss.
Para 187 of the NPPF recognises the intrinsic character and beauty of the
countryside, including the economic and other benefits of the best and most
versatile (BMV) agricultural land (defined as Grades 1, 2 and 3a) and para 188
(footnote 65) advises that where significant development of agricultural land is
demonstrated to be necessary, areas of poorer quality land should be preferred to
those of a higher quality.

10.7 Having regard to the wider DEFRA mapping site, it is acknowledged that a
significant majority of the Fenland District falls within the BMV land with only the
urban areas of the main Market Towns, the Kings Delph and Morton’s Leam areas
and the north of March including the prison area falling within the lower grades. As
such, it is recognised that there are very few areas of poorer quality agricultural
land, and it would not be possible therefore for Fenland to meet its housing
demands without developing areas of BMV land.

10.8 This does not however confer that all agricultural land should be developed,
especially where it relates more to open countryside than to the settlement and
Officers consider that this is the intention of LP12, Part A (c), supported by the
preamble at paragraph 4.7.1 of the Fenland Local Plan. An assessment however
should be made as to the relationship of the land to the open countryside, in
comparison to the built envelope of the settlement. As stated in the section above,
the application site is considered to relate more to the open countryside than the
built form, though it is acknowledged that 0.63ha is not significant in the context of
BMV land within Fenland.

10.9 There is a bus stop located 300 metres to the south which can provide a public
transport link to good and services in Doddington, Chatteris and beyond. However,

Page 133



the surrounding area is unlit and is not served by a footpath. As such it is not
considered to be reasonably or sustainably linked to Doddington.

10.10 It is noted that the Agent has advised of other occupational / workplace
developments having been approved at Charlemont Drive, Manea, as well as
George Way and Albert Way in Chatteris. Each application must be determined on
its own merits. Notwithstanding this basic principle, it is considered that the sites
are materially different in that these dwellings are considered to be within the
established settlement. Addionally, no justification has been provided as to why
workplace dwellings are essential in this unsustainable location. To allow
workplace dwellings in this location would set a harmful development precedent
that would urbanise an area of open countryside that is over 1 kilometre by road
from the edge of the built up settlement of Doddington.

10.11 The site lies within Flood Zones 1, 2 and 3. Indicative built development is
partially shown in flood zones 2 and 3. The application is not accompanied by a
sequential test and as such insufficient assessment has been undertaken and
inadequate information submitted to demonstrate that it is not possible for the
development to be located on a site with a lower risk of flooding. This proposal is
therefore contrary to Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan, and Chapter 14 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

10.12 As per Policy LP3, development not falling into one of the categories set out in
the settlement hierarchy will fall into the “elsewhere” category and will be restricted
to that which is demonstrably essential to the effective operation of local
agriculture, horticulture, forestry, outdoor recreation, transport or utility services or
to minerals and waste development. Whilst the application is for two “occupational
dwellings”, the application does not state that these are specifically in relation to
any of the activities defined by Policy LP3. Development of this site would
introduce residential development into the open countryside, which inherently does
not respect the rural character. It would result in an unacceptable urbanisation and
set a precedent for future development, further eroding the open character of the
area and introducing development into an area at risk of flooding.

Use

10.13 The site is situated close to existing development in the open countryside, however
as stated above, it will be contrary to Policy LP12 — Rural Areas Development
Policy and Policy LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments
across the District. The introduction of residential workplace units and associated
paraphernalia is considered to erode the character and appearance of the open
countryside. It is therefore considered that the site is not acceptable to use for new
dwellings.

10.14 In addition, whilst perhaps being a matter more appropriate for consideration at
Technical Consent stage, the location of the site for commercial activity and the
established dwellings does raise potential issues around noise and whether a
high quality residential environment would ultimately be created.

10.15 Supporters of the proposal state that there is a need for occupational dwellings,
however, no supporting information has been provided to demonstrate this
unsustainable location has sufficient demand for workplace homes. Additionally,
no existing or proposed businesses have been identified to fill the workplace
units. One letter of support states that the housing should be for local residents,
however, there is no mechanism to secure this. Supporters also state that the

Page 134



housing will help retain local entrepreneurs and professionals, however, that does
not justify development in an unsustainable location in Flood Zone 3.

Amount of Development Proposed

10.16 The application seeks Permission in Principle for two dwellings on a site of
0.63ha which will equate to a density of approximately 4 dwellings per hectare.
This is low density and could comfortably be accommodated on-site without
being considered an overdevelopment of the site. However, it is difficult to make
a direct comparison to other dwellings in the vicinity as they are low in number
and do not contain workplace unit buildings. The detailed layout and design will
be for consideration at the Technical details stage. In terms of consideration of
amount, the proposal is acceptable.

10.17 An objection has been raised as to the size of the proposed dwellings, however,
the proposed design is indicative, and therefore no planning weight can be given
to these comments at this stage of the planning process.

Matters Raised During Consultation

10.18 It should be noted that a number of supporting letters have commented noting
that the provision of two dwellings will not impact on highway safety or increase
congestion. Conversely, objector comments have expressed concern with
visibility, as well as the condition of Dykemoor Drove. These comments are
noted, and this does form a material consideration as part of this assessment, but
as discussed above there are no concerns, in respect of highway matters to the
amount of development proposed.

10.19 Itis also noted that the Parish Council have raised concerns in terms of
congestion and the associated Highways impact of the proposal, however,
Cambridgeshire County Highways have raised no concerns at this stage, with
any additional details being secured at the Technical Details stage or subject of a
subsequent application. Further given that the proposal relates to two dwellings
this quantum of development, is unlikely to result in sufficient harm, to justify the
refusal of the application contrary to the Highway Authority’s recommendation.

10.20 Comments have been raised about impact on wildlife however, this is a matter
which is not attributed material weight at this stage of the application process.
Additional public comments raise overlooking concerns, however, this is a matter
that could only be determined at the Technical Details stage. Some comments
points to the national housing shortage, however, this issue would not justify
development in an unsustainable location with a risk of flooding.

11  CONCLUSIONS

11.1 As indicated above it is only location, use and amount of development that may
be considered at the first ‘permission in principle stage’ and it is considered that
the location and use of the site for residential development is unacceptable due
to the conflict with the settlement hierarchy of the Local Plan.

11.2 The principle of development is not supported as the site does not adjoin the built

form and whilst the proposal is for workplace dwellings there is no planning
justification for such a dwelling in this location.

Page 135



11.3 The site is partially located in Flood Zone 2 and 3. The application is not
accompanied by a sequential test and as such insufficient assessment has been
undertaken and inadequate information submitted to demonstrate that it is not
possible for the development to be located on a site with a lower risk of flooding.

11.4 As such the recommendation is one of refusal.

12 RECOMMENDATION

Refuse; Permission in Principle for the following reasons:

1. The application site constitutes an area of land located outside the developed
footprint of Doddington. Development of this site would result in an unacceptable
urbanisation, extending development into the countryside. It would likely set a
precedent for future development, further eroding the character of the area and
the open countryside. The development proposal will be in an ‘elsewhere’
location contrary to Policies LP3 and LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014). As
such any residential development on this site will be contrary to the above policy
considerations and thus, in terms of location and use, the Planning in Principle
application fails.

2. The site lies partially within in Flood Zones 2 and 3; Policy LP12 Part A (j) seeks
to ensure that developments would not put people or property in dangers from
identified risks, such as flooding. Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan and
Chapter 14 of the NPPF seek to steer developments to the areas with the least
probability of flooding and development will not be permitted if there are
reasonably available sites appropriate for the proposed development in areas
with a lower risk of flooding.

The application is not accompanied by a sequential test and as such insufficient
assessment has been undertaken and inadequate information submitted to
demonstrate that it is not possible for the development to be located on a site
with a lower risk of flooding and as such the development is contrary to the
aforementioned policies.

Page 136



F/YR25/0730/PIP

;|
Pr IMroca

Howmoor Farm

24 1:2,500
10/9/2025, 12:24:31 PM 0 15 230 450 1t
| ! ! | ! ! ! |
| T T T T T 1
|:| Fenland District Boundary 0 35 70 140 m
Fenland District Council
Uniform

© Crown Copyright and database rights 2025 Ordnance Suﬁey AC0000815148.
age



8¢T abed

I\ \ \

u\elG

DYKEMOOR DROVE

DYKEMOOR D

Dyke Moor

PRIMROSE HILL

PRIMROSE HiLL

£

Howmoor Farm

L]

]

S
LOCATION PLAN (1:1250)

METERS

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers
current recommendations.

The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and
forward to the Engineer

All finishes, insulation and damp—proofing to architect’s
details

A [CLIENTS COMMENTS AUG 25

REVISIONS DATE

MoRrToN & HALL
ConsuLTING LiIMITED

1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454

March, Fax: 01354 660467
Combridgeshire. E—mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk

PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

‘ Fenland District Council
LABS™ LABS™ o
Building

Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland .

1102 ® 6002
Y3INNIM AHOO3LVYO

CLIENT

Savage Developments Ltd

PROJECT

Proposed Development
West of 29 Primrose Hill
Doddington

Cambs PE15 OSU

o -
5 10 15 20

Location Plan
DRAWN MH DATE OF ISSUE
DATE July 2025 DRAWING NUMBER
 Shour H1O633/O1A



AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
Savage Developments Ltd

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
Proposed Development 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
West of 29 Primrose Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
Doddington

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
Cambs PE15 0SU

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
Location Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
July 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
H10633/01

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
LOCATION PLAN (1:1250)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
METERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
289600

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
289800

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
A  CLIENTS COMMENTS 						AUG 25AUG 25


Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole

without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

consulting the Engineers.

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

Pond . current recommendations.
Draln The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

NEW 5.5m x 10m ACCESS TO
forward to the Engineer

CAMBRIDGESHIRE COUNTY
COUNCIL GUIDELINES. SEALED
All finishes, insulation and damp—proofing to architect’s

AND DRAINED AWAY FROM THE
details

HIGHWAY.
\
GP

DYKEMOORDROVE

4.5m

6£T abed

PRIMROSE HILL

Dl'ain

—

7
%
/4

A |CLIENTS COMMENTS AUG 25
REVISIONS DATE
MoRrToN & HALL

CoNsuLTING LimITED

| |
1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454 | |
March, Fax: 01354 660467

E—mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk

Cambridgeshire.
Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

PE15 8AJ
~ Fenland District Council |
39

LABC™ LABC™ Lo =3
Building |3
Design Awards \

N Building Excellence in Fenland .

CLIENT

W E Savage Developments Ltd

S PROJECT
INDICATIVE PROPOSED Proposed Development
West of 29 Primrose Hill

SITE PLAN (1:500) NSl
oddington

\X Cambs PET1S 0OSU

Indicative Proposed
Site Plan

DRAWN DATE OF ISSUE

CCCCC ED

DATE DRAWING NUMBER

July 2025

) S~ H10633,/02,



AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
Savage Developments Ltd

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
Proposed Development 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
West of 29 Primrose Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
Doddington

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
Cambs PE15 0SU

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
Indicative Proposed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
Site Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
July 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
H10633/02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
INDICATIVE PROPOSED SITE PLAN (1:500)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
A  CLIENTS COMMENTS 						AUG 25AUG 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
PLOT 1 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
NEW 5.5m x 10m ACCESS TO CAMBRIDGESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL GUIDELINES. SEALED AND DRAINED AWAY FROM THE HIGHWAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
PLOT 2 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
WORK UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
WORK UNIT


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

F/YR25/0787/PIP

Applicant: Mrs Gillian Youlton Agent: Mr Lee Bevens
L Bevens Associates Ltd

Land East Of 50 Station Road, Manea, Cambridgeshire
Permission in principle to erect up to 7 x dwellings
Officer recommendation: Refuse

Reason for Committee: Number of representations contrary to recommendation.

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This application seeks Permission in Principle (PiP) for the development of seven
dwellings on Land East of 50 Station Road, outside the developed footprint of
Manea.

1.2 Under Policies LP3 and LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan, the site is located
immediately adjacent to the built-up settlement of Manea. However, development
of this site would introduce a formal, backland extension into the open countryside,
which does not respect the rural character or linear settlement pattern of Station
Road. It would result in unacceptable urbanisation and erode the open character of
this area.

1.3 Although the density of development proposed is low and could be accommodated
physically on the site, this does not overcome the fundamental policy objections
regarding location and use. Other technical details, including highway safety, would
be addressed at the second stage (Technical Details Consent), though no
objections have been raised by the Highway Authority at this stage.

1.4 The site lies entirely within in Flood Zone 3; Policy LP12 Part A (j) seeks to ensure
that developments would not put people or property in dangers from identified
risks, such as flooding. Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan and Chapter 14 of
the NPPF seek to steer developments to the areas with the least probability of
flooding and development will not be permitted if there are reasonably available
sites appropriate for the proposed development in areas with a lower risk of
flooding.

1.5 The requirement to raise finished floor levels by 2.1 metres above ground level is
considered to generate the potential for material character and amenity impacts for
neighbouring properties, contrary to Policies LP2 and LP16 of the Fenland Local
Plan, 2014. However, it is noted that finished floor levels, as well as elevations and
floor plans are matters to be assessed at the Technical Details stage of the
application process.

1.6 Therefore, the proposed development fails to comply with the Local Plan's spatial
strategy and the site's location remains unsuitable for residential development in
principle.

Page 141



1.7 Accordingly, this application is recommended for refusal.

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

5.1

SITE DESCRIPTION

The application site is located outside of the settlement footprint of Manea. The site
is situated immediately to the east of the built-up settlement and is in use as a
paddock. Adjacent development consists of frontage dwellings along Station Road
to the west, agricultural buildings to the north and arable fields to the east and
south. The site is bordered by fencing of varying heights to the west, with
established trees and hedging to the northern boundary. Open boundaries are
located to the east and south.

The site and surrounding area lies entirely within Flood Zone 3. The eastern extent
of the site is subject to a low, medium and high annual likelihood surface water
flooding.

PROPOSAL

A location plan and an indicative site layout (although not a requirement of a PiP
application) accompany this submission. The indicative site layout proposes a new
5.5 metre wide shared access road in the south-west corner of the site leading to
seven dwellings on paddock land to the rear of existing frontage dwellings along
Station Road.

The current proposal is the first part of the Permission in Principle application; this
first stage’ establishes whether a site is suitable in principle only, and assesses
the ‘principle’ issues, namely; (1) Location (2) Use, and (3) Amount of development
proposed

Should this application be successful the applicant will have to submit a Technical
Details application covering all the other detailed material planning considerations.
The approval of Permission in Principle does not constitute the grant of planning
permission.

The applicant is only required to submit a completed application form, a plan which
identifies the land to which the application relates (drawn to scale and with a north
point) and the application fee.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

SITE PLANNING HISTORY

No relevant site history.

CONSULTATIONS

Manea Parish Council — 18 November 2025

Objection —

In flood zone 3

Raised levels would impact and cause flooding to neighbouring properties.

Inadequate access and splays
Physical impact on neighbouring properties.

Page 142


https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

5.2

5.3

5.4

No provision for adopted road.
Back land development

Fenland District Council — Consultant Trees Officer — 22 November 2025

Further information is required regarding the constraints posed by the existing
trees, the potential impacts arising from the proposed development, and the
protection measures necessary to safequard them. Any finalised layout will need
to demonstrate that both direct and indirect conflicts with retained trees have been
fully addressed, ensuring the scheme can be delivered without compromising their
long- term contribution to amenity and wildlife value.

As the current submission does not provide this level of detail, it is not possible to
offer further substantive comments at this stage.

Natural England — 19 November 2025

NO OBJECTION SUBJECT TO APPROPRIATE MITIGATION BEING SECURED
We consider that without appropriate mitigation the application would:

* have an adverse effect on the integrity of Ouse Washes Special Area of
Conservation (SAC), Special Protection Area (SPA), Ramsar site and Site of
Special Scientific Interest (SSSI)

The Technical Details Consent (TDC) should include an appropriate condition to
secure the following mitigation measures:

» Confirmation that the relevant Waste Water Treatment Works has sufficient
capacity to serve the proposed development prior to occupation

* Disturbance reduction measures, including an ecologically sensitive lighting
Strategy

Should your authority be minded to grant permission in principle on this site
contrary to the advice in this letter, Natural England requests to be consulted at
the Technical Details Consent stage.

Environment Agency — 17 November 2025

No objection — Sequential test, exception test, flood warning and other sources of
flooding advice given.

Flood Risk

We have no objection to the revised Flood Risk Assessment (FRA), referenced
‘Sequential and Exception Test Including Flood Risk Assessment’ and dated
‘September 2025; Revision B' submitted as part of this permission in principle
application for the erection of up to 7x dwellings. The submitted revised FRA
proposes an altered finished floor level from the previous ‘revision A'of 2.1 m
above surrounding ground level with 0.6 m of flood resistant and resilient
construction above finished floor level. This provides betterment over the
previously proposed finished floor level of 1.4 m above typical ground level, plus
0.6 m of flood resistance measures. This means that proposed finished floor levels
are now raised above the predicted breach flood depth of 1-2 m.

Flood Risk Assessment
To assist you in making an informed decision about the flood risk affecting this
site, the key points to note from the submitted FRA, referenced ‘Sequential and

Page 143



5.5

5.6

5.7

Exception Test Including Flood Risk Assessment’ and dated ‘September 2025;
Revision B’, are:

* Residual breach flood risk depths of 1-2 m

* Potential breach flood velocities and the maximum hazard rating were not
assessed

* Proposed finished floor levels of 2.1 m above typical ground level, with 0.6 m of
flood resistance and resilience measures

» Access/Egress — The FRA states that an evacuation plan should be put in place,
as made acceptable by the residents and advised by the emergency planner.

Fenland District Council — Environmental Health — 17 November 2025

No objection - as it is unlikely to have a detrimental effect on local air quality, be
affected by ground contamination or adversely impact the local amenity due to
excessive artificial lighting.

Cambridgeshire County Council — Highways Officer — 17 November 2025

The applicant is seeking an agreement in principle for the development of this site
for 7 residential dwellings. They have included within the submission an indicative
internal estate layout along with a proposed location and arrangement of a new
Junction with the highway. This shown junction layout does meet with current
highways authority standards and also includes the required inter-vehicle visibility
splays information which meets the correct minimum distances of 2.4m x 43m
either side of the junction, for the roads speed limit of 30mph. From an initial
review of this proposed junction location against our records, it appears that these
splays can be achieved within the existing highways extent. Should this application
progress to the next stage this would need to be evidenced via submission of
confirmed detailed records from our Highways Searches team which is the
responsibility of the applicant to obtain. Otherwise, | would have no objection to
the principal of the development.

Anglian Water — 12 November 2025

Our records show that there are no assets owned by Anglian Water or those
subject to an adoption agreement within the development site boundary or
affected by the proposals. It is highly recommended that the applicant carries out a
thorough investigation of the proposed working area to establish whether any
unmapped public or private sewers, lateral drains, or other water infrastructure
assets are in existence.

This site is within the catchment of Manea-Town Lots Water Recycling Centre
(WRC), which currently lacks the capacity to accommodate the additional flows
generated by the proposed development. However, Manea-Town Lots WRC is
included within our Business Plan as a named growth scheme with investment
delivery planned between 2025-2030. Written confirmation from Anglian Water
must be submitted confirming there is sufficient headroom at the water recycling
centre to accommodate the foul flows from the development site. This is to protect
water quality, prevent pollution and secure sustainable development having regard
to paragraphs 7/8 and 187 of the National Planning Policy Framework Our
requested condition would cease to have effect if the development is first occupied
after April 2030.

Anglian Water would object to any connection into our foul network from the
proposed development due to capacity constraints and pollution risk.

Page 144



The preferred method of surface water disposal would be to a sustainable
drainage system (SuDS) with connection to sewer seen as the last option.

5.8 Fenland District Council — Environmental Services — 07 November 2025

- Should access be required (plans look like we will have to) onto shared private
driveways/roads, they would need to be constructed suitably for a 26 tonne refuse
vehicle and indemnity would be required from landowners or future management
company against any potential damage to the road surface etc. which may be
caused during vehicle operations. A swept path plan would also be required as per
below.

- Properties served by shared private driveways will require shared collection
points where the drives/roads meet the public highway. Shared collection points
need to be of sufficient size to accommodate up to 2 x 240 bins and a 23ltr food
caddy from each property. Residents should not be expected move bins more than
30m, Collection points should be no more than 10m from the highway.

- A swept path plan would be required to demonstrate that a refuse vehicle could
access the site turn and leave the site in a forward direction (vehicle dimensions
on the attached).

- New residents will require notification of collection and storage details by the
developer before moving in and the first collection takes place.

- Refuse and recycling bins will be required to be provided as an integral part of
the development.

5.9 Fenland District Council — Ecology Officer — 24 October 2025

I have no in-principle objections to the proposal on Ecology grounds. Any future
application must be informed by —

e Appropriate habitat and species surveys,

¢ A Biodiversity Metric providing a baseline calculation for the site,

e Proposals for biodiversity enhancements

5.10 Local Residents/Interested Parties

15 communications of objection have been received. Eight objectors are from
Manea with six from Station Road and two from Pingle Wood Row. Two objectors
are from Banks End and Frost Way in Ramsey. Single objectors are from Heron
Way in Benwick, Newgate Street in Doddington, 2 Park Road in Eastleigh,
Whittington Barracks in Lichfield and Burrowmoor Road in March. Multiple
objectors border the proposal site.

Objecting Comments Officer Response

Impact from raised 2.1 metre finished floor levels Addressed in the Location section.
Surface water and foul water flooding Addressed in the Location section.
Highway safety Addressed in the Location section.
Access and parking Addressed in the Location section.
Adverse impact on residential amenity Addressed in the Location section.
Impact on existing services Addressed in the Use section.
Loss of view Addressed in the Use section.
Impact on character of Manea. Addressed in the Use section.

A stepped approach for future planning to the southern Addressed in Quantum section.

Page 145



6.1

paddocks to avoid developer contributions.

There are available frontage sites in the village in lower Addressed in Matters Raised

flood risk areas. During Consultation section.

Impact on wildlife Addressed in Matters Raised
During Consultation section.

Disturbance during and post construction Addressed in Matters Raised
During Consultation section.

Devaluation of properties Addressed in Matters Raised
During Consultation section.

11 communications of support have been received. Eight supporters are from
Manea with three supporters from Station Road, two from Westfield Road, one
from Charlemont Drove, one from Pingle Wood Row and one from Wisbech Road.
Two supporters are from Chatteris, with one from Doddington Road and one from
New Road. One supporter is from Glebe Close from March. The nearest supporter
is one the opposite side of Station Road to the proposal site.

Supporting Comments Officer Response

Close to local services and public transport. Addressed in the Location section.

The proposed access would be uncongested. Addressed in the Location section.

Would not involve the use of farming land. Addressed in the Use section.

This end of Manea can support more development. Addressed in the Use section.

No wildlife impact. Addressed in Matters Raised During
Consultation section.

New housing will create work Addressed in Matters Raised During
Consultation section.

The housing will be affordable Addressed in Matters Raised During
Consultation section.

Housing is needed Addressed in Matters Raised During
Consultation section.

STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014).

POLICY FRAMEWORK
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2024

Chapter 2 - Achieving sustainable development

Chapter 4 — Decision-making

Chapter 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Chapter 9 — Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 11 — Making effective use of land

Chapter 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 14 — Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Chapter 15 — Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Context Paragraph: 012 (Reference ID: 58-012-20180615).

The scope of permission in principle is limited to location, land use and amount of
development. Issues relevant to these ‘in principle’ matters should be considered

Page 146



at the permission in principle stage. Other matters should be considered at the
technical details consent stage. In addition, local authorities cannot list the
information they require for applications for permission in principle in the same
way they can for applications for planning permission but can advise applicants on
the decision notice, where Permission in Principle is granted, what they would
expect to see at Technical Details stage.

National Design Guide 2021

Context

|dentity

Built Form
Movement

Nature

Uses

Homes and Buildings

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 - A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP4 — Housing

LP5 - Meeting Housing Need

LP12 — Rural Areas Development Policy

LP13 — Supporting and Managing the Impact of a Growing District

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District

LP19 — The Natural Environment

Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments in Fenland SPD 2014

DM2 — Natural Features and Landscaping Schemes
DM3 — Making a Positive Contribution to Local Distinctiveness and character of
the Area

Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD 2016
Emerging Local Plan

The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th
August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.
Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in
accordance with Paragraph 49 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry
extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are
policies:

LP1: Settlement Hierarchy

LP2: Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development
LP4: Securing Fenland’s Future

LP5: Health and Wellbeing

Page 147



9.1

9.2

10

10.1

10.2

LP7: Design

LP8: Amenity Provision

LP12: Meeting Housing Needs

LP18: Development in the Countryside
LP19: Strategic Infrastructure

LP20: Accessibility and Transport
LP22: Parking Provision

LP24: Natural Environment

KEY ISSUES
° Location
. Use

° Amount
BACKGROUND

The proposal is an application for Permission in Principle to develop the site for 7
dwellings. The Permission in Principle route has 2 stages: the first stage (or
Permission in Principle Stage) establishes whether the site is suitable in principle
and assesses the following issues:

(1) Location
(2) Use, and
(3) Amount of development proposed

The second (Technical Details Consent) stage is when the detailed development
proposals are addressed. Technical Details Consent would need to be applied for
should the application be granted.

Evaluation of a PIP must be restricted to the issues highlighted above; even if
technical issues are apparent from the outset these can form no part of the
determination of Stage 1 of the process, Accordingly, some matters raised via
statutory bodies may not be addressed at this time.

ASSESSMENT
Location

Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) identifies Manea as being a ‘Growth
Village'. For these settlements, development and new service provision either
within the existing urban area or as a small village extension will be appropriate
albeit of a considerably more limited scale than that appropriate to the Market
Towns. The site is not allocated for housing in the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014) and the Council can currently demonstrate a healthy housing land supply of
6.6 years. This means that the national “tilted balance” (set out in paragraph 11(d)
of the NPPF) does not apply in this case, so there is no automatic presumption in
favour of granting permission. As such, decisions should be based firmly on how
well the proposal aligns with local and national planning policies.

The site is adjacent to the settlement, so would be acceptable with regard to Policy
LP3 but would have an adverse character impact under Policy LP12 and LP16 due
to backland development and encroachment into the countryside. The Local Plan
does not rely on defined settlement boundaries but rather requires a physical
assessment to be made to determine whether or not a site is within a village for the
purposes of Policy LP12. Policy LP12 identifies that to receive support, the site

Page 148



must be in or adjacent to the existing developed footprint of the village, defined as
the continuous built form of the village and excludes individual buildings and
groups of dispersed, or intermittent buildings, that are clearly detached from the
continuous built-up area of the settlement. Whilst the site is immediately adjacent
to the built-up settlement of Manea, criteria ¢, d and e within LP12 are considered
to be of relevance when assessing this application.

10.3 Policy LP5 sets out the housing targets for the District, and the Council has
undertaken a full assessment of the Five Year Housing Land Supply in the District
and has concluded that the Council is able to demonstrate a supply of specific
deliverable sites sufficient to provide for more than Five Years’ worth of housing
against the Council’s identified requirements. This is a material consideration and
means that any application for new development must be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.

10.4 It is apparent that in the case of the application site it would clearly constitute the
extension of the settlement limit onto greenfield land in the open countryside in the
form of backland development in an area characterised by linear development. The
majority of the surrounding area is agricultural in use and rural in nature. Policy
LP3 of the Local Plan defines Manea as a growth village. For these settlements,
development and new service provision either within the existing urban area or as
small village extensions will be appropriate, albeit of a considerably more limited
scale than appropriate to market towns. The site could therefore be considered as
an extension to the village but must also comply with the more detailed policy
criteria set out in Policy LP12 as well as Policy LP3.

10.5 Policy LP12, Part A states that “new development will be supported where it
contributes towards the sustainability of that settlement and does not harm the
wide-open character of the countryside” Criteria ¢, d and e are considered to be
relevance to this application, and these criteria state:

(c) It would not have an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the
surrounding countryside and farmland

(d) The proposal is of a scale and in a location that is in keeping with the core
shape and form of the settlement, and will not adversely harm its character and
appearance; and

(e) It would not extend linear features of the settlement or result in ribbon
development;

10.6 The application site does adjoin Station Road to the west and as such would be
adjacent to the existing developed footprint of the village in accordance with criteria
(a) above. However, the rear garden of 50 Station Road is considered to denote
the edge of the settlement. Development of this site would introduce a formal,
backland extension into the open countryside, which does not respect the rural
character or linear settlement pattern of the village, it would result in an
unacceptable urbanisation and set a precedent for future development, further
eroding the open character of this area. As such, the proposal is considered
contrary to Policy LP12 Part A (c), (d) and (e) which seek to ensure development
would not have an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the
surrounding countryside and would not result in linear development. Furthermore,
Policy LP16 (d) of the Fenland Local Plan, Policy DM3 of Delivering and Protecting
High Quality Environments in Fenland SPD, seek to ensure that developments
make a positive contribution and are sympathetic to the local distinctiveness and
character of the area, recognise the beauty and character of the countryside and
do not adversely impact on the landscape character.

Page 149



10.7 Supporters of the proposal state that the site is close to a school and shops.
Manea train station is location 800 metres to the north of the site which can provide
a public transport link to goods and services in Ely, March and beyond. There are
no bus stops in the vicinity of the site.

10.8 The site lies entirely within Flood Zone 3. However, it is considered that insufficient
assessment has been undertaken and inadequate information submitted to
demonstrate that it is not possible for the development to be located on a site with
a lower risk of flooding. The application is accompanied by a sequential test which
is limited to Manea. This is in line with the Council’s guidance on the area of
search for Growth Villages and is agreed. The sequential test considers a number
of sites, however the reason for discounting some sites has not been provided,
with some commentary simply stating “Not comparable” or “Approved” without any
further explanation. Furthermore, several smaller and larger sites plus sites for
different types/styles of developments on sites with a lower risk of flooding have
been discounted when this application is only for the principle of residential
development with such details not provided at this stage. Therefore, the
assessment appears to be incomplete and inadequate. One objector has observed
that there are available frontage sites in lower flood risk areas which would appear
to contradict the findings of the sequential test. It is therefore considered that the
proposal is not in accordance with Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan, 2014,
and Chapter 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework, 2024.

10.9 To address flood risk a revised Flood Risk Assessment document was submitted
which proposes finished floor levels 2.1 metres above surrounding ground level.
This mitigation measure may generate material character and amenity concerns
which it is considered cannot be addressed until the Technical Details Consent
stage of the application process.

10.10 Foul water capacity and surface water flood risk concerns have been expressed
by residents with comments that the rear of the site floods annually and sewage
has flooded gardens during November 2025. Manea continues to experience
ongoing issues with surface water drainage and sewage system capacity at Manea
WRC. The existing infrastructure is already overstretched. This development would
place additional strain on an inadequate system, potentially increasing the risk of
localised flooding and sewage backflow. The proposal fails to demonstrate
compliance with Policy LP16(d), which requires satisfactory drainage and
infrastructure provision to support new housing. Anglian Water have stated that
Written confirmation from Anglian Water must be submitted confirming there is
sufficient headroom at the water recycling centre to accommodate the foul flows
from the development site.

10.11 The site is located between and to the rear of existing dwellings on Station Road
and could therefore be considered a village extension, however it must also
comply with the more detailed policy criteria set out in Policy LP12 Part A as well
as Policy LP3. It should also be noted that LP12 indicates a threshold around
appropriate growth for villages (10%) and growth villages (15%). As recorded in
the ‘Village Threshold Position Statement’ the threshold for Manea has been
exceeded. If this development was supported it would result in an unacceptable
urbanisation to the detriment of the open countryside through the erosion the rural
character of the locality.

Use

Page 150



10.12 The site is situated adjacent to the built-up settlement, however as stated above,
it will be contrary to Policy LP12 — Rural Areas Development Policy and Policy
LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District. It
is therefore considered that the site is not acceptable to use for new dwellings.

10.13 In addition, whilst perhaps being a matter more appropriate for consideration at
Technical Consent stage, the location of the site for backland dwellings and the
proximity to established dwellings does raise amenity potential issues whether a
high-quality residential environment would ultimately be created.

Amount of Development Proposed

10.14 The application seeks Permission in Principle for seven dwellings on a site of 0.8
ha which would equate to a density of approximately nine dwellings per hectare.
This is low density and could comfortably be accommodated on-site without
being considered an overdevelopment of the site. However, the detailed layout
and design will be for consideration at the Technical Details stage. In terms of
consideration of amount, the proposal is acceptable. When compared to
dwellings within the built-up settlement limit the amount of development is
considered to be a comparable quantum when assessed against existing
development.

10.15 An objection has been raised as to the potential size of the proposed dwellings,
however, the proposed design is indicative, and therefore no planning weight can
be given to these comments at this stage of the planning process.

10.16 One objector has suggested that there is capacity within the site for further
development to the south and that this application seeks a stepped approach for
future planning to avoid developer contributions. The Local Planning Authority
can only determine the application at hand and speculation as to potential future
development cannot be attributed material planning weight.

Matters Raised During Consultation

10.17 It should be noted that a number of supporting letters have commented noting
that the provision of seven dwellings will not impact on highway safety or
increase congestion. These comments are noted, and this does form a material
consideration as part of this assessment, but as discussed above there are no
concerns, in respect of highway matters to the amount of development proposed.

10.18 It is also noted that nearby residents have raised concerns in terms of
congestion, and the associated impact of the proposal upon the highway.
However, Cambridgeshire County Highways have raised no concerns at this
stage, with any additional details being secured at the Technical Details stage or
subject of a subsequent application. Further given that the proposal relates to
seven dwellings this quantum of development, is unlikely to result in sufficient
harm, to justify the refusal of the application contrary to the Highway Authority’s
recommendation.

10.19 Comments have been received that new housing will create temporary
employment. This is not a material planning consideration. Another supporter
states that housing will be affordable, but no information has been submitted to
support this assertion. It should also be noted that disturbance during
construction, the devaluation of properties and the loss of views are not matters
attributed material planning weight.

Page 151



10.20 Comments have also been raised about impact on wildlife. However, this is a
matter which is not attributed material weight at this stage of the application
process. Additional public comments raise noise, overlooking, overshadowing
and overbearing concerns; however, these are matters that could only be
determined at the Technical Details stage. Some comments points to the national
housing shortage, however it is not role of the Local Planning Authority to
address under provision elsewhere in the country when Fenland District exceeds
its five-year Housing Land Supply with a total of 6.6 years provision. Finally, one
supporter refers to the character of the applicant. The character of the applicant
has no impact on the proposal which must solely be determined against local and
national planning policy.

10.21 There is a permission in principle site further north for Land South East of 76
Station Road that was approved following a committee overturn under reference
F/YR23/0373/PIP. That site is considered to be materially different in that the site
was a former piggery site and was considered to constitute a brownfield site. This
application is on paddock land and does not constitute a brownfield site.

11 CONCLUSIONS

11.1 As indicated above it is only location, use and amount of development that may
be considered at the first ‘permission in principle stage’ and it is considered that
the location and use of the site for residential development is unacceptable due
to the conflict with the settlement hierarchy of the Local Plan.

11.2 The site lies entirely within in Flood Zone 3; Policy LP12 Part A (j) seeks to
ensure that developments would not put people or property in dangers from
identified risks, such as flooding. Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan and
Chapter 14 of the NPPF seek to steer developments to the areas with the least
probability of flooding and development will not be permitted if there are
reasonably available sites appropriate for the proposed development in areas
with a lower risk of flooding.

12 RECOMMENDATION

Refuse; Permission in Principle for the following reason:

1. Development of this site would result in unacceptable urbanisation of this rural
location, constituting backland development in the countryside. It would erode
the character of the area and the wider open countryside contrary to criteria c, d
and e of Policy LP12 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014). As such, any residential
development on this site will be contrary to the above policy considerations and
thus, in terms of location and use, the Planning in Principle application fails.

2. The site lies entirely within in Flood Zone 3; Policy LP12 Part A (j) seeks to
ensure that developments would not put people or property in dangers from
identified risks, such as flooding. Policy LP14 of the Fenland Local Plan and
Chapter 14 of the NPPF seek to steer developments to the areas with the least
probability of flooding and development will not be permitted if there are
reasonably available sites appropriate for the proposed development in areas
with a lower risk of flooding.

The application is not accompanied by a substantive sequential test and as such
insufficient assessment has been undertaken and inadequate information

Page 152



submitted to demonstrate that it is not possible for the development to be

located on a site with a lower risk of flooding and as such the development is

contrary to the aforementioned policies.

Page 153



F/YR25/0787/PIP

= '.*‘“\'ﬁ%
;;;iﬁ"'
27: 1:2,500
10/22/2025, 10:27:41 AM 0 15 230 460 f
| | ! |
| | ! |
|:| Fenland District Boundary 0 35 70 140 m

Fenland District Council

Uniform
© Crown Copyright and database rights 2025 Ordnance Suﬁsey ACOOOTgMB.
age 154



GGT abed

Scale: 1:1250 Scale: 1:500

25 375 50 62.5m 125m Om 5 10 15 20 25m 50m

North

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2025. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

Existing paddocks

Existing paddocks

Existing paddocka‘

Existing paddocks

THIS DRAWING AND THE BUILDING WORKS DEPICTED ARE THE COPYRIGHT OF

L BEVENS ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS LTD AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED OR AMENDED
EXCEPT BY WRITTEN PERMISSION. NO LIABILITY WILL BE ACCEPTED FOR AMENDMENTS
MADE BY OTHER PERSONS. COPYRIGHT 2025 ©.

ALL MEASUREMENTS SHOULD BE CHECKED ON SITE AND ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD
REPORTED TO THE ORIGINATOR.

ALL WORKS TO COMPLY WITH CURRENT CDM REGULATIONS AS APPROPRIATE. IT IS THE
CLIENT'S RESPOSIBILITY TO FULLY COMPLY WITH THE CDM 2015 REGULATIONS INCLUDING
APPOINTING A PRINCIPAL DESIGNER AND PRINCIPAL CONTRACTOR FOR PROJECTS WITH
MORE THAN ONE CONTRACTOR ON SITE.

NO WORKS TO COMMENCE ON SITE UNTIL ALL APPROVALS ARE CONFIRMED IN WRITING.
L BEVENS ASSOCIATES LTD ACCEPTS NO LIABILITY IF THIS IS BREACHED.

IT IS THE CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITY TO ACCURATELY LOCATE EXISTING SERVICES
PRIOR TO WORKS COMMENCING.

=T

7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777i77777777 REG NO: 0654801 e

Architects

Registration

Board
L Bevens Associates Architects Ltd
The Doghouse
10 Cricketers Way

NN Chatteris

Cambridgeshire
PE16 6UR

Associates Lid Mob: 07739 562818

Architects Email: enquiries@Ibevens-associatesltd.co.uk

Web: www.|lbevens-associatesltd.co.uk

DRAWING PRELIMINARY ] CONSTRUCTION [ ]
STATUS
PLANNING [ ] FILE COPY ]

CLIENT

Mrs G Youlton

PROJECT
50 Station Road
Manea, Cambridgeshire. PE15 OHE

\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\ L BEVENS  Tel: 01354 693969
| L BEVEINS
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
\

DRAWING TITLE

Location Plan

Existing Site Plan

SCALE DATE DRAWN CHECKED
1:1250 & 1:500 @ A2 September 2025 LB
DRAWING NUMBER REVISION

CH25/LBA/700/EX-1-100




9GT abed

Scale: 1:1250

Scale: 1:500

25 375 50 62.5m 125m Om 5

North

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2025. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

10

15

20

25m

50m

|
6m wide shared surface

road with 0.5ﬁp
maintenance F,trips

Land retaineb for paddocks
|

2.4m x 43m visibility
splay to North

Parking spaces for
existing dwelling

\

\

\

\

\

\

\
ACcess detail
accorﬁa cew

i
ith C.C.C
ighwa ance

53

THIS DRAWING AND THE BUILDING WORKS DEPICTED ARE THE COPYRIGHT OF

L BEVENS ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS LTD AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED OR AMENDED
EXCEPT BY WRITTEN PERMISSION. NO LIABILITY WILL BE ACCEPTED FOR AMENDMENTS
MADE BY OTHER PERSONS. COPYRIGHT 2025 ©.

ALL MEASUREMENTS SHOULD BE CHECKED ON SITE AND ANY DISCREPANCIES SHOULD
REPORTED TO THE ORIGINATOR.

ALL WORKS TO COMPLY WITH CURRENT CDM REGULATIONS AS APPROPRIATE. IT IS THE
CLIENT'S RESPOSIBILITY TO FULLY COMPLY WITH THE CDM 2015 REGULATIONS INCLUDING
APPOINTING A PRINCIPAL DESIGNER AND PRINCIPAL CONTRACTOR FOR PROJECTS WITH
MORE THAN ONE CONTRACTOR ON SITE.

NO WORKS TO COMMENCE ON SITE UNTIL ALL APPROVALS ARE CONFIRMED IN WRITING.
L BEVENS ASSOCIATES LTD ACCEPTS NO LIABILITY IF THIS IS BREACHED.

IT IS THE CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITY TO ACCURATELY LOCATE EXISTING SERVICES
PRIOR TO WORKS COMMENCING.

RevB Oct. 25 Revised to suit client comments.

RevA Oct. 25 Revised to suit client comments.

Architects
Registration
Board

REG NO: 0654801

L Bevens Associates Architects Ltd
The Doghouse
10 Cricketers Way
N Chatteris
“‘; Cambridgeshire

PE16 6UR

L BEVENS  Tel 01354 693969

Associates Lid Mob: 07739 562818

Web: www.Ibevens-associatesltd.co.uk

Architects Email: enquiries@Ibevens-associatesltd.co.uk

DRAWING PRELIMINARY ] CONSTRUCTION [ |
STATUS
PLANNING [ ] FILE COPY ]

CLIENT

Mrs G Youlton

PROJECT
50 Station Road
Manea, Cambridgeshire. PE15 OHE

DRAWING TITLE

Location Plan

Proposed Indicative Site Plan

SCALE DATE DRAWN CHECKED
1:1250 & 1:500 @ A2~ September 2025 LB

DRAWING NUMBER REVISION

CH25/LBA/700/PiP-1-100 B




Agenda Iltem 13

F/YR25/0796/PIP

Applicant: Mrs D Daines Agent : Mr M Hall
Morton & Hall Consulting Ltd

Land North Of 120 London Road, Chatteris, Cambridgeshire
Permission in principle to erect up to 1 x dwelling
Officer recommendation: Refuse

Reason for Committee: Number of representations contrary to Officer
recommendation.

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This application seeks Permission in Principle (PiP) for the development of one
dwelling on Land North of 120 London Road, outside the developed footprint of
Chatteris.

1.2 Under Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan, the site is considered to be in an
'Elsewhere' location, where new housing is only supported if it is demonstrably
essential to a rural-based enterprise. No such justification has been provided. The
development would therefore be in direct conflict with the settlement hierarchy and
spatial strategy of the Local Plan, as well as resulting in the further urbanisation of
the area to the detriment of its character and appearance.

1.3 Although the density of development proposed is low and could be accommodated
physically on the site, this does not overcome the fundamental policy objections
regarding location and use. Other technical details, including highway safety, would
be addressed at the second stage (Technical Details Consent), though no
objections have been raised by the Highway Authority at this stage.

1.4 Therefore, the proposed development fails to comply with the Local Plan's spatial
strategy and the site's location is considered unsuitable for residential development
in principle.

1.5 Accordingly, this application is recommended for refusal.

2  SITE DESCRIPTION

2.1 The application site is located outside of the settlement footprint of Chatteris. The
site is situated to the west of London Road to the north-east of 120 London Road.
The site is grassed and was formerly used as a bowling green with a building in the
western rear corner of the site formerly used as a pavilion. The boundaries of the
site are bordered by a 1.4 metre high timber fence to the sides and rear and an
established 1.8 metre high hedge to the site frontage. The site is located in Flood
Zone 1 and is subject to a low annual likelihood of surface water flooding.

Page 157



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

5.1

5.2

PROPOSAL

A location plan, existing site plan and indicative site layout (although not a
requirement of a PiP application) accompany this submission. These indicate the
removal of the existing boundary treatment on the site and the provision of a
dwelling with associated parking and landscaping together with the provision of an
upgraded access road utilising the existing site access.

The current proposal is the first part of the Permission in Principle application; this
first stage’ establishes whether a site is suitable in principle only, and assesses
the ‘principle’ issues, namely; (1) Location (2) Use, and (3) Amount of development
proposed

Should this application be successful the applicant will have to submit a Technical
details application covering all the other detailed material planning considerations.
The approval of Permission in Principle does not constitute the grant of planning
permission.

The applicant is only required to submit a completed application form, a plan which
identifies the land to which the application relates (drawn to scale and with a north
point) and the application fee.

Full plans and associated documents for this application can be found at:
https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

SITE PLANNING HISTORY

Reference Description Decision

F/YR05/0120/0 | Erection of 2 detached houses Refused - 29 March
2005

F/YR06/0001/O | Erection of 2 detached dwellings Refused — 27 February

2006. Dismissed at
Appeal — 06 February

2007.
F/YR08/0494/F | Erection of a 2-bed detached Approved — 25 July
bungalow involving demolition of 2008.

existing dwelling

CONSULTATIONS

Chatteris Town Council — 30 October 2025

Support.

Cambridgeshire County Council — Highways — 29 October 2025

No significant impact upon the public highway — The proposal for 1 dwelling
utilises an existing highways access to a former bowling green. The dwelling has
parking and turning space to enable vehicles to exit the site in a forward gear. |

note that drawing H10792/04 shows that the existing access will be widened to 5m
and will be sealed and drained away from the public highway. It is not clear if the

Page 158



https://www.publicaccess.fenland.gov.uk/publicaccess/

5.3

5.4

6.1

access will be gated but if this is the case the gate should be set back 5m from the
carriageway edge to enable a vehicle to wait clear of the public highway. It is
expected that detail showing that the proposed access will be laid out and
constructed in accordance with Cambridgeshire County Council’s construction
specification will be provided at as part of the technical details consent application.

Fenland District Council — Environmental Health — 29 October 2025

No objections.

Local Residents/Interested Parties

15 communications of support have been received for this application. Fourteen
supporters are from addresses in Linden Drive, London Road x 3, Manor Gardens,
Millfield Close, New Road x 2, Southampton Place, Station Street, The

Sycamores, Tithe Road, Westbourne Road and West Street, Chatteris, with one
from Newgate Street, Doddington.

Supporting Comments Officer Response

Other PIP applications have been allowed in the | This will be addressed in the Location

area. section.

The property is frontage development. This will be addressed in the Location
section.

This site is closer to Chatteris than already This will be addressed in the Location

approved developments. section.

The land is currently unused. This will be addressed in the Use section.

| believe it will look good This will be addressed in the Matters Raised
During Consultation section.

STATUTORY DUTY

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires a
planning application to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material planning considerations indicate otherwise. The Development Plan
for the purposes of this application comprises the adopted Fenland Local Plan
(2014).

POLICY FRAMEWORK

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2024

Chapter 2 - Achieving sustainable development

Chapter 4 — Decision-making

Chapter 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Chapter 9 — Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 11 — Making effective use of land

Chapter 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Chapter 14 — Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Chapter 15 — Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Context Paragraph: 012 (Reference ID: 58-012-20180615). The scope of
permission in principle is limited to location, land use and amount of development.

Issues relevant to these ‘in principle’ matters should be considered at the
permission in principle stage. Other matters should be considered at the technical

Page 159



details consent stage. In addition, local authorities cannot list the information they
require for applications for permission in principle in the same way they can for
applications for planning permission but can advise applicants on the decision
notice, where Permission in Principle is granted, what they would expect to see at
Technical Details stage.

National Design Guide 2021
Context

|dentity

Built Form

Uses

Homes and Buildings

Fenland Local Plan 2014

LP1 — A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

LP2 — Facilitating Health and Wellbeing of Fenland Residents

LP3 — Spatial Strategy, the Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside

LP4 — Housing

LP5 — Meeting Housing Need

LP12 — Rural Areas Development Policy

LP13 — Supporting and Managing the Impact of a Growing District

LP14 — Responding to Climate Change and Managing the Risk of Flooding in
Fenland

LP15 — Facilitating the Creation of a More Sustainable Transport Network in
Fenland

LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High Quality Environments across the District

LP19 — The Natural Environment

Emerging Local Plan

The Draft Fenland Local Plan (2022) was published for consultation between 25th
August 2022 and 19 October 2022, all comments received will be reviewed and
any changes arising from the consultation will be made to the draft Local Plan.
Given the very early stage which the Plan is therefore at, it is considered, in
accordance with Paragraph 49 of the NPPF, that the policies of this should carry
extremely limited weight in decision making. Of relevance to this application are
policies:

LP1: Settlement Hierarchy

LP2: Spatial Strategy for the Location of Residential Development
LP4: Securing Fenland’s Future

LPS:  Health and Wellbeing

LP7: Design

LP8:  Amenity Provision

LP12: Meeting Housing Needs

LP18: Development in the Countryside
LP19: Strategic Infrastructure

LP20: Accessibility and Transport
LP22: Parking Provision

KEY ISSUES
° Location
° Use

° Amount

Page 160



9 BACKGROUND

9.1 The proposal is an application for Permission in Principle to develop the site for up
to 5 dwellings. The Permission in Principle route has 2 stages: the first stage (or
Permission in Principle Stage) establishes whether the site is suitable in principle
and assesses the principle issues namely:

(1) Location
(2) Use, and
(3) Amount of development proposed

And the second (Technical Details Consent) stage is when the detailed
development proposals are addressed. Technical details consent would need to be
applied for should the application be granted.

9.2 Evaluation of a PIP must be restricted to the issues highlighted above; even if
technical issues are apparent from the outset these can form no part of the
determination of Stage 1 of the process, Accordingly, some matters raised via
statutory bodies may not be addressed at this time.

9.3 ltis pertinent to note that this previous full and outline applications for dwellings on
this site have been dismissed for this site with F/YR06/0001/O subsequently
dismissed at appeal.

10 ASSESSMENT
Location

10.1 Policy LP3 of the Fenland Local Plan (2014) identifies Chatteris as being an ‘Other
Market Town’. For these settlements, the maijority of the district’'s new housing,
employment growth, retail growth and wider service provision should take place in
these settlements.

10.2 The site is considered to be situated within an elsewhere location as it is divorced
from the main built form of Chatteris. The Local Plan does not contain settlement
boundaries and instead relies upon a case-by-case site specific judgment. Whilst
LP12 relates to the development on the edge of villages the criteria within the
footnote to this policy are considered to give a helpful indication as to what can or
cannot be considered adjacent to the built form of a settlement. This excludes
individual buildings and groups of dispersed, or intermittent buildings, that are
clearly detached from the continuous built-up area of the settlement. The
application site and its surroundings are considered to fall within these exemptions
as the site is separated by approximately 350m by fields of arable land from the
continuous built form of the settlement. Immediately adjacent development
consists of a single residential dwelling to the south, with areas to the east, north
and west rural in nature.

10.3 Policy LP5 sets out the housing targets for the District and the Council has
undertaken a full assessment of the Five Year Housing Land Supply in the District
and has concluded that the Council is able to demonstrate a supply of specific
deliverable sites sufficient to provide for more than Five Years’ worth of housing
against the Council’s identified requirements. This is a material consideration and
means that any application for new development must be determined in

Page 161



accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.

10.3 The application is submitted as to be self/custom build. Policy LP5, Part C seeks
to provide, in appropriate circumstances, housing solutions that meet market
expectations including self-build homes, which is supported by Para 63 of the
NPPF (2024). Under Section 1 of the Self Build and Custom Housebuilding Act
2015, local authorities are required to keep a register of those seeking to acquire
serviced plots in the area for their own self-build and custom house building. They
are also subject to duties under sections 2 and 2A of the Act to have regard to this
and to give enough suitable development permissions to meet the identified
demand. Weight would therefore be given to this, the amount dependant on
identified demand.

10.4 However, the Council can currently demonstrate that the number of permissions
given for self/custom builds exceeds identified demand, and as such very limited
weight can therefore be reasonably afforded to the delivery of this form of housing
when determining the application.

10.5 While the services and facilities within the town would be accessible by utilising the
footpath, this is narrow and unlit and on the opposite side of London Road to the
east. The services and facilities are also several hundred metres away. This is not
therefore considered sufficient to overcome the harm identified by a new dwelling,
in what is considered a countryside location, whereby there is no demonstrable
need.

10.6 It is noted that the Agent has advised of other residential developments having
been approved further to the south of Chatteris. Each application must be
determined on its own merits. Notwithstanding this basic principle it is also
considered that further development should be avoided in this unsustainable
location to prevent the further urbanisation of the area.

10.7 Policy LP3 sets out the spatial strategy, settlement hierarchy, and approach to
elsewhere developments. This is complemented by Policy LP4 which sets out
proposed housing targets for Market Towns and Other Locations. The key driver
of these policies is to ensure that new development is directed towards the most
sustainable locations whilst recognising that smaller settlements will still need to
reflect natural population change and may require additional development of a
much smaller scale to reflect these changes. Since the Plan was adopted there
have been a number of a sites permitted and completed in other locations
dramatically exceeding the anticipated provision set out in the adopted Plan with
no notable improvements to social, educational and health infrastructure to offset
the impacts of development or increase the overall sustainability of these
locations. As such the principal of additional residential development within ‘Other
Locations’ should not be automatically accepted.

10.8 There is not considered to be any planning justification to support residential
applications in this area that are contrary to local and national policy, especially in
the context of a five year housing land supply which currently stands at 6.6 years.
This means that the national “tilted balance” (set out in paragraph 11(d) of the
NPPF) doesn’t apply in this case, so there's no automatic presumption in favour of
granting permission. As such, decisions should be based firmly on how well the
proposal aligns with local and national planning policies.

Page 162



10.9 The site is considered to be an ‘Elsewhere location’ as defined by Policy LP3.
Development in an elsewhere location will be restricted to that which is
demonstrably essential to the effective operation of local agriculture, horticulture,
forestry, outdoor recreation, transport or utility services or to minerals and waste
development. The application does not state that it is essential to the operation of
the activities set out by Policy LP3. The site currently forms a gap of open
countryside, along with the field to the north, which is a characteristic of this part of
London Road which gradually transitions from the developed area of Chatteris
towards the open countryside. Development of this site would result in an
unacceptable urbanisation, extending development into the countryside. It would
likely set a precedent for future development, further eroding the character of the
area and the open countryside.

10.10 In addition, whilst perhaps being a matter more appropriate for consideration at
Technical Consent stage, the proposal would require the loss of a bowling green,
albeit, not currently in use. A section of Policy LP6 is titled ‘Retaining community
facilities’ and states: Proposals that would lead to the loss of community facilities
(e.g. public houses, village shops, community halls, post offices) will only be
permitted if:

1) it can be demonstrated that the retention of the facility is no longer financially
viable and an appropriate marketing exercise has been carried out, and it can be
demonstrated that there is a lack of community need for the facility, or

2) an alternative facility is provided.

Use

10.11 The site is situated 350 metres away, at the nearest point, to the edge of the
settlement. However, as stated above, it will be contrary to Policy LP12 — Rural
Areas Development Policy and Policy LP16 — Delivering and Protecting High
Quality Environments across the District. As set out above the use of the site for
residential purposes is contrary to the settlement hierarchy and the introduction of
a residential unit and associated paraphernalia is considered to erode the
character and appearance of the open countryside. It is therefore considered that
the site is not acceptable for a residential use.

Amount of Development Proposed

10.12 The application seeks Permission in Principle for one dwelling on a site of 0.20ha
which will equate to a density of approximately 5 dwellings per hectare. This is
low density and could comfortably be accommodated on-site without being
considered an overdevelopment of the site. However, the detailed layout and
design will be for consideration at the technical details stage. In terms of
consideration of amount, the proposed density is considered be in keeping with
existing dwellings to the south-west of the site in a more rural location, but
underutilised when compared to the more densely developed sites to the north-
east, closer to the built-up settlement of Chatteris.

Matters Raised During Consultation

10.13 It should be noted that a number of supporting letters have commented to state
that the dwelling will look good or is of good design. These comments are noted,
however, no elevations or proposed materials have been provided as this
application is solely to assess whether the location, use and amount of
development proposed is appropriate in this ‘Elsewhere’ location.

Page 163



10.14 It is also noted that the Town Council supports this application and Environmental
Health have raised no objections. Cambridgeshire County Highways have raised
no concerns at this stage, with any additional details being secured at the
Technical Details or subject of a subsequent application.

11  CONCLUSIONS

11.1 As indicated above it is only location, use and amount of development that may be
considered at the first ‘permission in principle stage’ and it is considered that the
location and use of the site for residential development is unacceptable due to the
conflict with the settlement hierarchy of the Local Plan.

11.2 The principle of development for residential purposes is not supported as the site
does not adjoin the built form of Chatteris and whilst the proposal is for self/custom
build dwellings the Council can currently demonstrate that the number of
permissions given for self/custom builds exceeds identified demand, as well as
currently having in excess of five years housing land supply.

11.3 Should this application be supported contrary to recommendation, there are no
material concerns regarding residential amenity (subject to a suitable design at the
Technical Details stage) as well as parking/highways matters. There are no issues
to address in relation to flood risk and drainage, and ecology.

11.4 However these matters are not considered to outweigh the policy conflict identified
and a such the application is recommended for refusal.

12 RECOMMENDATION

Refuse; Permission in Principle for the following reason:

1 | The application site constitutes an area of land located outside the developed
footprint of Chatteris within an ‘elsewhere’ location as defined in the Local
Plan. Development of this site would result in an unacceptable urbanisation,
extending development into the countryside, further eroding the character of
the area and the open countryside. The development proposal will therefore
be contrary, in principle, to Policies LP3 and LP16 of the Fenland Local Plan
(2014).

Page 164



F/YR25/0796/PIP

54 1:1,250
10/27/2025, 10:54:38 AM s s 220 f

o 1T O

15 30 60 m

Uniform
© Crown Copyright and database rights 2025 Ordnance Suﬁey AC0000815148.
age




99T abed

LAND OWNED BY APPLICANT

LAND OWNED BY APPLICANT

),

FORMER BOWLING GREEN

EXISTING
ACCESS

EXISTING TARMAC FOOTPATH

EXISTING
ACCESS

EXISTING TARMAC FOOTPATH

EXISTING TARMAC FOOTPATH

S
EXISTING SITE PLAN 1:250

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt

ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers
current recommendations.

The contractor is to qrrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and
forward to the Engineer

All finishes, insulation and damp—proofing to architect’s
details

LEGEND

GRAVEL (PERMEABLE COVERING)

TARMAC

GRASS

BLOCK PAVING

( (444 q
4444444444‘ PATHS/PATIO AREA
GG
APPLICATION SITE
LAND IN THE SAME OWNERSHIP
HOUSEHOLDER BIN LOCATIONS
REVISIONS DATE

MoRrTon & HALL
ConsuLTING LiMITED '\

1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454

March, Fax: 01354 660467
Combridgeshire. E—mail: info®@mortonandhall.co.uk

PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

Fenland District Council

Y3INNIM AH0O3LYO

LABS™ LABE™ o :
Building
Design Awards
Building Excellence in Fenland ‘
CLIENT

Mrs D Daines

PROJECT

Land North of

120 London Road
Chatteris

Cambridgeshire PE16 6SF

Existing Site Plan
DRAWN MH DATE OF ISSUE
DATE October 2025 DRAWING NUMBER
As Shown at A1l H 1 0792/02



AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
Mrs D Daines

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
Land North of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
120 London Road

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
Chatteris 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
Cambridgeshire PE16 6SF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
Existing Site Plan 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
October 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
As Shown at A1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
H10792/02

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
EXISTING SITE PLAN 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
GRAVEL (PERMEABLE COVERING)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
BLOCK PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
APPLICATION SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
HOUSEHOLDER BIN LOCATIONS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
PATHS/PATIO AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
No 120 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
FORMER BOWLING GREEN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
EXISTING ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
EXISTING ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
LAND OWNED BY APPLICANT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
LAND OWNED BY APPLICANT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
LAND IN THE SAME OWNERSHIP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
EXISTING TARMAC FOOTPATH 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
EXISTING TARMAC FOOTPATH 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
EXISTING TARMAC FOOTPATH 


/9T abed

/
y
y

LAND OWNED BY APPLICANT

EXISTING
ACCESS

LAND OWNED BY APPLICANT

EXISTING TARMAC FOOTPATH

EXISTING ACCESS TO BE
WIDEN TO 5m AND SEALED
AND DRAINED AWAY FROM
THE HIGHWAY AS PER C.C.C
GUIDELINES

EXISTING TARMAC FOOTPATH

S

INDICATIVE ACCESS LOCATION,

EXISTING TARMAC FOOTPATH

PROPOSED INDICATIVE SITE PLAN 1:250

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2025. All rights reserved. Licence number

100022432

Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole
without their written permission.

Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without
consulting the Engineers.

Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and
specification. All work to be in accordance with

good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the
recommendations define the quality of the finished work.
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers
current recommendations.

The contractor is to qrrange inspections of the works
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and
forward to the Engineer

All finishes, insulation and damp—proofing to architect’s
details

LEGEND

7

GRAVEL (PERMEABLE COVERING)
7

TARMAC

GRASS

N

BLOCK PAVING

GG

RCEGS| PATHS /PATIO AREA

LSEA

LALAL
APPLICATION SITE
LAND IN THE SAME OWNERSHIP
HOUSEHOLDER BIN LOCATIONS

A | PLANNER COMMENT oCT 25
REVISIONS DATE

MoRrTon & HALL
CoNsuULTING LIMITED

1 Gordon Avenue, Tel: 01354 655454

March, Fax: 01354 660467
Cqmbridgeshire_ E—mail: info®@mortonandhall.co.uk

PE15 8AJ Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

n Fenland District Council

LABC™ LABC™ .
Building
’ Design Awards ‘

Building Excellence in Fenland

1102 ® 6002
Y3INNIM AH0O3LYO

CLIENT

Mrs D Daines

PROJECT

Land North of

120 London Road
Chatteris

Cambridgeshire PE16 6SF

Proposed Site Plan

INDICATIVE
DRAWN MH DATE OF ISSUE
" October 2025 PRANNG NONBER
o H1O792/O4A



AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
TITLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
DRAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
Consulting Limited is their property. Drawings and 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
Copyright on all drawings prepared by Morton & Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
forward to the Engineer

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
Regulations and is to obtain completion certificate and

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
by the BCO (or NHBC) as required by the Building 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
The contractor is to arrange inspections of the works

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
current recommendations.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
and used or fixed in accordance with the manufacturers

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
All products and materials to be handled, stored, prepared 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
appropriate, BS or EC marks.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
British Standards and EOTA standards with, where 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
Materials products and workmanship to comply with all 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
recommendations define the quality of the finished work. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
good building practice and BS 8000 to the extent that the 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
specification. All work to be in accordance with 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
reasonably to be inferred from the drawings and

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
the works and suitable for the purpose stated in or 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
specified they are to be of the standard appropriate to

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
Where materials, products and workmanship are not fully

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
ask. All dimensions are in mm unless stated otherwise.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
starts or materials are ordered. If in doubt 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
Contractor to check all dimensions on site before work

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
consulting the Engineers.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
Please read, if in doubt ask. Change nothing without

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
without their written permission.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
designs may not be reproduced in part or in whole 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
DATE OF ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
All finishes, insulation and damp-proofing to architect's 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
details

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
1 Gordon Avenue, March, Cambridgeshire. PE15 8AJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
Tel: 01354 655454 Fax: 01354 660467 E-mail: info@mortonandhall.co.uk Website: www.mortonconsultingengineers.co.uk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
LABC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
east anglia

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
Mrs D Daines

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
Land North of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
120 London Road

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
Chatteris 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
Cambridgeshire PE16 6SF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
Proposed Site Plan 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
INDICATIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
October 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
As Shown

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
H10792/04

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
PROPOSED INDICATIVE SITE PLAN 1:250

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
GRAVEL (PERMEABLE COVERING)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
TARMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
BLOCK PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
APPLICATION SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
HOUSEHOLDER BIN LOCATIONS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
PATHS/PATIO AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
No 120 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
EXISTING ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
LAND OWNED BY APPLICANT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
LAND OWNED BY APPLICANT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
LAND IN THE SAME OWNERSHIP 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
20m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
15.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
7.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
INDICATIVE ACCESS LOCATION, EXISTING ACCESS TO BE WIDEN TO 5m AND SEALED AND DRAINED AWAY FROM THE HIGHWAY AS PER C.C.C GUIDELINES 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
EXISTING TARMAC FOOTPATH 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
EXISTING TARMAC FOOTPATH 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
EXISTING TARMAC FOOTPATH 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
A   PLANNER COMMENT 						OCT 25OCT 25


This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Previous Minutes
	5 F/YR25/0258/VOC<br/>Land East Of, The Elms, Chatteris<br/>Variation of condition 7 (southern access) and removal of condition 16 (LEAP) of planning permission F/YR22/0967/FDL (Erect up to 80 x dwellings (outline application with matters committed in respect of access)) - re wording of condition.
	25-0258-VOC - The Elms FINAL 
	940014-FDC Location Plan-

	6 F/YR25/0347/F<br/>20 Nene Parade, March, PE15 8TD<br/>Erect 2x self-build/custom build dwellings involving demolition of existing dwelling and garage within a Conservation Area
	25-0347-F - 20 Nene Parade - FINAL
	25-0347-F - 20 Nene Parade FINAL AD
	978594-FDC Location Plan-
	999885-Location Plan-LOCATION PLAN, PROPOSED SITE PLAN, STREETSCENE AND FENCE DETAILS
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	999886-Revised Drawing-PLOT 1 PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS, ROOF AND SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	999887-Revised Drawing-PLOT 1 ELEVATIONS
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	999888-Revised Drawing-PLOT 2 ELEVATIONS
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	999889-Revised Drawing-PLOT 2 PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS ROOF AND SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	999890-Revised Drawing-PLOT 1 GARAGE FLOOR PLAN, ELEVATIONS AND SECTION
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	7 F/YR25/0776/PIP<br/>Land North Of 386, Wisbech Road, Westry<br/>Permission in Principle for up to 9 x dwellings
	25 0776 Report FINAL
	25 0776 FDC Loc Plan
	25 0776 Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	8 TPO042025<br/>Tavistock Road, Wisbech
	TPO 04-2025 Report committee FINAL
	PLANNING COMMITTEE
	10 December 2025
	Date
	Title
	Not applicable
	Tracy Ranger, Development Officer

	Matthew Leigh, Head of Planning

	TPO 04-2025 Location Plan
	TEMPO TPO assessment 20Tavistock road wisbech (002)
	FDC Aerial + TPO point - 1-500

	9 F/YR25/0726/PIP<br/>Land South Of 29, Primrose Hill, Doddington<br/>Permission in Principle for 2 x dwellings
	25-0726-PIP LAND SOUTH OF 29 PRIMROSE HILL FINAL
	FDC LOCATION PLAN
	EXISTING SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	PROPOSED SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	10 F/YR25/0729/PIP<br/>Land North Of 10, Primrose Hill, Doddington<br/>Permission in Principle to erect 4 workplace dwellings
	F-YR25-0729-PIP 10 PRIMROSE HILL FINAL
	FDC LOCATION PLAN
	EXISTING SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	PROPOSED SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	11 F/YR25/0730/PIP<br/>Land North Of The Quadrant, Primrose Hill, Doddington<br/>Permission in Principle for 2 x dwellings
	F-YR25-0730-PIP QUADRANT FINAL
	FDC LOCATION PLAN
	LOCATION PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	PROPOSED SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	12 F/YR25/0787/PIP<br/>Land East Of 50 Station Road, Manea<br/>Permission in principle to erect up to 7 x dwellings<br/><br/>
	F-YR25-0787-PIP 50 STATION ROAD FINAL AD
	FDC LOCATION PLAN
	EXISTING SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	A1 Existing


	PROPOSED SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	A1 Proposed



	13 F/YR25/0796/PIP<br/>Land North Of 120 London Road, Chatteris<br/>Permission in principle to erect up to 1 x dwelling
	F-YR25-0796-PIP 120 LONDON ROAD FINAL
	FDC LOCATION PLAN
	EXISTING SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	PROPOSED SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	Model






